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APPEARANCES:

For Applicants Bruce and d enda MConnel | :
McHUGH BROVLEY, PLLC
BY MR CHRIS M BROWEY
MS. CANDICE M MHUCGH (Tel ephoni cal |l y)
380 South Fourth Street, Suite 103
Boi se, |daho 83702
cbrom ey@mrchughbroni ey. com
cnthugh@rchughbr onl ey. com
For Protestants Janes Wi ttaker and Whittaker
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For Protestant David R Tonthak:
MANWARI NG LAW CFFI CE, PA
BY MR KIPP L. MANVWARI NG
2677 East 17th Street, Suite 600
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Two Dot
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APPEARANCES ( Conti nued):
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Al so Present:

G ndy Yenter, |DWR
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Audio Transcription

(Begin transcription at 0:20 of audio
file.)
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Good norning. M nane is
Janmes Cefalo fromthe Eastern Regional Ofice of the
| daho Departnment of Water Resources. | wll serve as
the Hearing Oficer today on behalf of the Departnent.

C ndy Yenter, who is an Analyst 4 with the
Departnent and works in the field office here in Sal non
is assisting ne with the hearing. | wanted to make it
clear on the record that Ms. Yenter is assisting ne
wth the recording equi pnrent and the | ogistics of the
hearing. She will not be involved in the
deci sion-nmaking for the case. She has been identified
as a potential wtness in this case and may be call ed
to testify during the hearing. Because she's a
potential witness, as | just -- | thought that it was
i mportant on the record to confirmthat her assistance
wWth ne up here is really just to nmanage the recording
equi pnent .

So the purpose of this hearing is to
recei ve evidence and testinony in connection with
application for transfer 84441 filed in the nane of
Bruce and d enda McConnell, which has been protested.
The hearing will be conducted in conpliance with the

application provisions of Chapter 2, Title 42, and

000009




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o 00 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021
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Chapter 52, Title 67 of the Idaho Code, and the
Departnent's Rul es of Procedure.

The hearing i s begi nning on Wednesday,
April 21st, 2021, at 10:20 a.m at the BLM U. S. Forest
Servi ce conbi ned office in Sal non, |daho.

Present at the hearing today we have the
applicants, Bruce and 3 enda McConnell, and their
attorney, Chris Brom ey, and Candi ce McHugh is on the
phone, and a consultant, Scott King.

We al so have Protestants Janes Wi ttaker
and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, who is al so Jordan
Wi ttaker, Janes' son. And they're represented by
Attorney Rob Harris, and have a consultant, Bryce
Cont or .

We al so have protestant Dave Tonthak and
his wife, Laura, and their attorney, Kipp Manwaring, is
here al so.

And we al so have protestant Shanna Foster,
who is here on behalf of Smth --

M5. FOSTER 2P Ranch
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  -- 2P Ranch. R ght ?
Ckay.

And we are missing currently one -- two of

our protestants. W are mssing Protestant Rosalie

Eri csson and Steven Johnson. And by not being here at
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the start of the hearing, and in fact 20 m nutes after
the start of the hearing, they -- you know, what
they're doing is waiving their ability to cross-exam ne
W tnesses and really participate in this hearing.

As Hearing O ficer, I will take official
notice of the Departnent's file for Application for
Transfer 84441, any past decisions or orders of the
Departnent that may be relevant to this contested case,
t he Departnent's water right records, and any reports,
measurenents, or streamflow records in the
Departnment's files that nmay be relevant. W haven't
identified any specific docunents that way, though.
And the -- our rules of procedure require those to be
identified by the hearing.

And so prior to the hearing the parties
revi ewed and proposed -- |I'msorry, reviewed the
proposed exhi bits and stipulated that the foll ow ng
exhi bits should be admtted into the adm ni strative
record for this case. And that would be Exhibits 1
t hrough 20, 22, 23, and 24, and Exhibits 154 through
161, and Exhi bits 301 through 312.

['ll open it up. Do any of the parties
have any concerns or did | msstate any of those
nunber s?

Heari ng none, then those -- those exhibits
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are admtted into the admnistrative record at this
time.

(Exhi bits 1-20, 22-24, 154-161, and 301-312

adm tted.)

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  Prior to the hearing
McConnell filed a notion in |imne requesting that the
Hearing O ficer exclude a portion of Exhibit 151 and
all of Exhibits 152 and 153, and to prevent w tnesses
fromtestifyi ng about the substance of the portions
proposed to be excl uded.

The notion contained McConnell's argunents
in support of the exclusion. The notion was joined in
part by protestant David Tonthak.

Whi tt aker and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, who
identified those Exhibits 151, 152, and 153, prepared a

witten response to the notion in limne. | wll
provide the parties -- | have revi ewed those notions
and the responses, and | will provide the parties an

opportunity, though, to provide any additi onal
argunents at this tinme related to those notions. But
with a caveat that you don't need to restate what's in
the notion. | -- you know, that's already on the
record through the notion.
So, M. Bronley, anything nore to add?
MR. BROMLEY: Well, in | ooking at Rob's
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response, the notions were properly filed, were filed
based on | DAPA.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR. BROMLEY: Specifically cited Rule 600.
M. Harris in his response takes issue with citation to
| daho Rul es of Evi dence.

But | will note that while not conpletely
routine the Departnent in nearly every of the nagjor
delivery calls -- so Rangen, Surface Water Coalition,

Cl ear Springs, Blue Lakes, as well as nore recently in
the Water District 63 adm nistrative cases having to do
wth fill and refill of the Boise reservoirs -- took in
notions in limne, and at tines granted sone and at
times deni ed sone.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR. BROWLEY: So the -- you know, the notion in
M. Harris' response at the beginning that they were
sonehow not properly filed, | absolutely disagree wth.
They certainly were properly filed. It is the type of
noti on that the Departnent does take in cases, and
particularly with the delivery calls in the Water
District 63 nmatters when you have experts providing
expert testinony and expert reports.

And that was the concern with Exhibits 151,

152, 153 is that these are expert reports by an expert
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W t ness who has been retained and paid to testify in
this matter. So those were the concerns. | find that
the -- you know, the reports were properly fil ed.

M. Harris also provided citation to sone
ot her types of reports that the Departnment has taken
in, specifically --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Uh- huh.

MR. BROMLEY: -- sone of the Basin 74 contested
matters. There was a -- | think a reference to a
Bureau report, and then a Cheryl Chapman report that
had to do with high fl ow

Those are nice docunents. You know,
they're docunents that are in the public sphere that
were available for parties to go find, bring in. The
Exhi bits 152, 153 are very different that way. These
are, again, reports that were authored by an expert
who's being paid to testify in this contested case.
They're not reports in the sense that you find themin
t he public sphere.

You know, l|astly, Exhibit 151, as we stated
in the neno, the transfer was not filed to correct a
clerical error. So pages 1 through 8 are -- are -- you
know, just conpletely irrelevant to the way the
transfer was filed. And I'll get into that, then, |

guess with M. Contor when he takes the stand to

000014




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o 00 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 13
Audio Transcription

expl ain what he was -- what he was t hinking.
Two | ast points.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR, BROMLEY: The Kauer Ditch is not part of
this transfer. It may be an interesting sidenote, but
| -- it's not how the transfer was fil ed.

And then the last point is this Wittaker
ver sus Kauer 1956 | daho Suprene Court case that was a
deci sion involving the Wiittakers and the Kauers, it
sure |l ooks like a water rights decision to nme, and was
not carried forward into the SRBA. | don't see
reference to it anywhere.

M. Harris gave a citation to the Gty of
Bl ackf oot case for the proposition that the Departnment
does not enforce private agreenments. | agree with him

But the difference that we have here is on
the Gty of Blackfoot right, which I believe it was --
was it 1-181C? There's specific | anguage and ot her
conditions necessary for adm nistration of a water
right to a -- you know, an agreenent, a settl enent
agreenent, a private agreenent, an agreenent of sone
sort, to which the Departnent was not party, which is
t he reason, then, for, you know, both the Depart nent
and then the courts on up on appeal to say that it's --

it's not sonething that the Departnment enforces.
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And that's because there's | anguage on the
face of that right directing parties to an agreenent.
Very different than the water rights that we have here
in this case that have an absence of | anguage directing
sonmebody to an agreenent, you know, whether it's
bi ndi ng on anyone, whether it's private, whether it's
public. W just sinply don't have that on -- on any of
t hese water rights directing anyone to understand
anyt hi ng about an agreenent between private parties and
| think [unintelligible].

So that's -- you know, hopefully that's
responsive -- or ny reply to M. Harris' response. |
understand your ruling. And again, didn't want to just
conpletely reiterate what was in the original notion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.
MR, BROMLEY: So thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER | appreciate that.

M. Manwaring, did you have anythi ng nore
to add?

MR. MANWARI NG Just to nmake clarification on
t he basis of our joinder in part.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR MANVWARING If you'd | ook at Wiittakers
Exhi bit 151, which is an injury anal ysis docunent

provi ded by their expert witness, it, in our
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estimati on, unnecessarily focuses upon the Wittaker
ver sus Kauer decision that's on page 4 of that report,
and nmakes sone express statenents about sone cl ear
direction regarding water rights in that decision, and
then also refers to the Kauer Ditch at -- and either is
an express statenent or at |least an inference fromthe
report that sonmehow the Kauer Ditch and the Wittaker
ver sus Kauer deci si on have sone bearing upon the
heari ng t oday.

W see that they don't have any bearing
upon this hearing. | can't understand how that can be
relevant in any aspect of what you are nmaking a
determ nation on as relating to a change in diversion.

In addition, the Exhibit 153, which is the
Whi tt aker exhibit, also spends a good deal of tine
maki ng a hydrol ogi st opinion determ nation as to the
| ocati on, construction, and flow of the Kauer Ditch,
whi ch, again, isn't even at issue here.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.
MR MANWARING So |I'mnot sure why that's even
part of the discussion.

| know that in private conversations with
M. Harris before, it was explained that the Whittakers
were just hoping to show sone historic nature of water

use here.
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Well, this goes beyond just an historic
reference to what may have happened. This goes on to
an expl anation of water flows, topography, and even the
anal ysis and fl ow neasurenents that woul d be suggested
by a kind of potentials with the Kauer Ditch.

| don't see that that's relevant in any
aspect. As you |look in pages 4 through 8 of that
exhibit, it's again, Exhibit -- |let ne make sure we got
the right one -- Exhibit 153.

And then it al so nakes sone concl usi ons on
page 10 of that exhibit. And again, the concl usion
that's found on page 10 under Kauer Ditch, it sinply is
a conclusion that isn't pertinent to the facts before
this Hearing Oficer today as it relates to this change
in a point of diversion, particularly where there's
some question about observations on the use and current
conditions, cross-sections, and the |location and size
of the weir.

All of those have -- in ny estination, are
imaterial to what we're doing. And | think focusing
upon themis a red herring in this hearing and
shoul dn't be.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Thank you,
M. Manwari ng.
M. Harris?
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MR HARRI'S: Yeah, briefly.
M. Bromey indicated that the notion --
the notion in |imne was brought under Rule 600. And
while his notion cited, the menorandum didn't argue

fromthe standard.

So ny point in ny brief was that -- that
t he evidence that we've -- that we are presenting in
t hose reports neet the standard under Rule 600. | was

not aware of the Rangen decision, D strict 63 decisions
that M. Brom ey referenced. Had they been in his
menor andum | coul d have responded. But |'m not
famliar with those.

In terns of just the Kauer Ditch in
general, we think that historic adm nistration is
relevant. It provides a baseline so that the Hearing
O ficer understands at | east what was done on the
ground historically.

We do nmeke it clear, however, that we're
not asking the Hearing Oficer to enforce the
agreenent, rule on it, declare easenent rights,
anyt hi ng of that nature.

M. Contor's report on page 4 states, "The
Wi tt aker versus Kauer decision issued in 1956 provides
a clear description of the operation of the Kauer Ditch

and its relationship to the Wiittakers' water rights
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and the rights conveyed t hrough the Kauer Ditch."

So we're giving the Hearing Oficer sone
historic will context, which, again, we're at the
adm ssibility stage of evidence. It doesn't nmean it's
going to go to your weight, to the weight of the
evi dence, or be determ native. But certainly it neets,
| think, the initial standard of relevance.

We don't intend to spend a bunch of tinme on
it. But what M. Contor found is that -- that it at
| east appeared that in the sonetine recent past that
t hat ditch has been used, which will bolster the
testinony that nmy clients wll provide for it.

But as we say in our brief, we think this
matter can be determ ned under the injury and | ocal
public interest criteria in the -- outlined in the
code.

| DAR does not enforce private agreenents.
| could get into the detail of the Bl ackfoot case, but
| also think in terns of the just rel evance, one of the
e-mails that is included as an exhibit from McConnel |
is an e-mail fromGarrick Baxter citing that | ong case,
saying "We don't enforce private agreenents,”
specifically referring to this Kauer decision. So
again, that -- it's relevant because it's in the

docunent ati on.
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And then the last thing | would say is
that -- that as far as the first eight pages of
M. Contor's report, just kind of getting sone
background on whether this was a clerical correction or
an oversight, in M. King's report he offers -- in a
couple different | ocations he says, for exanple, on
page 1, "The point of diversion was inadvertently
omtted fromthe water right clainms filed in the SRBA "

And so what Bryce was asked to do was
simply to verify whether it was inadvertent or not. W
have di scovery responses indicating sonething
different. Wether or not that bears on your deci sion
IS up to you. But we are just trying to be responsive
to what's contained in the expert reports.

So on that basis we think they all should
be adm tted.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Thank you.

So |'ve reviewed the argunents raised in
the notion and the notion joining the notion in |imne,
and al so the response filed by Wittakers. |[|'ve also
revi ewed Exhi bits 151, 152, and 153, and find that they
do contain relevant information about the diversion
structures and the hydrol ogy of the Stroud Creek
drainage. This information is relevant to the issues

presented in this contested case.
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Therefore, | deny the notion in |imne.
The docunents in question were prepared by the
consultant, Bryce Contor. And so these exhibits wll
need sonme foundation laid by M. Contor before they'll
be admtted, and there nay be sone -- sone other
objections not related to rel evance that coul d be
rai sed at that tine.

So we'll save that for the tinme when
Protestants Wiittakers present their evidence.

And | do want to note, though, for those
people that may not be famliar with the Departnent's
Rul es of Procedure, that even if exhibits are admtted
into the record, it does not nean that | as the Hearing
Oficer will find them persuasive in deciding the case.

And in fact, Rule 600 of the Departnent's
Rul es of Procedure makes it clear that | can enpl oy ny
experi ence, technical conpetence, and specialized
know edge in evaluating evidence -- in evaluating the
evidence admtted into the adm nistrative record.

So with that, we wll nove on. Prior to
the hearing -- did w already talk about admtting all
the other? | think | did.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: The exhibits, we did,
yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFl CER: On the record | think |
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did tal k about admtting all the other exhibits.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. So then we coul d
turn now to the presentati on of evidence by the
appl i cant.

MR HARRIS: | have --

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  That's fine, M. Harris.

What do you have?

MR HARRIS: | just want to nmake sure the record
is clear. | think what | heard you say is because
M. Johnson wasn't here at the start of the neeting he
can't participate.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No.

MR HARRI'S: He's now here.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  He's now here. That -- |
shoul d note that on the record.

Thank you, M. Johnson. | apologize if
t here was sonme m scommuni cati on, the change in venue.
We'd sent an e-mail, but you may not be sonebody who
checks an e-mail every five mnutes |ike sone other
people in this room So | appreciate you bei ng here.
W' re also still mssing, though,
Prot estant Rosalie Ericsson.
MR HARRI'S: Right.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER: | had just noted that by
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not being here in person, you waive that ability to
participate in the hearing. But now that you're here,
we'll et you cross-exam ne w tnesses, as any of the
ot her parties may. And when we get to that part of the
heari ng, you can make a statenent on your own behal f,
too, M. Johnson. Thanks.

MR. BROMLEY: Just to nake the record clear,
then, M. Cefalo, so at 10: 20 you stated that both
St even Johnson and Rosalie Ericsson, because they were
not present, had waived their ability to participate.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER | apologize if | msstated
that. | just neant by not being here they effectively
are waiving their ability to participate in the
hearing. But now that M. Johnson is here, he can
participate in the hearing.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. And |I'mjust making the
record clear, then --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | apol ogi ze, yeah.

MR. BROMLEY: -- that at 10:40, 20 m nutes after
t hat the statenent had been nade, M. Johnson is now
present, and you're saying he is now allowed to
partici pate.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER He can

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yes.
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MR. BROMLEY: So then if Ms. Ericsson were to
cone in at any point during today or potentially
tonmorrow, if we're still here, would she then be able
to partici pate?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: She woul d, yes.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay.

THE HEARING CFFICER  1'Il let her cone late. |
nmean | don't know what her circunstances are. But of
course, during the tinme that she's not in this hearing,

there's testinony being given that is being given

W t hout -- you know, wi thout her participation in the
heari ng.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. | just want the record to
be cl ear.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  And there is an
opportunity, too, | guess, for parties who do not show
up at the hearing, you know, the Departnent's Rul es of
Procedure have a nechani sm where those non-appeari ng
parties can be defaulted froma hearing. And if she
doesn't appear, | guess, fromnow until the end we can
di scuss that at the end, if that's sonething that you
feel like is inportant that the Departnent take that
official step to default Ms. Ericsson fromthis case,

t hen, you know, |I'm not opposed to that. So we can

di scuss that, nmaybe at the end, see if she shows up.
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MR, BROMLEY: Sure.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Thank you, M. Bromey. |
apol ogi ze for any m sstatenents.

So as you -- you're free, M. Bronley, to
provi de an opening statenent if you want to, to provide
a roadmap for kind of how you' re going to present
evi dence and what your w tnesses may speak to, but you
don't have to.

MR, BROMLEY: You know, M. Cefalo, you are
certainly one of the better hearing officers that the
Depart nent has.

O course, Ms. Yenter, you are, too, when
you're serving in that capacity.

MS. YENTER It's okay.

MR. BROMLEY: You know, |'ve found that the
Departnent, you know, really is -- you all are up to
speed on these things. You ve |ooked at the exhibits
bef ore. You understand what the issues are. | -- you
know, I think we'd all like to get out of here --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER G eat.

MR. BROWMLEY: -- hopefully today. And, you
know, | just don't see a great need to do that.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

MR. BROMLEY: So | appreciate the opportunity,

but I -- 1 wll waive that.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:
MR. BROWVLEY: We will
first.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:
MR. BROMLEY: Scott Ki
second,
wat er mast er woul d be our
O course,

recal |

W tnesses that we're intending to call,

know, Bruce w ||
foundation as to,
will
observations as waternaster.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:

MR. BROMLEY: Great.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER
MR, BROMLEY:

MR McCONNELL: Yes.

MR. BROMLEY:
W t ness stand.
MR, McCONNELL: Ckay.
MR, BROM_EY:
book.

MR. McCONNELL: Ckay.

and then C ndy Yenter
third and fi nal
you know,

themif we deci de we need to.

provi de sone expert testinony,

So do you want to start,

And then we've got --

Ckay.
be calling Bruce M:Connel |

G eat .

who' s our expert

ng,
in her capacity as

W t ness.

reserve the right to

But t hose are the

just to, you
hopefully be able to | ay sone
you know, why we're here today, Scott

and then C ndy, her

Excel | ent .

Ckay.

Br uce.

Do you want to step up to the

this is our
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BRUCE McCONNELL,
havi ng been called as a witness by the Applicants, was

duly sworn and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFICER M. MConnell, do you
solemly affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give
is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth.

THE W TNESS: | do.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay. Have a seat.

And, M. Broml ey, you can proceed with
exam nati on.

MR. BROMLEY: Geat. Thank you.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BROMEY:

Q H , Bruce.

A H, Chris.

Q Bruce, would you pl ease state and spell
your nane for the record.

A Bruce McConnell, B-r-u-c-e,
Mc-Co-n-n-e-1|-1.

Q And, Bruce, when did you nove to the
property on Lee Creek?

A April 1993.
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Q Where did you nove fron?

A Li ncol n County, Montana.

Q And how | ong have you been irrigating and
ranchi ng?

A |'ve been irrigating for 28 years. 1've
been ranching for 40.

Q Have you been on the Water District 74Z
boar d?

A Yes.

Q And what is Water District 74Z?

A That is the Water District that adm nisters
the Lee Creek, Big Eight Mle Creek water

Q Ckay. So is that -- is that the drai nage
you're in?

A Yes.

Q All right. And how | ong have you been on
t hat board for and what positions have you hel d?

A | think from'94 to 2020 | believe | served

as the chairman.

Q And are you currently on the board?

A | don't know. | did not make the 2021
nmeet i ng.

Q Is there a reason for that?

A First Monday in March | didn't get back in

until three o'clock. So | was taking care of cows.
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Q Ckay. Ckay, Bruce, you understand that
we're here in a protested application for transfer.
Do you know the fol ks who have protested
your transfer?
A Yes, | do.
Q Ckay. Looking at your property, Bruce, 1'd
just like to tal k about how you used water a little
bit.

So what do you use water for at your

property?

A Irrigation for grazing and hay and
| i vestock water.

Q Ckay. And do you flood or sprinkler
irrigate?

A | flood.

Q 100 percent?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what do you raise on the

property?
A We're a cowcalf operation, beef cattle.
Q Then you irrigate pasture?

A Past ure and hay.

Q Ckay. And how nmany head of cattle?

A We average about 200. Approximately we're
|i ke 185 today.
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Q And, Bruce, based on your years of
experience, do you consider yourself an efficient
irrigator?

A Yes, | do.

Q Ckay. When you bought the property, Bruce,
in 1993, did anyone explain to you where water was
di verted fronf

A Darrell Nef, who owned the property where
the |lower diversion is |ocated, took me for a pickup
truck ride, showed nme the | ower diversion, took nme to
t he upper diversion.

Q And, Bruce, so the |lower diversion, is that
the diversion that we're tal king about the transfer --

A Yes, it is.

Q -- the section 20 diversion?

A Yes.

Q And then the upper diversion, that's the
section 30 diversion?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. | just wanted to nmake that clear.

MR HARRIS: Chris, could you just restate that
and nmake sure [unintelligible].

MR. BROMLEY: Sure thing, Rob. Yeah, | was just
asking just to nake sure that the -- when Bruce is

tal king about the | ower diversion, that's the diversion
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we're tal king about in this transfer proceedi ng.

MR HARRI'S: Wen you say "lower," | ower
downst r ean?

MR. BROMLEY: Correct. Yeah. Yeah.

MR, HARRI'S: Thank you.

MR. BROMLEY: Further downgradi ent on Lee C eek,
yep.

Q Ckay. So M. Nef, then, was expl ai ni ng
where water was diverted from

And he was the -- you said he was the prior
property owner?

A No. He owned the -- he owned the property
where the one diversion was at. And he had been there
since like 1949. He had irrigated it the previous
year, ran sone cattle there, so...

Q Ckay. So M. Nef's know edge, then, went
back to approxi mately 19497

A Yes, to ny understandi ng.

Q Ckay. And based on what was explained to
you by M. Nef, how do you divert water from Lee C eek
today? And is it any different than what was expl ai ned
to you by M. Nef?

A Today, no. It's -- we're -- we're not
using the | ower diversion today. But no, we -- we had

used the water, diverted the water since 1993 through

000032




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o 00 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 31
Audio Transcription

August 2020 usi ng both diversions.
Q Ckay. Thank you
So do you need both ditches to irrigate
your property with?

A Yes, | do.

Q And so by not being able to use the | ower
di version acre, you would have -- or have you taken
acres out of production?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So, Bruce, let's talk alittle bit
about this transfer. And if you wouldn't m nd, you've
got that exhibit book in front of you, if you could
turn to Exhibit 4. Just look quickly at that, and then
al so just have a quick | ook at Exhibit 5.

Do you recogni ze those letters, Bruce?

A | do the first one. | don't recall the
second one.

Q Ckay. Wll, let's talk about -- alittle
bit about Exhibit 4. So you had nentioned you had
st opped using the | ower diversion in August of 2020.

Wiy was that?

A Letter -- | received an e-nail from C ndy
Yenter, and a letter foll owing up days | ater.

Q And Exhibit 4, is this letter --

A Yes.
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Q

Exhi bit 47
A

-- that you were tal ki ng about ?

Ckay. And what does the letter explain in

It cane -- you know, that it's -- it was an

illegal diversion and we need to cease using it.

Q

Ckay. Exhibit 5, do you see whose nane is

at the top there on Exhibit 57

A

Q
A

wat er nast er

Q

up there at

A.
Q

Yes.

And who is Merritt Udy?

He is the watermaster on 70 -- he was the
in 2020 on 74Z.

Ckay. And the date of that letter is what
the very top?

August 6t h, 2020.

Ckay. And if we |look at Exhibit 4, what

was the date of that letter?

A
Q

August 6t h.

Ckay. And | see Merritt Udy was copied on

this Exhibit 4 letter.

A
Q

letter --

Do you see that at the botton?
Yes.
Ckay. So then Exhibit 5, this is a

see G ndy's signature on the second page,

and | see it's addressed to Merritt.

Do you see that second paragraph on the
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first page starting with "M . MConnell"?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. It says, "M. MConnell has agreed
verbally to close the diversion and has been instructed
in witing to conplete the closure no later than
Fri day, August 7, 2020."

Do you see that?
Yes.

Did you follow those instructions?

> O >

Yes.

Q Ckay. Al right. So you then had
instructions fromCndy with letters, and then it
sounded | i ke verbal instructions, to close the | ower
di ver si on.

And you -- and you did that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So then Exhibit 8, if you could turn
tothat. This is the -- the exhibit of the transfer,
whi ch, of course, is part of the Departnent's files.

But it just seened hel pful to have the docunent as a
speci fic docunent as an exhibit.

Do you -- do you recogni ze this application
for transfer, Bruce?

A Yes.

Q And it -- was this filed -- | mean, you
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know, we can go to the second page.

Do you see your signature there?

A Yes.

Q As your understanding, was this filed to
hel p address the concerns that were raised by G ndy?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Ckay. Bruce, we had sone
pre-hearing rulings fromthe Hearing Oficer that |
know you heard speaking to sone of the contents of the
expert reports fromthe Wi ttakers' side. So |I'm going
to ask you sone questions, then, that have to do with a
little bit of the topics in those reports, if that's
okay.

All right. So you understand that the --
there were protests filed against you by the
VWhittakers; correct?

A Yes.

Q And what did those protests explain, if you
remenber ?

A You know, | really don't recall. You know,
| get -- you know, I"'mnot -- |I'mnot sure.

Q Ckay. And, you know, we could | ook at
them but do you recall they wanted you to w thdraw the
application and there were references to Kauer Ditch?

A. Yeah.
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Q Sound about right?
A Yeah.
Q Ckay. Have you ever heard the Wittakers
di scuss this 1956 | daho Suprene Court case call ed
Wi t t aker versus Kauer?
A Not that | can recall.
Q Ckay. Exhibit 22, if you could turn to
t hat .
What's Exhi bit 22?
A A warranty deed to the property we own on
Lee Creek.
Q Ckay. And do you see anything in
Exhi bit 22 that references any sort of agreenent or
encunbrance on the part of -- of anybody dealing with
an | daho Suprene Court case or any kind of agreenent?
A No.
Q Ckay. Let's look at Exhibit 23, then
What's Exhi bit 23?
A It's a copy of the title insurance received
when we purchased the property.
Q Ckay. And | -- now, turn, then, to the
second page, which is Schedul e A
It 1 ooks |ike you bought the property in
fee sinple on |ine 27?

A. Yes.
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Q Ckay. Anything on Schedule A that you see
that references an agreenent with the Whittakers or a
reference to an |Idaho Suprene Court case?

A No.

Q Al right. Schedule B, which would then be
the third and fourth pages of that exhibit. These are
t he exceptions to the title policy, the land that you
bought in fee sinple absolute. And we have enunerated
exceptions 1 through 16.

In any of those exceptions, do you see
anything that would alert you to any prior agreenents
or reference to an |Idaho Suprene Court case dealing

with Whittakers or this Wi ttaker versus Kauer case?

A No.

Q Are you famliar with your water rights,
Bruce?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Are you famliar wth anything on
the face of your water rights that woul d explain an
agreenent with the Wiittakers with reference to an
agreenent or this |Idaho Suprene Court case?

A No.

Q The transfer that you filed, Bruce, is to
add an Exhibit A it shows it was to add this | ower

diversion; is that correct?
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A. Yes.

Q Does it have anything to do with the Kauer

A No.
Q Let's | ook back at Exhibit 5.

And in the one, two, three -- the fourth
par agr aph below the two bullets, starting "Based on the
i nvestigation,"” do you see that paragraph?

A Yes.

Q Do you see a reference to a Water Ri ght
74- 1577

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And there are a few ot her.

Do you see another reference to it in the
third bullet below that? Do you know anyt hi ng about
this Water Right 74-157?

A | was not aware of it until July of 2020
that it even exi sted.

Q Ckay.

A Al'l the records | have showed no 74-157.

Q And so when you say "all the records,"” what
records are you tal king about?

A | was -- received from Cal Wiittaker a copy
of all the water rights on Lee Creek and, you know, a

list of -- handwitten nostly of who they -- where they
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were and who they were at the tine. So it was, you
know, probably 1994, and this was -- you know, the
handwitten with priority dates and di versi on points
and, you know, place of use.

Q And was that in your capacity as chair of
Water District 74Z7

A It was -- you know, | don't remenber how
long I'd been in possession. You know, like |I said, it
goes back to probably '93/' 94.

Q Ckay. So those records, then, from'93/'94
until this August 6th of 2020, you're -- what you're
testifying to is that you hadn't seen a reference to
the --

A Never knew it exi sted.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. That is all | have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. So we can wor k our
way around the room

M. Johnson, did you have any questions for
M. MConnel | ?
MR. JOHANSON: Not at this tinme, | don't.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.
M. Manwari ng?

MR MANWARI NG Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Go ahead.

MR. MANWARI NG  Thank you.
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CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR NMANWARI NG

Q Is it okay if | call you "Bruce"?
A Yes.
Q It's better than what your nmom cal ls when

you're in trouble; right?

A Ri ght. Right.

Q Bruce, did you ever have a water right on
Stroud Creek?

A | had a water right on Lee Creek.

Q So not on Stroud Creek?

A Well, Stroud Creek is a tributary to Lee
Creek. The old water rights refer to Left Fork Lee
Creek, Ri ght Fork Lee Creek.

Q What may hel p us, Rob, if you have your
Googl e Earth that you can illustrate, so we can ki nd of
get a better sense where we're at.

MS. YENTER | think you just turned the -- you
may have shut the slider on the |ight too.

THE HEARING OFFICER: | pulled the slider too.

MS. YENTER  Yeah.

MR. MANWARI NG Looks |ike the snow start so
far.

MR, HARRI S: It's got to warmup. Sorry about
t hat .
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UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: May | turn off these
front |ights?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:.  Yeah. Sure.

M5. YENTER  Yeah, if you can figure them out.
Sur e.

MR HARRIS: So two prograns. This is RE S that
has sone water right --

MR MANWARING |I'mlooking for the -- like a
Googl e Earth [unintelligible].

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: [Uni ntel ligible.]

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: [Unintel ligible.]

MR HARRIS: And then here is -- here is Google.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  There we go.

MS. YENTER. There we go.

MR, MANWARI NG There we go.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  That's good.

MS. YENTER  Yeah.

MR HARRIS: Okay. So this is the -- |I'm going
to forget her nane.

THE W TNESS: Cal Wiittaker, Rosalie Ericsson's.

MR. HARRI S: Ericssons.

MR MANWARING If you go out a little bit nore.
Right. Yeah, right there is good.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

MR MANWARING Now, M. Hearing Oficer, |
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don't know -- it may be nore hel pful for me to wal k up
and poi nt out places --

M5. YENTER Do you have a pointer?

MR MANWARING -- just so we can orient
everybody to where we're at.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Feel free to cone on up.
That's fine.

MR. MANWARI NG  Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. At one point we had a
| aser pointer in here. | don't knowif we still do.
We don't. That's okay. Cone on up if you'd like.

MR MANWARI NG | have a finger pointer.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  That's good.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: | m ght have a | aser.

M5. YENTER  There you go.

Q (BY MR MANWARING: M intention, just to
make sure we're all oriented as what we're tal king

about in this drainage up there with the different

cr eeks.
Ckay?
A Ckay.
Q The one creek over on this side, is that

Lee Creek? Wuld you agree with that?
A Yes. That would be, | believe, what they
call the R ght Fork of Lee Creek.
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Q And there's also a drainage here that's
Por cupi ne Creek?

A Yes.

Q And does that flow into Lee Creek?

A It flows into the Right Fork of Lee Creek,
| believe they call it, yes.

Q Ckay. And it's roughly down through this

section?
A Yeah.
Q And then you have over on the -- this

illustration we're |l ooking at the far right bottom
area, you have another creek that cones in that's known
as Everson Creek?

A Yeah, | -- it's -- it's also referred to as
Lee Creek, because Everson and Stroud cone together,
and |I''m not sure what -- you know, whether they call it

Stroud Creek or whether they call it the Left Fork of

Lee Creek.
Q Ckay.
A "' m not sure.
Q You're not sure. But there is an Everson

Creek out here that cones --
A. No, | think it's farther up, but --
Q Ckay.

A -- | was going to say, |I'mnot -- you know,
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it's -- yeah.

Q And it joins into Stroud Creek?

A Yes, | believe so.

Q And then Stroud Creek is the one that
conti nues on down and has a confluence with Lee Creek?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So those are the four nmin
tributaries that we're tal ki ng about ?

A Yes.

Q And ny earlier question to you was if
you' ve ever had a water right that said it was on
Stroud Creek.

| think your testinony was it was Lee Creek

or Right Fork Lee Creek?

A | -- 1 believe that --

MR, BROWMLEY: (bjection. The water rights speak
for thensel ves.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  Noted on the record.

You can answer that, M. MConnell.

THE WTNESS: | -- | believe they refer to
Everson, Stroud, nostly the Left Fork of Lee Creek.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG):  Ckay.

A Yeah.

Q So while you're sitting here, do you know

your water rights that you're tal king about that you
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want to change the diversion on, does that say Ri ght
Fork Lee Creek or just say Lee Creek?

A Lee Creek.

Q Lee Creek. Ckay. And is it in your mnd
that that Lee Creek constitutes all of this drai nage?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. That's what you're sayi ng?

A That's ny under st andi ng.

Q That's your understanding. GCkay. And your
di versi on, what you tal ked about the upper diversion
and the | ower diversion --

A Yes.

Q -- was that | ower diversion upstream from

t he confl uence of Stroud Creek?

A No.
Q It was bel ow Stroud Creek?
A It would be downstream yes. You know,

because those two converge sonmewhere, you know,
upstream fromthe | ower diversion.

Q Ckay. And your current request, your
current application is to request a diversion further
bel ow t hat | ower diversion?

A No, no, no, no, no. It's just the | ower
di version was not a legal diversion; it was not carried

through the SRBA. So we're trying to reinstate it.
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Q So you're trying to establish what you had
t hought was a | ower diversion that you had?

A Ri ght, right.

Q Ckay. And you're saying that is bel ow the

confl uence of Stroud Creek?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A At this tine.

Q Ckay.

A I don't know what's happened over the | ast

century, but...

MR MANWARING Can we enlarge it a little bit
up in this section up here, Rob?

MR HARRIS: Are you wanting to see where the
di version points are at?

MR, MANWARI NG No.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

MR. MANWARI NG  Just the general |lay of --

Q Can you identify, Bruce, |ooking at this
illustration, as to where your -- say let's say where
you're flood irrigating your pasture at, where would
t hat be?

A Ckay. It would be --

MR HARRIS: W got to zoom out.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER WAy out.
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THE WTNESS: W got to go out. Yeah, we're
probably -- okay. | would say we're right in there is
going to be where we start the pasture, | would say,
yes. That's -- yes. So yeah, this -- if you nove the
pointer up to the left a little bit, right -- kind of
right in there, that's -- that's the -- you know, where
we start it, that's pasture we irrigate.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : Ckay. And your
di versi on cones down here and takes the water out of
Lee Creek, from our discussion today, what you're
saying is Lee Creek; right?

A Ri ght.

Q And it runs that direction?

A Yes.

Q That's nostly |ike an east, northeast
di recti on?

A Yeah. |'mnot sure.

Q Sufficiently it's not runni ng west anyway,

we know t hat nuch?

A No, no, no.

Q Ckay.

A But it's just...

Q Ckay. And is this where your -- |ike your

hay woul d be?

A Farther -- they need to go up.
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Q Further up?

A Yes, yes.

Q Ckay.

A You know, kind of up and over to the right,
| believe.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yes.
Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : Ckay. Now, this --

this --

MR. HARRI S: Zoom back in?

Q (BY MR MANWARING : -- area right here,
right there, what -- is this part of your -- is that a
stream channel, or is that a ditch you -- that's on

your | and? Do you know?

A | believe that is a ditch.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: [Unintelligible.]

Q (BY MR MANWARING : And is this part of
t he stream channel, this other |ooked |ike a channel

t hr ough t here?

A Can we zoomdown a little bit?
Ckay. | -- 1 -- 1 was -- okay. | believe
this is the lower ditch. | believe this is the stream
l'"mnot sure. It's not -- it's not real clear.

Q No, | agree with you on that. W're just
trying to get a fair idea where we're at. And |'mjust

trying to help nyself understand what you have in m nd
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when you're tal king about where your property is and

where your water diversions are.

Is this -- is this |land yours, too, this?
A. No. | believe that is -- | believe that is
the -- to the left there, | believe, is BLM and then

to the right would be Darrell Nef's property, Steven
Johnson property.

MR HARRIS: So just for the record, if this
hel ps: The red area, | believe, is your property;
right, M. MConnell? Does that | ook about right?

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

MR HARRIS: | zooned in way too far. There we
go.

So the red dot is the | ower point of
di version, the one you're trying to add.

The black line is the BLM property.

M. Johnson's property is outlined in
this -- this kind of |ight blue color.

Does that seem about right?

THE W TNESS: Yeah, yeah.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

THE WTNESS: That's nuch clearer.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : Roughly where
everybody's at?

A Yeah, yeah.
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MR. BROMLEY: M. Hearing Oficer, just to make
the record clear -- and I"'mnot wanting to cut anybody
off. | just want the record to be clear that -- |I'm
all for efficiency, and so | don't have a problemwth
Rob Harris, who was just naking the verbal conmments on
the screen trying to show property boundari es during
M. Manwaring's cross-exam nation of Bruce. | don't
have a problemw th that.

Il just -- since we have a recordi ng goi ng
and we've got a new voice that's cone in, | just want
the recording to be clear that Rob Harris was asking
questions during Kipp Manwaring's cross of Bruce.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: | appreciate that.

Thanks.

MR, BROMLEY: Thank you.

MR, MANWARI NG W can go back to Googl e.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : And you cane onto the

property in the 1990s | think you nmenti oned?

>

Yes, 1993.

Q s that when you were first famliar with
t hi s whol e area?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And did you have any prior

under standi ng of the historical water flow that would
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have been experienced in the Lee Creek area?

A Not really.

Q Ckay. Now, let's see. [|I'mgoing to show
you what's an exhibit that we have. WMike sure we have
that [unintelligible]. 307 and 309.

MS. YENTER. 307 and 309. Ckay.

MR MANWARING Now I'mdistracted by a fish.
Where did that fish go?

MR HARRIS: Sorry. It happens when | do
sonet hi ng new. W can cl ose that up.

M5. YENTER  The hunm ng's not bothering ne too
bad. It's all right.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : Bruce, you've been
handed an exhibit that's Exhibit 307.

Do you recogni ze what that's show ng?

A Yes.

Q Wiat is -- what's being shown in
Exhi bit 3077

A Ckay. It was Novenber 9th water being
di verted through the | ower diversion, which is not --
was not a | egal diversion.

Q But it -- but this is what you're
describing at the | ower diversion, that's what |I'm
trying to establish.

A Ri ght, right.
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Q I'"'mnot really trying to establish that
you're diverting water. |I'mjust trying to establish
where that is.

A Yes. That was -- yes, that was the | ower
diversion. It was after the waternmaster went off, and
so. ..

Q Ckay. And is that a weir that's being
depicted in there?

A Yes.

Q And that's on Lee Creek?

A Yes. Wll, no, it's not on -- it's -- it's
a weir on -- for Lee Creek water, yes.

Q Ch, okay.

THE HEARI NG CFFICER  But, M. MConnell, it's a
weir on the |ower ditch?

THE W TNESS: Ri ght .

THE HEARI NG OFFICER.  This -- this shows water
flowmng in the lower ditch headed to the north?

THE W TNESS: Ri ght .

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

MR. MANWARI NG Okay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Go ahead.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : And Exhibit 309, do
you recogni ze what that's show ng?

A. That's the diversion on the | ower ditch.
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Q That's the headgate?

A Yes.

Q And is this the sane point roughly we're
tal ki ng about, one's a weir, one's the headgate on that
| ower area?

A Can you repeat, please? Speak a little
cl earer, | ouder.

Q Be happy to. Thank you

Exhi bit 307 and 309, how close in proximty
are they to each other?

A Ch, maybe 500 yards, sonething |ike that.
| * m guessi ng.

Q Ckay. And 309 being the headgate, what
does that headgate control ?

A That's the diversion on Lee Creek. So to
the right would be Lee Creek, to the left would be
di tch.

Q Your ditch. Is this the ditch we were
| ooking at on the illustration that flows up through
your fields?

A Now, run that by me again, please.

Q Is this -- when you say "the ditch," is
that the ditch you were referring to that runs towards
your fields that we were | ooking at on the

illustrations?
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A It's one of the two, yes --

Q One of the two?

A -- that supply water to the -- supply
irrigation water to the property.

Q Ckay. Ckay. The upper diversion you were
tal king about earlier in your testinony, where is that
inrelation to this lower diversion, this weir that's
in 3077

A Ch, |1'm guessing naybe a quarter of a mle
to the south and west. Cuessing.

Q Ckay. And is it the upper diversion that
you' ve been nainly using to get water down your ditch
to your pasture, to your hayfields?

A No. It -- prior to August of 2020, the
| ower diversion carried the lion's share of the water.

Q Ckay. Did you use the upper diversion to
di vert anything down that ditch?

A We used -- we've -- yes, we've -- you know,
t he upper ditch doesn't carry the water. Use it every
year, except in a couple of really super short water
years, we have shut that top diversion off to put
t oget her enough water to try to have sonething to do
there. So we have used -- you know, historically
95 percent of the year we use both diversions, you

know, season | ong.
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Q Ckay. Wien you say you shut the upper
di version off, can you hel p ne understand what you're
meani ng by that?

A We put the water back in the creek to catch
it at the |lower diversion. So then sone real short
wat er years, you split the water, you don't have enough
to do anything with.

Q Ckay. Now | understand what you're telling
us.

Have you tried using just the upper
di version to get water down to your fields?

A Well, we have since August of 2020, yes,
that's what we're using. But no, it doesn't -- you
know, it's through the last -- through the -- | think
we' re maybe one-and-a-half cfs is about the nbost water
t hat was recorded t hrough that upper diversion.

Q s there any way you can run a little ditch
fromthe upper diversion that goes into your -- the
| ower one that's been used fromthe south diversion
poi nt ?

A Wel |, the upper diversion won't carry the
water, no. |It's just -- it's not -- there's sonething
happens with the -- no, there's just not -- a person
could -- yeah, you could catch -- you could catch -- we

can dump water fromthe top ditch down into the | ower
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ditch, yes.

Q You could. Ckay. Wat you're saying is
you haven't been experienci ng enough head fl ow of water
fromthe upper diversion?

A No, there's not the water there.

Q ' mgoing to hand you Exhi bit 306.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:. [Unintel ligible.]

MR MANWARING [Unintelligible] young
[unintelligible].

Q So you' ve been handed Exhi bit 306, Bruce.

Do you recogni ze what that's show ng?

A Yes. That's the neasurenent device on the
upper ditch.

Q So this would be the weir on the upper
ditch?

A Ri ght .

Q And this is what you' ve referred to as the
upper diversion?

A Yes.

Q And from your | ooking at Exhibit 306, what
you're saying is fromthat weir that you can't get
enough water flow through that upper diversion to get
down to your field; is that what you' re saying?

A Wll, it's what -- it has historically not

carried enough water to -- no. Yeah, it's -- it's --
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that was -- that upper diversion irrigates one part,
and then it goes over across the road. And, you
know -- you know, crosses the road into another piece
of property. But no, there's not enough -- in ny
experi ence, you know, frombasically |I'm speaking from
August of 2020, you know, so it's a rather short period
of tine.

Q Ckay. So you've got a limted experience
in seeing what you can transfer through that upper
di ver si on?

A Ri ght .

Q And | think your testinony was before
August 2020 you were primarily, if not exclusively,
using the | ower diversion?

A Yes. In a-- in a couple different years

we used the | ower diversion exclusively.

Q Ckay.
A You know, | ater season.
MR MANWARI NG Ckay. | don't have any ot her

questions of Bruce.
Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay. M. Harris. Wit.
Let ne -- we're working around.
Ms. Foster, anything.
M5. FOSTER | don't have anyt hi ng.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Okay. M. Harris?
MR. HARRI S: Let me turn this back on.

CRGOSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HARR S:

Q M. MConnell, 1've -- |'ve taken notes of
your testinony, so | apologize if | junp around a
little bit, but I just want to clarify sone of your

t esti nony today.
A Can you speak up a little bit, please?

Q Yeah. Do you need ne to get a little

A No, no, just...

Q Ckay. | just want to clarify alittle bit
of your -- or sone of your testinony. And the first
thing I think we'll do is just kind of orient us around

your di versions.
Maybe we can -- how nuch water are you

entitled to divert to your property? Do you know?

A 15.2 cfs, | believe.

Q Ckay. Does the lower ditch have the
capacity to carry all 15.2 cfs?

A No. It will probably carry naybe 12, 13.
You know, this is -- this is a guesstimte. Yeah.

Q And t he upper ditch, any estimte on what
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it could carry?
A 4, 5, 6, maybe.
Q You nentioned a M. Nef.
Is that spelled N-e-f?
A | believe it was two -- I"'mnot sure if

there was two "f's" or one "f."

Q Do you know when he owned what i s now your
property?

A He never owned our property.

Q Ckay. What -- how was he famliar with

water distribution in this |ocation?

A The | ower diversion was on his pl ace
approximately 3, 400 yards fromhis residence. And he
had -- when we | ooked at the place to purchase in 1992,
he was irrigating the place and running live -- his
i vestock there.

Q So did he own or operate what's now t he
St even Johnson property?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Could you just give ne sone nore
detail on the conversations you had with him

A Just took a ride in his pickup truck,
showed ne, "Ckay, this is where the top diversion's at.
This is where the bottomdiversion's at."

Q So when you say "the top diversion,"” you're
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talking wwth the upper -- your upper and | ower
diversion; is that right?

A Right. Right.

Q Did he take you on a drive further up the
Stroud Creek drai nage or anywhere el se?

A No.

Q So it was pretty limted to just --

A Took -- yeah, took it to this -- this
diversion right -- that's as far as we went was --
woul d have been this one right here, our well, yeah.

Yeah, that was...

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  The upper ditch?

THE W TNESS: Ri ght .

Q (BY MR HARRI S): Ckay. And when you
pur chased the property, how did you find out about
Water District 74Z7

A | was just handed -- the realtor give ne a
copy of water rights, you know, show ng what water was
deeded or cane with the place.

Q But you eventually becane aware there was
an organi zed water district that elects a waternmaster;
is that right?

A Yes, sonetine probably -- woul d have been
sonetine in '94, probably.

Q And you say you served on that advisory
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committee or on the board of that water district?

A Yes.

Q Did you -- at that tinme did you neet
M. Janmes Wi ttaker or anyone fromhis famly?

A l'm-- he attends every water neeting,
every -- yeah, he attended every 74Z water neeting, so
yes.

Q Did you, as part of that role, did you try
to famliarize yourself with the water rights that were
delivered to that water district and how -- and how
hi storically they were adm ni st ered?

A No.

Q What did you do, then, as -- in your role
on the board?

A Basically, just ran the neeting as a
chai rman, so...

Q And so was it your understandi ng that on
this | ower diversion, and the upper, that whatever
wat er was avail able at Lee Creek you would just divert?
O were you aware there were potentially other sources
injecting water into Lee Creek?

A Woul d you rephrase the question, please?
You're not --

Q It wasn't very well worded, so | can do

t hat .
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Was it your understandi ng of your water
rights that if there was water physically avail able at
your | ower or upper diversions you would just divert
it, whatever was physically there?

A No. No. Because it's -- it was
quantified. So no, | -- no, that was supposed to be
the watermaster's job. So no, no. | was aware that
no, that I was -- should be limted to the water right.

Q You're correct. But with that limtation
were you -- if water was physically avail able and your
water rights were in priority, then the watermaster
woul d say you could take water through those
di versions; correct?

A Yeah, but the watermaster was pretty iffy.
So he woul d basically control -- because all the junior

rights are upstream so..

Q WAas it your understanding that you could
file a delivery call against those junior users to
divert from your diversion points?

A You know, | really wasn't aware of it, no,
because | thought -- | thought that was the
wat ermaster' s j ob.

Q Ckay. M. Bronl ey asked you severa
questions about Exhibits 4 and 5. And |I want to ask

you a little bit about that.
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What -- did you file a delivery call for
Water Ri ght 74-157, which is Whittakers' rights in
20207

A No.

Q Wiy then was there an adm ni stration
di spute in 20207

A That was between IDWR and them No. | did
not file a call on that, no. | becane aware of it when
about a third of ny water wasn't there anynore. So |
made a contact to the watermaster. And no. No, | did
not make a call on that water.

Q Well, and maybe we just have to define sone
terns. But | think when you say you called the
wat ermaster, | would call that a deliver call. You --
you were trying to call out a junior to provide water
to your rights.

s that what you did?

A No. | called himand asked him "Were did
my water go?"

Q And when you say "Were did ny water go?"
was that at both diversion points or just the upper or
t he | ower?

A Yeah, a conbi nati on.

Q Ckay. And then do you know what t hat

wat ermaster did? And I"'msorry. Let ne strike that.
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Was that Merritt Udy that you call ed?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. \What happened after that?
A | really don't know. He said there was
somet hi ng goi ng on between IDAR.  And it took, oh,
t wo- and-a-half, three weeks to get reconcil ed.
Q Since you' ve owned the property, do you
interact on a -- well, I'lIl ask it this way.
How often do you see or visit with either

Janes Wi ttaker or Jordan Wi ttaker?

A Maybe once a year, twi ce a year.

Q So not very frequently?

A No.

Q Ckay. Have you ever had a discussion wth

t hem about the water rights on the Stroud Creek
dr ai nage?

A Not really.

Q Ckay.

A Not that | can recall.

Q And in your discovery responses you
indicated that the first tine you becane aware of the

Kauer Ditch was in 2015; is that right?

A. | was aware of the Kauer Ditch. You know,
there was -- there was -- it was kind of one of those |
was never to the Kauer Ditch diversion until early July
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of 2014. That was -- that was how they told ne that's
how it worked.

Q Ckay. And who took you up there? Was it
t he wat er nast er ?

A | believe | went up there with Tom Udy, the
wat ermaster, in 2014. Yes, in early July of 2014.

Q And what did he tell you about that ditch?

A That -- just that's where they had --
that -- that's where they were diverting sone water.
You know, that's where they were turning the Everson
and Stroud water. And up to and including 2014, the

Everson Stroud water was sent across through that Kauer

Dtch --

Q To then --

A -- to intercept sonepl ace down Porcupi ne,
Lee Creek.

Q And then that water would go into Lee
Creek, which would nmake its way down to your
di versions; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. In -- well, let ne ask it this way.

You know who Scott King is; correct?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. And he has prepared an expert report

in this matter.
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Have you fam liarized yourself wth that

report?

A |'ve | ooked through it.

Q Ckay. |'ll have you turn to -- it's
Exhibit 1 in the binder.

A This one? Ckay. Here it is. | got it.

Q 'l have you turn to page 13.

Turn on the lights.

A Page 13 in Exhibit 17

Q Correct.

A It is -- there's no --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  (Onh.

MR. BROMLEY: OCh, yeah, you have a spare copy.

THE W TNESS: Gkay. Page 137

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Correct. There's a map
represented on there fromthe 1970 Lenmhi adjudication.
And the report, which has been admtted i nto evidence,
seens to indicate that originally there was just a
single point of diversion, which would have been your
upper diversion, and then the ditch bifurcated as it --
shortly after it was diverted fromthe | ower diversion.

Do you see that?

A Yeah, | -- 1 -- 1 -- yeah, | see. Yeah.
Q In -- in your conversations with M. Nef,
did he ever describe this situation, that -- that the
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ditch actually started from one point of diversion and
split into two?

A No.

Q So evidently at sone point the decision was
made by a prior owner to then just add the | ower

di versi on point and hook into one of those branches; is

that --
A | don't know.
Q Ckay. You don't have any know edge of --
A No.
Q -- of that?
Ckay. In your testinony you said you

recei ved docunents from Cal Whittaker on Lee Creek and
who t hey were.
Wio is Cal Wiittaker?

A Cal Wiittaker was the secretary of the 74z
District from'94 through -- | don't know, naybe 2010.
"' mnot sure. You know, he got old and wasn't able to,
so. ..

Q And was it just water right records that he
gave you, or was there --

A No.

Q -- explanations of how they were
adm ni stered or anything |like that?

A It was just a list of water rights, owners,
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pl ace of use, quantity, point of diversion.

Q Ckay. D d he discuss with you at all any
of the Stroud Creek water rights, or did it include the
Stroud Creek water rights, to the best of your

recol |l ecti on?

A It -- it included Lee Creek water rights,
so yes. Stroud Creek, | think technically, is part of
Lee Creek.

Q Ckay. Part of the -- part of the drai nage?

A Right. Right.

Q Yeah. In this expert report from M. King,
he i ndicates that the | ower point of diversion was
i nadvertently omtted fromclains filed in the SRBA

Is that -- did you tell himthat? Do you

agree with that statenent, that it was an om ssi on?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. In what way?

A | just always assuned they were in the sane
40. Been receiving water fromfive different
wat ernmasters for 27 years, so...

Q And you actually filed late clains in the
Snake Ri ver Basin Adjudication; correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And that was in 2014 --

A Yes.

000069




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o 00 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 68

Audio Transcription

Q -- shortly after they stopped taking
clains?

A Yes.

Q What -- how did you know that you needed to

now file clainms in the SRBA water case?

A Ch, | was contacted by | DWR Boi se.

Q And told that your rights were on record,
but no clains had been filed; is that right?

A They -- well, they -- they, yeah, we had
to -- we had to file because we were never given second
noti ce from I DWR

Q And if | understand your testinony, you
just took the sane descriptions fromthe Lenhi
adj udi cation and put themin the Snake Ri ver Basin
Adj udi cation cl ains; correct?

A | think so, yeah. |'mnot going to say
absol utely.

Q Ckay. So you didn't have direct
i nvol venent .

Did you |l et your attorney, M. Bronmey --
Yes.

-- handle all that?

> O >

Yes.
Q Ckay. But at that point you acknow edge

you didn't include in your clains the | ower diversion
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poi nt ?
A Ri ght.
Q Even though it has been in existence for --
do you have any idea how long it's been in existence?
A | would -- probably goes back to 1880s, |'m

guessing. You know, it's been the primary source of

water comng to the place -- you know, and all | can
say, what | knowis from 1993 on. You know, that's
what -- what |'ve talked to one of -- Steve -- one of

t he previous people that |lived there, you know, that
they were there fromlike through the '50s and early
"60s. And yes, that was -- that was the water --
that's what they had did prior to...

Q | probably didn't ask ny question very
well, so | apol ogi ze.

Do you -- there's a map from 1970 t hat
shows there was only one diversion point. At sone
poi nt there were two.

Do you have any idea when the second one

woul d have been added?

A | would bet that it was added way on before
1970.

Q So you think that nap was i naccurate?

A | don't know.

Q Ckay. In your -- the questioning from
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M. Bromey, | believe | heard you say that Stroud
Creek comes into Lee Creek above both of your diversion
poi nts.
Did | understand your testinony correctly?

A | don't think -- Stroud Creek cones in kind
of in between them you know, and -- at present day.
You know, what -- what -- | have never -- | had never
spent that much time in that creek until |ast sunmer.
So yeah, at the present tine Stroud Creek cones in real
cl ose, cones in below ny upper diversion.

Q And is that based upon your own
observati on?

A Yes, that's what -- yeah.

Q So you would agree that right now it cones
i n bel ow your upper diversion point?

A Yes.

Q What i s your understandi ng of the concerns
of the protestant with this transfer?

A | don't know.

Q But you've reviewed their protests?

A Looked it over, yeah.

Q Ckay. |If the transfer was granted and the
| ower diversion point was an authorized point of
di versi on, you would have a senior right to call out

juniors on Stroud Creek.
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Do you understand that?

A well, you know, yeah, | -- no, you're --
you're -- you know, I"'mgoing to -- you're
separating -- you're calling Stroud Creek a separate
dr ai nage.

Q No. It's a tributary. But physically if
it cones in bel ow your upper diversion point, if you
nove bel ow that confl uence, you inprove your access to
wat er supply, and you're now in a position to call out
junior water rights up Stroud Creek and demand t hat
wat er cone down to your |ower diversion point.

Do you understand that?

A Yeah.

Q Is that your intent with this transfer, is
to do that?

A My intent is to be able to capture ny
seni or water rights.

Q But you would -- you would agree with ne
you woul d i nprove your position by adding the | ower
di versi on point, because then you woul d now be bel ow
t he confl uence of Stroud Creek and Lee Creek?

MR. BROMLEY: (Objection. |It's the ultinmate
deci sion of the Hearing Oficer to make that deci sion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Sust ai ned. Move on.

MR HARRIS: Well, I'"masking if that's his
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intent, to call for that water at the | ower diversion
point. So | think it's a different question.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER Do you intend to nmake a

call agai nst upstreamjuniors on Stroud Creek noving

f or war d?
THE WTNESS: | want -- 1'd |like to have ny
senior water rights filled. So if a call is what |

woul d need to do, yes.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.
Q (BY MR HARRIS): In your testinony with
M. -- or your questions with M. Brom ey, he referred
you to Exhibits 4 and 5.
And, Scott, do we need to give you back
your expert report?

MR. BROMLEY: Are you done with it?

MR HARRIS: | amdone with it for right now,
yeah. | just don't want to get it mxed up in all the
exhi bi ts.

Q On Exhibit 5 there was sonme instructions

that the waternaster received from C ndy Yenter.
Do you see those instructions at the bottom
of the first page of the letter?
A Yes.
Q Did you participate or receive a report of

any of those neasurenments that were called out in the
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[unintelligible]?

A. No, not -- not that | recall, no.

Q Ckay. What -- what conmmuni cation did you

have with Ms. Yenter during the course of this 2020
adm ni stration di spute?

A | had a tel ephone conversation after |
spoke with Merritt Udy in June of what was goi ng on
and --

Q What did she tell you was goi ng on?

A They were checking into, you know, that
74-157 or that right. There was a spring right that
was in -- you know, they had concerns with or
sonet hi ng, so..

Q Ckay. And anything else in that phone
cal | ?

A Not that | recall, no.

Q So that was one call

Was t here subsequent phone calls or

conmmuni cati ons?

A Possibly. |'mnot sure.

Q You' re not sure or you don't recall?

A Il -- I don't recall.

Q Ckay. Well, | think that's all in there.

Do you have the ability to clean your upper

ditch? Have you gone in and cleaned it out?
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A No. We're in the process -- we were going
to do it last fall. But it's on BLM and it took them
li ke 60 days to cone take a look at it before the --
we -- they nade the -- it was a [unintelligible] ditch
and that we could clean it. But no, it took us 60 days
or longer to get themto conme visit the ditch. And so
we were going to do it last fall, but the weather got
issues with it.

Q And sonetines different words mean
different things to different people. But when | use

the word "cleaning,” that's just -- just restoring it
to what was there before.

Were you proposing to BLMto actually
enlarge the ditch and nake it bigger than what was
originally there?

A You know, | don't recall the conversation.
You know, it was out with Linda Price and Chad Zen
[ phonetic] and -- on an afternoon. And so, you know,
there was just conversation back and forth, but...

Q Ckay. And -- but your intent was just to
go clean it out to approximately the same di mensi ons of
the ditch that's there now?

A It's -- yeah, we've got to stay in the

footprint, so...

MR HARRIS: Okay. Okay. | have no further
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questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

EXAM NATI ON

BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER

Q M. MConnell, are there tines during the
irrigation season at the upper ditch when you divert
all of the water in the creek?

A All the water that's present, yes.

Q There are tinmes when you entirely divert
t he creek at that upper diversion?

A Yes. W did that basically after
August 6t h, yes.

Q What -- what does your diversion dam at the

upper ditch look like? Is it a tarp danf

A Yeah, it's -- was pretty nmuch just rocks
and -- yeah, and -- and yeah. It's just -- yeah. |It's
not -- it's not a, quote/unquote, "probably proper

di version."

Q Well, no, it's not a concrete structure?
A No, no.
Q It's rocks in the creek, and you put a

canvas or a tarp in front of that?
A Ri ght.

Q Ckay. You testified that there are tines,
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t hough, that you intentionally bypass that upper ditch
to allow water to flowin the creek down to the | ower
ditch?

A | think probably in the instances of -- in,
you know, |ike 2001 or "2 or '3, we had really, really
super short water years. And so you split nothing. So
yeah, there was -- there was -- as | recall, probably
two different years we shut the top diversion off to --
so we could have a senbl ance of water

Q So outside of those drought situations, in
an average water year you take all the water avail able
at that upper ditch?

A You know, there's -- it's kind of one of
those things, as situations arise, as we get rain
events or there's -- those things can fluctuate. So
yeah, though -- if we get a three-quarter of an inch
t hunderstormin an hour and a half, there's probably
wat er goes over the top and down.

Q Does the creek channel flow continuously
bel ow t hat upper diversion dan? |Is there always water
in Lee Creek i mMmmedi ately bel ow t he upper diversion dam
or is the channel dry when you're diverting water?

A No, no. There's always -- always sone
wat er .

Q Al ways sone | eakage water?
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A Yes. Well, yeah, yeah. Because the

confluence -- the confluence is not very far. | nean
they're not -- they're |i ke maybe 50, 60 feet.
Q So the creek remains active, Lee Creek

remai ns active between the upper ditch and the | ower
ditch?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. During the irrigation season -- and
" mtal ki ng now prior to August 2020. During the
irrigation season do you divert all of the water
avai l abl e at the | ower ditch?

A Not -- not per se. Not -- we have to all ow

sone stock water to go by. There's a 1918 stock water

right. So -- so there -- we need to pass sone water
al nrost -- you know, so yeah. So no, not -- not all of
it is -- sometines it dries up. But, you know, but for

t he nost part there is sone water passing down Lee
Creek by the | ower diversion.

Q Are there tines of the year during the
snowrel t runoff where there's so nuch water com ng down
Lee Creek, whether it be the R ght Fork or the Left
Fork or both, that the flow in the creek exceeds your
water rights, the 15.2 cfs of your water rights?

A | think probably go back to 2009, we had

got 2 inches of rain in one weekend. And yeah, there
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was -- there was all kinds of, you know, there was one
of those -- yeah, there was nore water than -- yeah.

Q More water than you can divert?

A More water than I would even want to try to
di vert.

Q What happens to the water that bypasses --
you tal k about a snmall anmount of stock water. But if
there's a significant flow of water, what happens to

t he water that bypasses or flows past your |lower ditch?

Cr eek.

A Ckay. It continues to run through Lee

And t hen Lee Creek kind of conbines with sone

springs that head out on the property. And there is

a -- a water right, beneficial use of springs, on --

for the ranch bel ow us.

Q Are you famliar with other ditches or

di ver si ons downstream of your |ower ditch?

A Yeah. | -- there's -- there's no
di versions, no. Not that | -- no. | nean there's
soneti nes when you get -- when you get a -- when you
get a lot of water, yeah, there's water that goes

pl aces that's probably naybe not supposed to. But no,

there's -- the creek -- and the creek channel dries up,
you know, through -- through the summer, through June,
July, August, Septenber, so...

Q Are you personally famliar with the Lee
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Creek channel between your |ower diversion and the
river, the Lenmhi River?

A Most of it, yes.

Q Does -- does the river -- does Lee Creek
flow through all the way to the Lemhi River at tines?

A Yes. Oh, yes. Yes.

Q Ckay. Describe the -- | notice one of the
i ssues of protest where it was | ocati on of your

measuri ng devices on your upper and |lower ditch. Let's

see if there's a map that woul d be hel pful. Possibly
in Exhibit 1. Maybe | -- you can just use this. |
think there's -- there's a nap that gets kind of zooned

in on those points of diversion. This page 8 m ght be

t he best. Maybe page 11.

Can you identify -- I'"Il just hand you this
copy. Can you identify -- so I'mlooking at page 11 on
Exhibit 1. It kind of shows the two upper and | ower

poi nts of diversion with green dots.

A Ri ght.

Q Can you show nme where approxi mately that
upper measuring device is? How far down the ditch?

A Ch, it's probably -- | would guess it's in
here. It's, you know, with -- there was -- we
install ed those in 2000. There was neasuri ng devices

that the watermaster back when we cane in '93/'94 said
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they weren't acceptable. And so they -- | think at
that tine they neasured water up at the Kauer Ditch.

But -- so we put themthere just for kind
of conveni ence of the waternmaster. You know, they --
t hey're probably out of the distance of what they
shoul d be.

MR MANWARING M. Hearing Oficer, just to
make sure we're clear on the record, we couldn't tel
what he was pointing to.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER No. | was going to --

t hat was -- once he was done speaking, | was going to
tal k about where that is.
So M. McConnell had indicated a point on
t he upper ditch that is farther north -- farther north
t han the | ower ditch.
Q And woul d you say approxi mately by that

second bl ack arrow down?

A | would say between the two, | believe.
Q Bet ween the two bl ack arrows --

A Yeah.

Q -- comng fromthe north down --

A Yeah.

Q -- on the upper ditch.

Can you tell me on the |lower ditch where

t he measuring device is | ocated?
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A Ch, they're alnost parallel. | would --

you know, they're probably between those two arrows

her e.

Q Bet ween the top two bl ack arrows on that
same - -

A Yeah.

Q -- on that sane map? Ckay.

MR. BROMLEY: Just so everybody knows, you know,
t hose points were GPS' d by Scott King. And when Scott
testifies to his report --

THE HEARI NG OFFICER He can speak a little bit
nore to that.

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

MR. BROMLEY: He can be a | ot nore precise.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  That's great. I
appreciate that, M. Bromey. | -- that's just
sonething that | think is inportant to have in the
record. And if M. King can testify to that, that's
great .

Those are the questions that | had. 1'l1]
turn it back to you, M. Bromey. |If you have any
foll owup questions, go ahead.

MR. BROMLEY: G eat. Thank you.

Rob, would you m nd putting that Google
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Earth i mage that you had up --

MR. HARRI' S: Yeah.

MR. BROMLEY: -- when Ki pp was aski ng questi ons.

That's great.

MR HARRIS: So | always use this as a bit of a
| andmar k.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay.
HARRI S: Here is -- so is that good?
BROVLEY: Yeah, that's just fine.

2 3 3

HARRI S: Ckay.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROWLEY:
Q So, Bruce, this Google Earth i nage, does
this look simlar to what you were di scussing with
M. Manwari ng?
A Yeah. Yeah. Yeah. The stuff -- you know,

the kind of the center part of it, you know. So yeah,

that -- that -- yeah.
Q It's an i mage?
A Ri ght .
Q Ckay. It's an aerial, naybe it's froma

satellite, it's sonething.
Is Lee Creek at all witten down on that,

like a map that you woul d see?
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A | -- you go back sone of the maps, yeah, |
think they called it Lee Creek at all -- yeah, you
know.

Q But I -- on this inmage | don't see
anyt hing - -

A | don't see anything there, no.

Q -- that's witten down that shows --

A | assune -- |I'mjust assumng -- |'m
assum ng that's, you know. ..

Q So woul d you agree there's sone
interpretati on going on when we're | ooking at this?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. | nean when | look at it, | see a
|l ot of trees, and even in the photos that M. Manwari ng

was showing -- let's see. VWiich one was it? Oh, |iKke

Exhi bit 30 -- 309.
Do you have Exhibit 309 up there?

A Yes, | do right here.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yep, the | oose papers.
Yep.

Q (BY MR BROWLEY): M. Manwaring told you
that this was the headgate for your |ower point of
di version that you' re seeking to add through this
transfer?

A. Yes.
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Do you recall that?

Correct.

Ckay. And do you see a bunch of trees?
There's a | ot of brush.

Ckay.

> o0 >» O > 0

There's a |lot of wll ows. Not so nmuch --

not so much trees as w il ows.

Q Veget ati on?

A Ri ght .

Q Stuff you'd nornmally see in the bottom of
a --

A Ri ght.

Q -- of a channel ?

Is that what then we see on this Google
Earth image is a whol e bunch of vegetati on?

A Pretty -- yeah, there -- it's -- it's
pretty densely veget at ed.

Q Ckay. So it's kind of |ess than clear,

t hen?

A Yeah.

Q Let's see. Bruce, if you wanted to, could
you go in and nuck around and nove the Lee Creek
channel around to benefit you?

A Probably not |egally.

Q Ckay. Mght run into problems with -- with
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who?
done it
thing t

A | -- the DEQ " m not sure. | ' ve never
, but it's kind of accepted as not the right
o do.

Q Ckay. And you expl ai ned, Bruce, when you

wer e answering some questions fromM. Harris about the

conversations that you had with Darrell Nef.

ti me?

And do you recall that?
A Yes.

O

Wio was the owner of the property at that

The what property?
O your property.

> O >

I. denda and I, ny wfe.
Q Ckay. But prior to you buying it, who was

t he owner of the property?

[ phonet

A It was the estate of Parl ee Arvee
ic].

Q Ckay. And Parlee Arvee, if I'"'mrecalling

correctly -- and maybe you recall, but do you recal

whet her he was the one who was in the Lenhi

adj udi cati on or should have been filing in the SRBA?
A Yes. Yes, he would have been. Yes. |

t hi nk he owned the property from'68 to ' 93.

Q Ckay. And so M. Arvee, was he an active
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owner of the water?

A Parl ee Arvee was deceased when we bought
t he property. So fromwhat | gather, he was an
absent ee | andowner, sone -- | guess | was told,
sonmeti nes he stayed there, leased it out. On occasion

in "92 1 think he hired a guy to change water.

Q And so at that point, then, Darrell Nef
was -- he was diverting water and using the place?

A Yes, yes. He was -- | think -- | think
t hey' d worked out an agreenent for himto graze sone
cattle on the upper piece to irrigate the | ower piece.
O irrigate -- toirrigate the place. |1'mnot sure. |
wasn't really privy, but that was what -- that was what
nmy under st andi ng was.

Q Ckay. And so Darrell Nef, | think you
sai d, had know edge going back into the | ate 1940s?

A | believe he told ne that he bought that
pl ace in 1949.

Q And then your recollection was that that --
that | ower diversion had been in place at | east since
t hen, according to M. Nef?

A Yes.

Q And then you had nenti oned Steven Kauer
duri ng your back-and-forth with M. Harris.

Who was St even Kauer?
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A Steven Kauer's parents owned the place, |
think, fromearly '50s through about "68. |'mnot --
you know, that -- just -- just -- yeah, that's -- |

t hink ' 68 was when Parl ee Arvee bought the property.
And | assune through the '50s and early '60s they owned
it. And | think when -- when Steven was there, | -- he
had an active role in irrigating it.

Q What was your understanding from Steven
Kauer as to the diversion points?

A They -- he told ne they used -- always used
both of them

Q Ckay. You were asked sone questions by
M. Cefal o about downstream water users.

Have you ever had any conplaints from water
users downstream about not receiving water?

A No. In fact, | had one of the first owners
was there said that since we -- he had never had that
nmuch wat er .

Q Ckay.

A So we -- you know, when we -- if we take
care of the water right, we send a ot of water. W
put a lot of water back into the ground, in the
spri ngs.

Q The -- as currently configured and exi sting

on the ground, can you divert the entire 15.2 into
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either the upper ditch or the | ower ditch?

A Probably not. Cone closer with a | ower
ditch, but probably not.

Q Ckay. And is there -- is there | and that
can only be irrigated by the | ower ditch?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Last question | have here, Bruce, is
you had a nunber of questions that were asked of you by
M. Harris about a filing a delivery call.

Do you recall those questions?

A Yes.
Q Do you know what a delivery call neans?
A | guess the first tine | really becane

aware of it was | was having sone issues with ny
water -- getting nmy water back in '14, '15, and | had a
conversation with M. Cefalo. And he said, "You need
to nake -- you need to call for your water."

Q And do you understand what that neans, to

call for your water?

A Yeah. It -- and | think it was in 2015,
Tom Udy was the watermaster. W -- | stopped hi mand
said, "I amcalling for ny water." You know, we had --

| don't renenber the time. But we were way short of
wat er .

Because he said -- previously he said he
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really didn't understand how the water rights on Lee

Creek worked. And then | brought himthe copies, and

he said, "Well, | looked into it, and you're right."
So -- and so |l -- in 20, | believe it was 2015 |
cal | ed. That was the call | made for the water

Q Do you know why you were short in 20157

A Sonet hi ng upstream

Q It wasn't ever explained to you what that
sonet hi ng was?

A Yeah. W had water -- we had it -- within
a coupl e days we had -- we had the water.

Q Do you know what happened to bring the
wat er down to you?

A Don't know what went on.

Q Ckay. So waternaster went upstream is

what you're saying, and --

A Yes.

Q -- did sonething and --

A We had wat er.

Q -- you had water?

A And | was happy.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. That's all | have. Thank

you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Fromthe group of

protestants, any other foll ow up questions?
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M. Harris?
MR. HARRI' S: Yeah, | do.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Manwaring, did you
have anyt hi ng el se?
MR MANVWARING | think I'"mgoing to cover m ne
wth sone other w tnesses.
THE HEARI NG CFFI CER  That's fi ne.
Ckay. Go ahead, M. Harris.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HARRI S:
Q Just a couple clarifications. And I'II
just pick up right where M. Bronl ey ended up.
You were short in 2015, there was sonething
upstream
What stream was there sonet hi ng goi ng on?
A Lee Creek. You know, that was what -- you
know, water rights Lee Creek, you know, total water --
yeah, watermaster. So yeah, |I'mnot sure -- it was --
probably woul d have been the Left Fork of Lee Creek
t hat. ..
Q Ckay. But as far as you know, did he nake
any changes in Stroud Creek?
A Well, Stroud Creek kind of is Lee Creek,

you know.
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Q They're in the sane drai nage, but there's
di fferent channels.
So do you know what channel ? Wre they up
the Left Fork or Stroud Creek or --
A They woul d have been up probably the Left
Fork -- | don't know. | didn't go up there.
Q And if you don't know, that's okay. That

can be an answer.

A Yeah.
Q Is that what you're saying, you don't know?
A That -- well, like | say, there was

water -- the water -- the water got there.

Q Got it. You testified before you're not
awar e of any diversions that are downstream of your
di ver si ons.

Did | understand that testinony correctly?

A Wll, there is -- thereis a -- there is a
di version that on the | ower end of the property that
catches the water and takes it to the property bel ow
me. So, you know, we've had various different owners.
Kel |y Thomas, Rand Robi nson [phonetic], Nature's
Conservancy, and now it's Beel er [phonetic], so...

Q Ckay. On this map up here, these are dots
that we obtai ned fromthe Departnment of Water

Resources. Here is your upper diversion. Here is your
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| ower diversion. But there is a diversion in between
that's owned by, | believe, M. Johnson.
Are you famliar with that ditch headi ng at
al I ?
A Yeah, it's -- yeah, it's right below the
hi wary [phonetic]. You know, it's |likes a 1957 right,
sonething like that. So when there's |lots of water,

when there's water passing by, it gets caught, yeah.

So. ..
Q Yeah. [|'m not asking about the water
right.
I|'mjust saying you're famliar, there is a
ditch heading at that |ocation, you' ve seen that; is

that right?

A Yeah, there's -- there -- yeah, it's --
there's ditches that -- that intercept the creek.
Q Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Bet ween your upper ditch
and | ower ditch, there's a ditch there?

THE WTNESS: No, no, no, no. No. |It's bel ow
the I ower diversion, and | think --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Yeah, he's not
under st andi ng what you're asking.

THE WTNESS: -- the place you're talking to is
i ke that 1831.
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Q (BY MR HARRIS): So --
A Is that -- is that the one you're referring

to?

Q No. So see this dot right here? These are

your water rights.

MR. BROMLEY: M. Cefalo, |I'mgoing to object.
| mean this is -- the Departnent's water right records,
whi ch you've said you will take notice of, speak for
t hensel ves. M. MConnell said he's aware of the
Johnson diversion. M. Johnson's here.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR. BROMLEY: | think that's frankly the better
place to do it. He's a protestant. He can speak to
hi s own i ssues.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER M. MConnell, have you
seen a ditch on the creek between your upper and | ower
di version? Are you famliar with a ditch there?

THE W TNESS: There's supposed to be one there
but I"mnot famliar with one.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  You haven't seen one
yoursel f?

THE W TNESS.: Not -- no, |'ve never. No.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  That's good enough.

Move on --

MR HARRIS: | think that was ny question.
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THE HEARING OFFICER.  -- M. Harris. Yeah.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): So now below the red dot,
t here are other diversions.

Have you seen these diversions? That's al
" masking, is if you' re aware that they' re there or
have seen them

A Yes, yes. That would be 15-200 and 15-201.
Yes. Yes.

Q Ckay. | believe your testinony before was
you weren't famliar with diversions bel ow your | ower
di version, but | think you' re saying you actually are
famliar wth sone further down Lee Creek?

A Yeah. There -- they're kind of -- yeabh,

there so renotely, they're so late. You know, so yeah.

Q Ckay.

A It's kind of one of these | don't go there.
But yeah, they -- that was -- | just re- --
m srenenbered, yeah. They're -- they're there. So
yeah, | nean [unintelligible].

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: And we can ask M. Johnson

about those too --

MR HARRIS: Correct. | just --
THE HEARI NG OFFl CER: -- as he takes the stand.
MR. HARRI S: -- wanted to make sure | under st ood

your testinony.

000096




© 00 N oo o b~ w N P

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o 00 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 95
Audio Transcription

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

MR HARRIS: So | don't have any further
questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Thank you,
M. MConnel | .

THE WTNESS: Okay. Leave this sitting right
her e?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Leave all that right
t here.

MR, BROMLEY: Yeah, |eave everything there,
Bruce. Thank you.

M5. YENTER Do you want to pause?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

(Lunch recess.)

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER W are back on the record,
returned froma |unch break.

Wiile we were off the record here just a
nmonent ago, we had a di scussi on.

Protestant Jordan Whittaker had been
running a video canera during the first part of the
hearing. After we had a discussion it was deci ded that
we woul d stop that video recording. It had not been
consented to by the applicant, Bruce and d enda
McConnell. And so -- and it wouldn't have been the

official recording anyway. This audi o recording that
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we're nmaking up here at ny table is going to be the
official recording of the hearing.

So with that, we will nove forward with
your w tnesses, M. Brom ey.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. And just to be clear, then,
we didn't understand that this video recordi ng was not
the Departnent's and, as you said, did not consent.
And to the extent that it's ever used in the future,
McConnells did not consent to this being turned on.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  That's fine. Thank you.

MR, BROMLEY: Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERR M. Bronl ey, go ahead.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. W call Scott King.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

MR KING Can | take it? | need to take this
up there [unintelligible].

MR, BROMLEY: Yeah.

SCOTT KI NG
havi ng been called as a witness by the Applicants, was

duly sworn and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG CFFICER M. King, do you solemly
affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give will be

the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
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BY MR

namne.

THE WTNESS: | do affirm
THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE (kay. Have a seat.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BROMLEY:

Q Ckay, Scott. Please state and spell your

A Scott King, S-c-o-t-t, K-i-n-g.

Q And who are you enpl oyed by?

A SPF Wt er Engi neeri ng.

Q And what is your position with SPF?
A ' ma project nmanager with SPF Water

Engi neeri ng.

Q And - -

A This has to be ny water also. | forgot to

take that with ne.

Q Scott, if you can turn to Exhibit 2 there.
A Ckay.

Q Is that an accurate summary of your

pr of essi onal experience?

A. Yes, it is.

Q And have you previously been qualified as

an expert witness in water right matters in | daho by

| DVR?

A. Yes, | have.
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MR. BROMLEY: And so, M. Hearing O ficer, prior
to hearing we both -- M. Harris and M. Manwari ng and
nysel f had agreed that we would stipulate to both Scott
Ki ng and Bryce Contor being expert w tnesses. | hope
that's still the case.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Harris?

MR HARRIS: | want himto go through every Iline
of his CV. No.

3

BROVLEY: And we can do that, M. Harris.

MR HARRIS: That's a bad joke. No objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay. G eat.

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah. Ckay. Thanks.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  You can proceed.

MR MANVWARING | want it on the record, | don't
want to do every line [unintelligible].

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. So we then have a
stipulation as to Scott King being an expert?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: He can testify as an
expert witness. You bet.

MR. BROMLEY: G eat. Thank you.

Q So, Scott, are you famliar with the Lenhi
Basi n?

A Yes, | am

Q And if you coul d pl ease expl ain your

famliarity.
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A Wll, | was working on ny naster's degree
going back to the early -- let's see, |late 1990s. |
was working in the Upper Sal non R ver Basin, and
wor ki ng on kind of fisheries and restoration-type
i ssues and water supply. And so first of all, | becane
famliar with the Lemhi during nmny work in the Upper
Sal non ar ea.

Later on while enployed with the Dani sh
Hydraulic Institute, the DH group, | worked on a basin
nodel , which is a water distribution nodel of the
Pahsi nmoroi Basin, and was using the Lemhi River Basin's
nodel as a tenplate for that. So | becane famliar
wth sone of the diversions and the operations up
t here.

O her water distribution things while
wor ki ng at Water Resources, but nore recently at SPF
Wat er Engi neering, we are doing a nunber of gaugi ng
station operations. Have a contract fromthe
Departnent of Water Resources. And | think we have
about a dozen different gauges in the Lemhi R ver
Basin, so I'mkind of famliar with the nane of the
tributaries and the mai nstem

Q Ckay. And you' ve been retai ned by Bruce
and 3 enda McConnell in this matter; correct?

A. Yes, | have.

000101




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 100
Audio Transcription

And have you visited the property?
Yes. |In March --

Ckay.

-- this year.

So Exhibit 1, you' ve got that in front of;

you;
That's ny report; is that correct?
Yep.
Yeah. Ckay.

So what were you asked to do?

>0 >0 >Q 0 >0 >0
N

| was asked to review the transfer
application that was submtted by McConnells and the
other water rights on the Lee Creek watershed system
and to provide an opi ni on about whether that transfer
application neets the standards of |IDWR, whether it's
an approvabl e transfer.

Q Ckay. And so then in your report as
Attachnent A, and then we've also got themin there as
Exhi bit 9, those are the McConnell water rights.

If you could just please briefly explain
what the water rights are that are owned by the
McConnel | s?

A McConnel |l has a series of water rights from
Lee Creek and one fromspring. But the Lee Creek water

rights have a variety of priority dates, different
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pl aces of use within their area that they generally use
the water. And they |list one point of diversion, which
we' ve tal ked about earlier being the upper point of
di ver si on.

Q G eat.

A And then there's a spring right here. And
that, | understand, serves donestic and stock water
use. It's not part of this transfer application.

Q Ckay. And the priority dates range from
sort of what to what?

A | see priority dates ranging as old as
May 12t h, 1883, to as junior as Novenber 5th, 1909.

Q And which part of that report are you
| ooki ng at?

A This part of ny report is Appendix A It's
a Summary of Water Rights Omed by Applicants and
Protestants. It's the very first page. There's a
summary page of MConnells' water rights, and there's
al so summari es of the other protestants' water rights.

Q Great. Thanks, Scott.

So Exhibit 24, which is in the binder, but

t hen we've al so got a bl own-up version of it behind you
on the easel there.

A Yeah, I'm..

Q Usi ng that nap, you know, whet her you want
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to use the big, blown-up one or the one in your
report --

A "Il use both, to make it sinple for
ever ybody.

Q Ckay. Even better. Could you just please
briefly explain where the McConnells divert water from
Lee Creek and how they irrigate.

A On this map, about centered vertically in
section 20, there's a little red circle that |I've
pl aced on this map. And this map is the USGS
quadr angl e, dated 18 -- or 1989.

So that red dot represents the | ower point
of diversion. And you can see that on this Exhibit 24
al so.

You can al so see fromthere the ditches
depicted as a blue line fromthat | ower point of
di version. Upstreamof that, in the far northeast
corner of section 30, is the upper point of -- well,
no. No. | think I'll take that back. Is it 29?7 1I'm
trying to renenber which one it is. 1'd have to go
| ook and see.

But there's a little spring depiction
there, alittle circle with a little squiggly blue
line. And their upper point of diversionis fairly

close to that, but otherwise it wuldn't be shown on
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t he USGS quad, but that |ower diversion is shown on
t hat quad.

Q Ckay. So in terns of the upper diversion,
is that the diversion that appears on the SRBA water
rights that we were just tal king about?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So if we turn, then, to Exhibit 6.

Can you pl ease explain what actions were
t aken by the McConnells and the Departnent to correct
t he | egal description for the upper point of diversion.

A Yes. There was a water right transfer
No. 84367 that was filed previously to correct the
Departnent's record regarding the | ocation of the upper
poi nt of diversion. And so the Departnent's record
showed it in one |ocation further upstreamthrough the
decreed rights.

McConnells were able to show no, it's
actually in a different quarter-quarter. It's in a
anot her | ocation further downstream And we have not
changed it. It was just decreed incorrectly. And so
we are correcting the record.

Q Ckay. And then if you'd turn to Exhibit 7.
This is a docunent dated Cctober 5, 2020.

And is that transfer nunber, is that the

sane transfer nunber that appears on the transfer you

000105




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 104

Audio Transcription

were | ooking at, Exhibit 67
A No. 84367 is the sane transfer nunber, vyes.
Q Ckay. And so what is this nmenorandum

expl ai ni ng?

A This nenorandumis a review of the
application for transfer and determning if -- and
providing a review of -- if the information that was

provi ded was sufficient to make that transfer
appr ovabl e.

Q Ckay. The third paragraph, what does that
say?

A The third paragraph, "Water right validity:
Water rights were decreed in 2014. Aerial photos show
consistent irrigation of the respective places of use
since 2014."

So that's saying it |ooks |ike these water

rights are valid. The water rights have been used.
The pl ace of use has been irrigated.

Q Ckay. And then the paragraph right bel ow
t hat, what does that say?

A "Injury to other water rights: No issues
identified. Applicant provided persuasive evidence
t hat the SRBA points of diversion were in error. There
w Il be no physical change in the point of diversion.

Wat er has been diverted fromthe ditch headgate in the
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nor t heast northeast of section 30 since at |east 2014."

Q Geat. So then, you know, is it your
opi nion, then, that this transfer 84367 resulted in
correctly identifying the | egal description of the
upper point of diversion?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Let's look at Exhibit 4, Scott. And
we tal ked about this exhibit wth Bruce.

But what does this docunent explain to you?

A This was a |l etter dated August 6th, 2020,
to Bruce and d enda McConnell from G ndy Yenter
explaining that the Iower diversion is not |isted and
that water rights, that it nust be cl osed, and that
| ower diversion nust let the water pass. And then it
al so tal ks that the upper diversion needs to have a
control |l abl e, | ockabl e headgate in conpliance wth
regul ati ons.

Q Ckay. And then Exhibit 5, also a letter
dated the sane date fromGndy to Merritt Udy

And are those -- | nean what do you

interpret those as? Directions to the waternaster?

A Yeah, consistent with the prior letter,
that the watermaster is to stop the McConnells from
taking water fromthe | ower diversion.

Q Ckay. So now we ki nd of understand what
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was happeni ng i n August of 2020.
So does -- if you can turn to Exhibit 8.
Wiat is -- what's Exhibit 8?

A Exhibit 8 is the application for transfer
that's in front of us today. Transfer No. 84441.
Looks like it was received by the Departnent on
Cct ober 5th of 2020.

Q Ckay. And so then, Scott, from what you
understand from Exhibits 4 and 5, was this transfer
that we're looking at in Exhibit 8, was it filed to
address the concerns?

A Specifically to address those concerns, to
i nclude the | ower diversion as a point of diversion on
t hese water rights.

Q Ckay. Al right. Let's go -- before we go
back to your report, Scott, if you | ook on page 2 of
t he transfer.

All the way there at the bottom what was
t he fee paid?

A The fee paid was $1, 700.

Q Ckay. And do you know what the basis of
that fee was?

A The basis of that fee is based on the cfs,
cubic feet per second, of the water rights that were

being transferred. There's a fee schedule that the
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Departnent has for transfers based on flow rate or
vol ume.

Q And how many water rights were the subject
of this transfer?

A Seven.

Q Ckay. In the fee box, page 2, line No. 9,
do you see there a discussion of a $50 per water right
fee if it's filed pursuant to 42-221.0.8?

A Correct.

Q And that -- that fee, if it was $50 per
water right with seven water rights woul d be sonet hi ng
| ess than $1, 7007

A That woul d be $350, if ny nmath is correct.

Q Ckay. Thanks.

So let's turn to Exhibit 1. Back to your
report, Scott.
So section 1, who protested the transfer?

A Protests were filed by Ericsson, Johnson,
Smth 2P Ranch, Tonthak, Wittaker Two Dot Ranch, and
Wi tt aker.

Q Ckay. And as to Ericsson, is your
under st andi ng that she's not present in the roomtoday?

A Correct.

Q All right. As to Johnson, | believe he's

still present in the roomtoday? Yeah, he is.
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What was the basis of M. Johnson's
pr ot est ?

A Quotes in there, "Bruce filing for a new
poi nt of diversion, so ny water should cone before the
wat er that goes into that new point of diversion."

Q Ckay. And then it was protested by Smth
2P Ranch?

A Yes.

Q And what was the basis of that protest?

A "By changi ng the point of diversion on
t hese water rights, it will alter the way the water has
been historically adm ni stered based on priority dates.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Bronl ey, you can junp
forward. | -- | can go back and read the protests to
refresh.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. Fair enough.

Q As to Smth 2P Ranch, do you know if a
Power of Attorney was included wth the protest?

A | do not know. | have not seen one.

Q Ckay. GCkay. As to Whittaker Two Dot
Ranch, do you know if a Power of Attorney was included
wth that protest?

A No, | don't. | have not seen one.

Q Ckay. So let's junp forward, then, to

section 2.
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So woul d you pl ease expl ain your findings
and opinions in section 2.

A So first of all, | talk about MConnells'
water rights here. They have these seven water rights
diverted fromlLee Creek for irrigating 547.4 acres.

And then I list themand | describe a
nunber of these are conbi ned between a seni or water
right and a junior right providing water for so many
acres there. There's these different sets with them
that the -- were recently subject to this correction
transfer that we tal ked about earlier on the upper
poi nt of diversion.

And | al so discuss the spring right that's
not part of this transfer.

Then there's the Ericsson water rights.

Eri csson has a number of water rights there from Left
Fork of Lee Creek and from Stroud Creek. There's two
of them Those ones have 1883 and 1912 priority dates.

It's interesting that Water R ght
No. 74-370, the first one | list of Ericsson, has a
condition on the water rights describing a prorating
bet ween ot her -- another 1883 water right. Then
Eri csson al so has three other water rights from
springs. Those ones | ook |like they don't have anything

to do with this transfer application.
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It says, "Ericsson's point of diversion
fromthe Left Fork Lee Creek, also known as Stroud
Creek, and sonetines naybe al so known as Everson
Creek," although those m ght be separate. It's
downstream from t he Toncthak and Foster diversions. So
Eri csson's sonewhere in between.

Then | tal k about the Johnson water rights.
Johnson owns a nunber of water rights in the Lenhi
Ri ver drainage, listing sources of Big Eight Mle
Creek, Lee Creek, MII Creek, and springs. The ones I
list here are the ones from Lee Creek and those ones
fromBig Eight Mle Creek that m ght have sonething to
do with the Lee Creek water rights, neaning that they
m ght overlap on sone of them

There's this first one here, 74-949. It's
a 1918 -- 1918 priority water right for 1 acre. And
74-1831 is .24 cfs for irrigation of 12 acres. And
t hose two pl aces of use don't appear to be overl apped.
And it | ooks |ike they have individual points of
di ver si on.

And then there's a 74-15201, 0.34 cfs of
1990 priority water right fromLee Creek for irrigation
of 17 acres. And the place of use there is overl apped
wth water rights diverted fromBig Eight M|l e Creek.

And then | discuss those two water rights
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fromBig Eight Mle Creek, 74-15720 and 75 -- 74-15721.
And | |ist sone other water rights fromBig
Eight MIle Creek and conclude that they don't |ook |ike
t hey have a direct connection with Lee Creek or this
appl i cati on.
Smith 2P Ranch water rights, there's one
for a spring for donestic use, 74-1616.
74- 1615 provides 2.43 cfs of 1919 priority
wat er from Everson Creek for irrigation of 121 acres.
THE HEARING OFFICER M. King, I'"'mgoing to
stop you. | can read through this too.
THE W TNESS: (kay.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Maybe in the interest of
time, so --
THE WTNESS: So in the interest of tine --
THE HEARI NG OFFICER I f there's sonething
you -- sonething inportant that you' re wanting to draw
out of these kind of summaries of water rights, then we
can do that. But otherwise, | can -- | can read
t hrough the specifics.
MR, BROMLEY: Ckay. Yeah.
THE WTNESS: One thing | want to -- there's 2P
Ranch, that's Foster or Tonthak, | ook |ike they share a
poi nt of diversion for sone water rights there.

And there's one of these, this 74-2351,
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that doesn't look like it's been used. There's no
i ndi cation on the aerial imgery.
Q (BY MR BROWLEY): On the Smth 2P Ranch

water rights --

A Yes.

Q -- who's -- who's the owner of the rights?

A Foster, fromwhat | recall in pulling up
what | could find for those water rights.

Q Yet the protest was filed by whon?
A Sm th 2P Ranch.

Q You didn't see a Power of Attorney?
A No.

Q Or any expl anati on?

A " mnot sure who Smth 2P Ranch was. |
| ooked on the Secretary of State's site, and | couldn't
find anything for that.

Q Ckay. On the Wiittaker water rights, 2.6,
and you had nentioned it in relation to the Rosalie
Ericsson, | see on the second bull et of page 7
reference to 74-3609.

A Yes.

Q And - -

A That is a water right with this My 12t h,
1883 priority, a senior water right on Lee Creek

system And that -- | believe if that's right, that
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one shares that sane pro rata condition that the other
one that we discussed earlier does.

Q And how do you know about this prorated
condi ti on?

A It's on both of those two water rights. It
spells out right in the water right that these water
rights essentially shouldn't be cut off to divert any
ot her 1883 water rights, those with the sane priority.
These two water rights get to be used first. And if
t here's not enough between the two, then they get to
get their share of water pro rata.

Q And is that pro rata | anguage on the face
of the McConnell rights?

A No.

Q Ckay. But it's -- it is docunented, then,
you were able to see it on the face of this 74-369 and
74- 3707

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So that's how you know about it,
because it's witten down?

A Yes.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. And, M. Cefalo, |
appreci ate you asking ne to speed up. You know, we
never know how fast or slow we need to nove, and |

never know - -
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: That's okay.

MR. BROMLEY: -- what counsel's going to say and
| ay foundation for sonething. So |I'm happy to go a
little bit faster al so.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER. | think we're good to junp
over the summary of the water rights. Thanks.

MR. BROMLEY: That's great. Thank you, then.

Q So, Scott, if you can | ook at section 3 of
your report.

Coul d you just please explain your findings

and opi ni ons.

A McConnell diverts water fromtwo points of
di version. There's an upper one and a | ower one. |
visited both of those, and | provided an estinmate as to
how much water those m ght divert. And this was just
kind of a rough estimate from | ooking at the size of
the ditch, that the upper one may take two-and-a-half
to 4 cfs, and the | ower one maybe around 12 cfs. So
the lower one is clearly larger, visually, |ooking at
it.

At the upper diversion there was a channel

t hat was feeding the | ower diversion. And that other
channel was about 50 feet away fromthe headgate at
t hat upper diversion. So there were two channels there

and about 50 feet distant at that | ocati on.
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Figure 1 provides a description of the
pl ace of use and the points of diversion. And then
there's sone following figures that show photos of the
ditch and the diversion works.
Q You were in the room Scott, when the
Hearing O ficer asked about |ocation of neasuring
devi ces.
Do you recall that?
A Yes, | do.
Q And we had stated, you know, once we get to
Scott King's report, there's sone information on that
subj ect .
If you could just show the Hearing O ficer
where that is | ocated.
A On all of these figures --
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Oh, yeah.

THE WTNESS: -- Figure 2 through 5, this was
using an app on the phone. It a provides a |ocation.
And then the app | also took a screenshot of, if we

needed to show that earlier to show that, what it | ooks
| i ke on the map and what those di stances are, we can
see that.

MR. BROWMLEY: M. Cefal o, does that hel p answer
t hat question you had?

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: It does. | appreciate you
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poi nti ng that out.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Proceed.

A Continuing on, so | GPS d those points of
diversion. And on Figure 6 | present those. And so it
shows the little green dots of the | ocations where |
GPS d the points of diversion.

And then we can al so see on the aeri al
i magery the ditch supplying the irrigated place of use,
the ditches fromthe upper and | ower points of
diversion. And | put sone arrows al ong those ditches,
because what | wanted to do is conpare this inmagery,
this current inmagery -- | think this was 2019, and to
ot her i magery.

So then on Figure 7 -- and Figure 7 is the
1986 i magery that was used in the SRBA adjudi cation for
prepari ng recommendati ons and doi ng anal ysis on those.
And that shows the sane points that | GPS d and the
sane arrows.

So on ny A S using the RGS, |ike Rob was
showi ng earlier, those arrows are in the sane exact
| ocati on. We can see, |ooks fromhere to ne, that
t hose diversions are in the sane | ocation and the
ditches are in the sane | ocation.

Figure 8 is alittle different. This is

maps that were drawn by Departnent of Water Resources

000118




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 117
Audio Transcription

staff, | believe using aerial imgery, but they were
hand drawn and have been scanned and nade avail abl e.
Now, you'll see a difference here between the north

hal f of Figure 8 and the south half of Figure 8.

They're different colors because if you
pull up the Departnent's part of this, the south half
of Figure 8 is conpletely incorrect. |It's sone
different section or township. And they nade a m st ake
when they were putting these together. So | had asked
Crai g Saxon with Water Resources "Can you send ne the
i mage of the south half?" And so | geo-referenced that
in. Still it's show ng the sane points of diversion
and the arrows narking that.

And what we can see here is the 1970 point
of diversion looks like it's a ways upstream of that
sout hern green dot. It looks like it's in another
quarter-quarter. Wi ch nakes sense, because it was
decreed in that quarter-quarter in the earlier
adj udi cation, and then cones al ong the SRBA
adjudication, and it's in a different quarter-quarter.
So it had noved in the neantine.

MR HARRIS: |I'msorry. D d you say "had" or
"hadn't"?

THE W TNESS: It had.

MR HARRIS: "Had."
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THE W TNESS: Based on these maps. And | wasn't
there in the field, but based on review of the nmaps, it
| ooks like it's noved.

MR, HARRI'S: Thank you.

THE W TNESS: W can al so see fromthis, it
appears to ne, the way they've mapped this, is the
upper diversion was diverted into one ditch, and
then -- what? -- 500 feet downstream about that ditch
bi furcated, and it served an upper ditch and a | ower
di t ch.

If we go further on the north half of the
map where we see "8" circled, we can see that the
| ocation of that lower ditch is kind of close to where
sone of the arrows are pointing to. So to ne it | ooks
i ke someti me between 1970 and 1986 t hi ngs had changed
on the ground.

It also |l ooks to ne that this -- this Lenhi
mappi ng should be shifted just a little bit to the
east, based on arrows and the | ocation of the upper
ditch and the location of the field. But you can kind
of see that in the map if it makes any -- if it's
i mportant.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Al right. So
section 4.1 of your report, Scott, if you could pl ease

expl ai n your findings and opi ni ons.

000120




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 119
Audio Transcription

A So in section 4.1 |I'mdescribing --
Figure 9 is showng the different systens, the
different reaches that are in here. And this --
M. Manwaring was asking earlier, he was tal ki ng about
t hi ngs such as Everson Creek, Stroud Creek, Porcupine
Creek, and Lee Creek, also known locally as R ght Fork
of Lee Creek. And so | kind of nane sone of these and
put nice, dark blue lines on here so we have a
reference as to what these | ook |ike here.

And see on this, Stroud Creek, locally
known as the Left Fork of Lee Creek, joins the Right
Fork of Lee Creek or Lee Creek well upstream of both
t he upper and | ower points of diversion.

Q And this underlying base nmap, is that USGS?
A That's the USGS quad map.

And the blue lines on here are IDWR s
hydr ography |l ayer that | -- | believe that | pulled off
of their website and checked agai nst the blue Iines on
the map, and it matched fairly cl osely.

Q Ckay. So your overlay with blue |ines,
you're just making it nore visible?

A Yes. Those were not blue lines that | drew
nyself. They were sonething | pulled from anot her
| ayer that |'mpretty sure cane from | daho Depart nent

of WAt er Resources' website.
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Q Thanks.

A On the next figure, Figure 10, just kind of
| ay out the | ocations of the different points of
di version. And so the very south of the map, we have
Tonthak and Foster's points of diversion. Another
wat er right of Tonchak and an Eri cssons.

Downstream we have Wittakers' rights.
There's three of themthere fromthat Left Fork of Lee
Creek or Stroud Creek or whatever it's called. And
then there's the Wittaker Springs, 74-157.

Then further downstream we can see
McConnell s' two green dots, two points of diversion.

I n between those is the Johnson point of diversion for
74-1831, and then further downstreamtwo nore water
right -- or points of diversion from Johnson's.

Al of those | ocations are based on | DVWR
.shp file for the | ocation of the point of diversion,
not ny interpretation.

Next is what's called the 1954 engi neer's
map, which was sonething that | believe that naybe
Bryce found. It canme to nme from other information.
And | used the version of that, and it shows different
wat er systens.

And in here you'll see on the northwest

part, there's a circle "30," and to the east of that we
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can see where the east Left and Right Forks join on
that engineer's map. And again, we can see that
McConnel I s' points of diversion, as | GPS d them and
pl ayed them -- and overlaid themon this map, are wel
downstream of the confluence of those two forks.

Q Scott, can you pl ease explain the paragraph
that is imedi ately above Figure 11 and what you wote
t here.

A Ckay. So the protestants allege that the
| ower point of diversion is taking water froma fork of
Lee Creek, and not Lee Creek, that this Left Fork of
Lee Creek conti nues downstream past MConnells' upper
poi nt of diversion between it joins Lee Creek, so to
say that these reaches are separate until between those
two points of diversion.

And everything that 1've | ooked at from
this 1954 engineer's map to the USGS quadrangl e nap
and -- I'"'mnot sure that | showed it -- the Lenhi
adj udi cati on map, but all of those were consistent.
They show those forks joining well above McConnell s’
upper point of diversion and not continui ng downstream

And | think that's inportant, because it's
clear that Lee Creek is forned as -- where MConnel
can take and it's not separate forks, well above his

upper point of diversion.
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Ckay. There you go. Figure 12. That's
t he Lenmhi adjudication map, and it al so shows -- this
is on page 17. It also shows the confluence of the Lee
Creek Right and Left ForKks.

Q So all the mapping that was avail able to
you is consistently show ng where this confluence was
| ocat ed above --

A Above. Sone of them noving up or
downstreama little bit. The engineer's map is a
little different based on their drawi ng. They probably
didn't have as good of imagery what they were using.

But yes, all clearly above.

Q And "above" neani ng above --

A Above M:Connel | s' upper point of diversion.

Q Thank you.

Ckay. 4.2, let's |look at that.
And pl ease briefly explain your findings
and opi ni ons.

A Yeah, so there's sone springs listed in the
various water rights. There's sone of these owned by
sonme parties that don't appear to have anything to do
wth the Lee Creek system Ericsson and Foster, for
exanpl e.

And al so, those springs list a tributary of

sinks or don't list a tributary at all, whereas
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Wi ttakers' Water Right 74-157 authorizes diversion
fromtwo springs, and it clearly lists a tributary of
Lee Creek.

Q Ckay. And so then the significance of --
of that is what?

A That those springs are tributary to the Lee
Creek system as opposed to the other springs that
don't list a tributary. |If it lists a tributary -- if
one lists a tributary of sinks or no tributary at all,
it would be hard to call on that spring. W would not
expect it to fl ow downstreaminto a naned system
whereas the Wi ttakers' spring right clearly does Ii st
a naned tributary.

Q So that's why you differentiated the two is
because of the tributary?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. If you recall, Scott -- and, you
know, you've got 74-157 in your report; is that right?

A Yes.

Q Are there any adm nistrative conditions on
t he face of 74-157 that explain it's to be adm ni stered
differently than its decreed source tributary and
priority date?

A No.

Q Ckay. And that -- you can contrast that,
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then, with the spring rights that you were just
descri bing for Ericsson and Foster?

A Correct.

Q And then --

A [Unintelligible] that tributary that's not
a nanmed source.

Q And then you'd al so nentioned that 74-369
and 74-370 with the pro rata --

A Yes.
Q -- language --
A It's very clear to instruct the Depart nent

or a watermaster how those shoul d be adm ni st ered.

Q Ckay. So section 4.3, then, Scott, if you
coul d pl ease explain your findings and condition -- and
opi ni ons.

A Sonme of the water rights upstream of
McConnel l s are senior and sone are junior. And we talk
about those two with the 1883 priority date that are
wth the pro rata | anguage that could be called on by
McConnel | .

We have a place of use for Wittakers'
right that's al so covered by sone Big Eight Mle water.

Novenber of 2020, Wiittaker had filed an
application for transfer No. 84508 proposing to |ist
the tributary |listed under Water Right 74-157. So we
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wanted to -- the applicant, Wiittaker, wanted to renove
Lee Creek as a tributary -- naned tributary.

There was recomendati ons from wat er mast er
Cindy Yenter on that. And Yenter described an east
spring and a west spring, and one seens to be nore
tributary to the Big Eight Ml e systemand the other to
the Lee Creek system And she provi ded sone additi onal
details to those spring diversions and the use and
recommendati ons for conditional approval of that
transfer.

Subsequently, that transfer was w t hdrawn
by Whittaker. So as a result we have 74-157 unchanged,
still listing a source of springs tributary to Lee
Cr eek.

We have three water rights by Johnson, two
of them are downstream of the | ower MConnell point of
di version. One of themwas -- 74-1831 was transferred
to its current place of use by one of Johnson's
predecessors. And it lists that point of diversion
bet ween t he upper and | ower MConnell point of
di version, and a place of use that's kind of between
the two ditches.

| don't see any evidence that that ditch is
in place, the diversion's in place, that there's been

any irrigation on that field through the review of any
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of nmy -- any of the inmagery or anything else that's in
place. So to nme, it |looks like the water right was
transferred there, and then that transfer was never
acconplished by putting in a point of diversion and
irrigating.

And as | nmentioned, one of these goes to a
1-acre place of use. Doesn't really |ook Iike that
one's being used either, that 74-949.

And then 74-15201 has a 17-acre pl ace of
use in anongst water and place of use from Bi g Ei ght

Mle Creek, and | can't tell whether or not that water

right's diverted or it isn't diverted. |It's fairly
junior. And the water right -- or the place of use is
clearly irrigated, nostly fromwhat | would expect to

be the Big Eight Mle Creek water.

Q All right. Scott, then | ooking at
section 5 of your report, if you' d pl ease explain your
findi ngs and opi ni ons.

A | | ooked through the Water District 74Z
wat ermaster reports. Sone of these were fairly clear,
and it looks |like the waternmaster is reporting
delivering McConnells' water, and it mght it be clear
to the full 15 cfs, or close to it. Maybe that nost
junior water right wasn't conpletely delivered. But

there's records of that water right being delivered and
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recorded in the waternmaster records.

Most of these were fairly detailed on the
wat ermaster reports in providing diversions for all of
the different water rights there.

1919 -- or the 2019 waternmaster report
doesn't include those details. So I think there was a
different waternaster that year, and the deliveries
aren't quite as clear.

Whittakers' right 74-157 was not i ncl uded
in any of the watermaster records that | reviewed on
their waternaster reports.

And so it shows to ne that the McConnells
have exercised the full beneficial use of their suite
of Lee Creek water rights. The records establish use.
It's recorded there.

Q Ckay. And that's then consistent with that
Exhibit 7 that we | ooked at previously.

If you | ook at Exhibit 7 just quickly,
Scott, is that -- are your opinions, then, consistent
with Exhibit 7?

A Yes, they are.
Q Ckay. Al right. Section 6, if you can
pl ease expl ain what you see there.

And |l et nme know, does that section, then,

apply the standards that are | ocated in |Idaho Code

000129




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 128

Audio Transcription

42- 2227

A Yes, they are. This is an analysis of the
different elenents that the Departnent is expected to
use in analyzing a transfer and naki ng a determ nati on
if this is an acceptable transfer that can be approved.
And in ny analysis, under all of these itens, it can be
approved.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. And, M. Hearing Oficer,
woul d you like nme to go through each of the paragraphs,
or not?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER No.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay.

Q Ckay. So, Scott, then let's junp to
section 7, which is your concl usions and
recommendat i ons.

And woul d you pl ease summari ze t hose.

A The transfer is structured to prevent

enl argenent and injury, and it should be approved. The

poi nt of diversion, the | ower point of diversion, the

one being added by this transfer, is one that has been
there for decades. |It's clearly being used.
That the -- we discussed earlier that Lemhi

adj udi cati on nap shows sonething a little different,
and it | ooks |like sonmething has happened between 1970

and 1986. So there was a difference in the | ocation of
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t he ditch.

And | talk here that the Lee Creek channel
and its point of diversions has a bed that consists of
sandy and gravelly sedinents. And it's heavily
vegetated. As Bruce was talking, there's |lots of
wllows there. There's lots of downfall. | renenber
wal ki ng around there, it was really thick.

We expect channels |like that to nove
around, that they wouldn't necessarily stay in a
consi stent | ocation. There's sonme width toit. So if
there's grading or bifurcation and that the channel
ki nd of diverges at places, that's not unexpected.

And then the |ast point here, No. 4,

there's been talk of this Wiittaker versus Kauer in

1956 Suprene Court decision. And as | say here, |I'm
not an attorney; | can't nake a | egal conclusion. But
in nmy experience, if the -- if that prior decision was

not carried forward on future decrees, both the 1970
Lemhi and the SRBA, then that's not to be adm ni stered
that way. | don't see how the Departnent would know or
a waternmaster woul d know how to adm ni ster that,
because it wasn't included in the future decrees.

Q Ckay. So in summary, Scott, is it your
opinion that this is an approvable transfer?

A. Yes.
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Q And it's your opinion that there will be no
injury if the transfer i s approved?
A Correct.
MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. That's all | have on
direct.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE  Okay. G eat.
Moving this way again, we'll start with
you, M. Manwaring, if you' re prepared.
Do you want to break, or are you good to go
with cross?
MR MANVWARI NG No, we can go.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. Go ahead.
MR MANWARING | had lunch. |'mready.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR MANVWARI NG

Q Scott, first question is, have you been out
in the field to exam ne actual points of diversion
where they're | ocated on these streans?

A Yes. In ny report on Figures -- and |I"'1I1I
just go back so that we can -- on Figures 2 through 5,
| visited the McConnell points of diversion and their
[unintelligible].

But besi des being on McConnells' report and

around their location of the points of diversion, I
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haven't been to any others. So just the McConnell
ones.

Q Just the McConnell s?

A Yes.

Q And is it your testinony here today that
t he McConnells' upper point of diversion is downstream

of the confluence of Stroud Creek into Lee Creek?

A Yes.

Q You saw t hat when you went out in the
field?

A VWhat | saw were two di fferent channel s at

t hat upper point of diversion. But ny opinion is that
t he confluence of that is further upstream |It's where
it's been napped before. And because of whatever
changes have happened in the neantine, that those m ght
not be in the sane channel on the day that | was there,
nmy opinion is -- neans that that confluence is not
necessarily noved downstreamto where it can't be
call ed on anynore for delivery.

Q Did you wal k upstream fromthat upper
di version point to see the confluence of Stroud Creek?

A No, | did not.

Q Did you wal k downstreamto see the
confluence of Stroud Creek?

A. | did not wal k dowmnstreamto the
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confl uence. | wal ked downstreamto -- or went to the
ot her | ower point of diversion.

Q And did you cone across Stroud Creek
confluence in that wal k?

A | don't know which one is Stroud Creek
there. | know that there were different channels. And
so ny opinion is that's Lee Creek there.

Q Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: " There" neani ng the
| ower - -

THE W TNESS: There at the upper point of
di version and the | ower point of diversion.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay.

MR. MANWARI NG Rob, can we play wth Google
Map? |s that doable? | can ask him sone questions
while we're goi ng through that.

Q Just going back to your Exhibit 1, which is
your opinion on section 6, your transfer analysis, 6.1
in particul ar.

It is true that your prem se that there's
no reduction in quantity to existing water rights is
based on the determ nati on that the upper diversion is
downstream from t he confl uence of Stroud Creek?

A Say that again, please.

Q Maybe.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  That's a good questi on.

Q (BY MR MANWARING : It's true that your
prem se that there's no reduction in quantity to
exi sting water rights is based upon your belief that
t he upper diversion the McConnells have is downstream
fromthe confluence of Stroud Creek into Lee Creek?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Just wanted to nake sure |'mclear
on that.

A No, you're correct. | wanted to nake sure
you asked that correct, so we're both clear.

Q You're just making sure | could ask it
tw ce.

Now, we have di spl ayed up here a Googl e
i mge. And that Google i nage shows Lee Creek and
Stroud Creek.
You' d agree those are two different streans

until they nerge; right?

A Yes.

Q And you're famliar also wth upper area is
Por cupi ne Creek and Everson Creek?

A Yes.

Q Now, the Department of Water Resources in
maki ng a grant of a water right, a decree through the

SRBA, they have to identify the tributary or the stream
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that you're actually using the water right fronf

A Correct.

Q Ckay. So in your report, Exhibit 1, you've
gone through all of these water rights that apply to
McConnells as well as all the protesters?

A Correct.

Q And you have, in fact, a list -- a copy of
all those water rights that you provided as part of
your report?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And in McConnells' water rights that
you have listed here, the source is always |listed as
Lee Creek; is that correct?

A Except for the water rights that were
springs that weren't part of this transfer, yes, all of
the water rights, seven of them Ilisted as having a
source of Lee Creek.

Q And you woul d agree that's their source,
Lee Creek?

A Yes.

Q And | think the | ast one you did showis
t hat source is a springs?

A Correct.

Q VWhat ever that is?

A. Yeah.
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Q Ckay.

A | believe that spring is down bel ow t hese
poi nts of diversion by their ranch. Like |I said, it's
used for stock and donestic. |It's not associated with
t hese transfers.

Q It's not associated with Lee Creek, except
for further down, downstreanf

A It's downstream of their points of
di version from Lee Creek.

Q | think the tributaries of the springs is
listed as Lee Creek.

A Yes, you're correct. It says springs
that's tributary to Lee Creek.

Q Ckay. And this is further downstream t han
their | ower diversion has been?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Al right. Then the next sets of
wat er rights, you | ooked at Ericsson's.

Those water rights tal k about -- one of

them tal ks about the Left Fork of Lee Creek as the

sour ce?
A Yes.
Q And the tributary is Lee O eek?
A Correct.
Q And then the rest of them are groundwater
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springs conbi ned together, except for one for Ericsson
that's a -- the source is Stroud Creek. That's Water
R ght 74-1855.

A Yes, | see that.

Q And so the source of that one is actually
Stroud Creek; correct?

A Correct.

Q All right. Now, it would be so nuch fun to
go through every one of these. But in the interest of
time, we're going to junp back to Appendix F, which is
Toncthak' s water right.

And their Water R ght 74-1057 is -- the
source is Stroud Creek; correct?

A Correct.

And Water R ght 74-2195A is Everson Creek?
That's correct.

And Water Right 74-2261A is Everson Creek?
Yes.

And 74-2339A is Everson Creek?

Yes.

o >» O >» O > O

So woul d you agree with ne that the
Department of Water Resources recogni zes those water
rights as being actual streans different than what
you' ve been tal king about as Lee Creek?

A. Yes.
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137

MR. MANWARI NG Ckay. Al right. Now, Rob, you

got rid of Stroud Creek.
What happened to ny map?
MR HARRIS: OCh, no, this is --

VR. MANVWARI NG Oh, there it is. Ckay. Now, i f

you'll go -- keep going down. There -- now we can see

St r oud.
MS. YENTER  There's Everson.
MR MANWARI NG Why don't you go back.
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ever son.
MR, MANWARI NG  Everson, yeah.

Q Everson, Stroud. Those are two streans;

correct?

A. Correct.

Q And so Tonthaks have water rights on both?

A. Yes.

MR. MANWARI NG Ckay. Go further downstream

now.

MR HARRI S: Downst r eant?

MR. MANWARI NG Downstream That m ght be the

best way to do this, downstream upstream Downstream

ri ght there.

Q Ckay. W notice that Stroud Creek keeps

nmoving in its course.

It's been joined now by Everson;

is that
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correct?

A Correct.

Q And then you see Porcupi ne Creek off to the
left there?

A Yes.

Q Ri ght. Keep going downstream Ri ght
t here.

Por cupi ne Creek, woul d you agree has a

confluence with Lee Creek?

A Correct.

Q I's that confl uence above or bel ow t he upper
poi nt of diversion?

A Upstream  Above.

Q Upst r ean??
A Yes.
Q Ckay. Now go downstream Right there.

Now, can you tell fromthat nap or do you
know where Stroud Creek actually has a confluence with
Lee Creek? Can you see fromthat map at all? Can you
tell?

A | can see fromthat map what woul d appear
to ne, what this would likely be the Stroud Creek
system although there is sonething else that's fl ow ng
al ong on this side.

And so what | can see fromthis nap, the
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imagery, is it's not exactly clear what's happeni ng
wWth Stroud Creek as it's fl ow ng down towards the
confluence with the R ght Fork or Lee Creek.

Q Is there a big springs, swanmpy kind of area
down in that confluence area?

A It's been described to nme as possibly so,
but I've not been there nyself, so | can't speak to it
personal ly.

Q Ckay. So based on that nmap that you see up
t here, where do you believe the actual point of
di version is, the upper point of diversion for
McConnel I s? Can you tell fromthat | ocation?

A | don't believe it's on this map. | think

we need to go further north.

Q Downst r eant?

A Yes.

Q Ckay.

A Now, it's in the trees. Wat | can

certainly see here is there's a ditch. And | believe
it's approximately right there. | know !l GPS' dit. W
could put it right on the map if we pulled in that
poi nt.

Q Ckay. And that, you believe, was the upper
di versi on point?

A. Yes.
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Q Ckay. And if in fact it's different than
that, would you have a reason to contest sonebody that

would say it's different than that | ocation?

A Well, what | would not contest is what |
GPS' d.

Q Ckay.

A And the place that | visited.

Q Ckay.

A So if | pinpointed it correctly on the map
or not, | don't know. But | think I got close.

Q Ckay. That takes us back to your Exhibit 2
agai n.

MR. BROMLEY: Exhi bit 17?

MR MANWARING O 1, yeah. Sorry. Exhibit 2
was fascinating, by the way.

MR. BROMLEY: You can read all of it. It has a
ni ce headshot .

Q (BY MR MANWARING: W want to go to
page 14, Figure No. 9.

A Ckay.

Q Now, page 14, that's your -- your
quadr angl e map; right?

A Correct.

Q And this is the highlighted streans that we

just actually | ooked at here.
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And again, on that one you are indicating
that the McConnells' upper diversion is below the
confluence of Stroud Creek into Lee Creek; correct?
It's downstream fromt here?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And if in fact it's not, if in fact
it's upstream fromthe confluence of Stroud Creek,
woul d you be able to contest that while you're here
t oday or...

A Wiat | can say is this is what this map
shows. So | can testify to what | see on this map.

Q Right. That's why we're asking you these
questi ons.

A If Stroud Creek actually joins Lee Creek
downstrean? Again, | will go back to what |I've said
earlier. There were two channels at this upper point
of diversion. Streans do neander. And if the water
that's comng in fromthe east side now joins the nmain
channel at the flows that | observed when | was there,
t hat woul dn't necessarily surprise ne.

Q Ckay.

A But | still would say that that is the
confluence. Al the maps said that, at |east at the
time that they were done. |If that confl uence noved

downstreamin the neantine during certain flow regi nes,
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it's still -- in ny opinion, that's what was descri bed
and anticipated by the water rights as being the
conf |l uence.

Q | understand the map | ook at it.

But you were here for Bruce MConnell's
testinony; correct?

A Yes.

Q And his testinony, if | recall correctly,
was that that upper diversion has never been changed,
the location of it?

A And -- yes. And | agree that he said that.
| disagree that that's true.

Q You t hink the upper diversion | ocation has
actual ly changed?

A Yes.

Q I s that based upon your determ nation that
t here was sonme change from 1970 to 1980- sonet hi ng?

A Yes, if -- providing that that mappi ng was
correct in the 1970 Lenmhi adjudicati on map, nmaybe
earlier adjudication we don't have any depiction of
that. The '54 engineer's map doesn't show anyt hi ng
either. W don't have those diversions there.

So going fromthe 1970 to the 1986, | ooking
at the maps and the ditches, | would say, yeah, if

those are right, it has changed | ocations, the upper
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di ver si on.

Q So according to Bruce's testinony, since
he's taken possession of the property in 1993, that
poi nt of diversion has not changed, physical |ocation
has not changed?

A | don't see any evidence to suggest that
t he upper diversion has changed | ocations since '93.

Q Ckay. So wherever that physically is, that
hasn't changed since 19937

A Not that | can tell.

Q Ckay. And if that actual physical |ocation
is shown to be different, |ike upstream fromthe act ual
confl uence of Stroud Creek into Lee Creek, would you be
able to chall enge that based on your testinony today?
Do you have reason to contest that?

A Ask your question again, please.

Q Well, maybe. |If in fact the evidence
that's presented shows that the actual confl uence of
Stroud Creek into Lee Creek is downstream fromthe
physi cal | ocation of the McConnells' upper diversion,
woul d you be able to challenge that from what you' ve
testified or have [unintelligible]?

A No, | think I have agreed that those
channel s m ght be separate now, but at one tine they

wer e t oget her.
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Q Ckay.

A And so perhaps under the flow regi nes and
what we saw that there m ght be a difference in the
| ocati on where those channels are joining today.

Q Ckay. So if in fact the confluence of
Stroud Creek is downstream from McConnel Il s’ upper
di version, then having that diversion change to the
| ower diversion would affect people that -- |ike
Tonthaks that have a right on Everson and Stroud Creek?

A | don't see that that change in the channel
how it noves downstream shoul d change water rights'
adm ni stration.

Q | would grant you that.

But if the water rights' admnistration has
al ways been based upon what flows into Lee Creek from
known di versi on points and what flows from Stroud Creek
or Everson Creek down to Lee Creek, if -- the actual
upper diversion is the water right for MConnells;
correct? That's their water right?

A It's one of them

Q That's their diversion point for that
water; right?

A The upper diversion is their point of
di version for --

Q Their water rights, except for this spring
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t hat you had?

A Yes.

Q Because they don't have the | ower one yet?
A No, not listed on the water rights.

Q Yeah.

A Yes.

Q There hasn't ever been decreed a | ower

di version right?

A Correct.

Q That's the one that the Departnent of Water
Resources went out and told the watermaster, "Solve

t hat probl em?

A To shut that diversion off until it's
included as -- on a water right, yeah.
Q All right. Gay. So if -- if the

McConnel | s' upper diversion is basis for their
di version of their water rights on Lee Creek and that
di versi on has been upstream from where Stroud Creek has
a confluence with Lee Creek, then changi ng that
di version to be bel ow the confl uence woul d now i npact
t he Tonthaks, whose water right comes from Stroud Creek
and Everson Creek; wouldn't you agree?

A Partially. | don't believe that that upper
di versi on has al ways been bel ow t he confl uence of

Stroud Creek and Lee Creek. | think that the earlier
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maps show that those streans cane together before
there. And then there was an upper point of diversion.
And then the upper diversion got noved downstream for
some reason.

And maybe under the current fl ow regine
there's a separate streamright there. But | don't
agree that that upper diversion didn't take water from
Stroud Creek. | believe that it certainly did.

Q You' re basing that on nmaps that you' ve
revi ewed?

A Yes. And the water right decrees
t hensel ves.

Q Right. But not -- and then you don't have
in-field know edge of what was going on in 1970, for
exanpl e?

A No. | rely on other folks that were in
stream and field and nade the naps.

Q Ri ght. You don't know what was happeni ng
fromthe SRBA adjudication in 1980s to 1993, for
exanpl e?

A | -- I see what | see on the inmagery and
t he nmaps, correct.

Q Ckay.

A My first tine there on site was in March.

Q All right. And would you agree that
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i magery on maps is at best an estimation?

A No.

Q On a 1970 map?

A | would not say "at best an estinmation." |
woul d say that in ny experience i magery that has been
used for napping can often be very, very accurate.

Yes, there can be sonetines adjustnents in the inmagery,
msinterpretations. But | wouldn't agree at all it's
at best an estinate.

Q If we're tal king about the | ocation of a
poi nt of diversion and we didn't -- this is pre GPS
days, how woul d you know that that was accurate?

A I woul d expect that there were people in
the field that potentially reviewed the points of
di versi on and napped them But there was sonme ki nd of
basis for location -- |ocating a point of diversion on
a stream at sone place, whether that be aerial inmagery
or whether that be in-field surveys.

I can tell you in ny experience working for
t he Departnent of Water Resources, | very frequently
relied on interpreting aerial inagery to accurately
pl ace a point of diversion, for exanple.

Q I|'msure you do. But can you tell from
aerial inagery, can you see the actual point of

di version wthout going on the field and determ ni ng
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t hat ?

A In the case in this situation, you can get
cl ose. But because of the thick, dense wllow cover,
there mght be alittle bit of confusion as to the
exact | ocation, yes.

Q Yeah. W could probably take this
satellite image all the way to the ground.

And woul d that hel p us know where it's at?

A If it was -- if the imgery was of
sufficient detail, yes, it would.

Q Yeah. Do you have inagery that's of that
sufficient detail that you' ve seen?

A No.

Q Ckay.

A We woul d get the NSA or sonebody for that.
One of those federal agencies; right?

Q That woul d be fun

And there hasn't been such detail ed imagery
for the basis of Figure 8 in your report?

A | assune that Figure 8 was using aeri al
imgery for that work, but |I'mnot sure about this
particul ar area, because | wasn't there and didn't
revi ew their work.

Q And it's hard to tell how detailed the

i mgery was fromthat figure; correct?
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A You're -- you're giving a scale that it's
hard for ne to comment on
Q That imagery isn't detailed enough to tel

you the exact point of diversion?

A It -- Figure 8 is not imagery.
Q Ri ght.
A It's -- it's a draw ng that was based on

either in-field work, supplenented with i magery, naybe
wth the USGS quad. Can we tell exactly where that
poi nt of diversion was? WIlIl, we can say that they

drew it in a certain | ocation.

Q And that's what we can say?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Sane for Figure 97

A Wll, what | can say on Figure 9 is the two

green dots where ny GPS acquired | ocation for those
poi nts of diversion, which should be accurate to within
20 or 30 feet.

Q Ckay. And if in fact the upper diversion
is actually upstream fromthe confluence of Stroud
Creek, despite your mapping here, fromwhat you're
telling ne you weren't out in the field to be able to
verify one way or the other the location in respect to
t hose confl uences?

A I was there and | ooked at the points of
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di version and | ooked at the other channel that was
approximately 50 feet to the east of the upper point of
diversion. | was not there specifically to try to nake
a determnation to where these two channels joined. As
|'ve said before, | think that that m ght change
dependi ng on fl ow regi nes and channel novenent and
erosi on and deposition.

Q Ckay. | think that's sufficient for what |
need to have you tell ne.

A Ckay.

Q Go to the section 3 of your report, that
fourth paragraph on page 7 of Exhibit 1.

A Yes.

Q Can you explain to ne what you're talking
about when you're nentioning "channels feeding the two
di versi ons appear to be separated"?

A That's consistent with what | was j ust
tal king about, that at that upper point of diversion
there was a channel that was supplying water to that
upper point of diversion. And then | wal ked t hrough
the willows and stepped over a bunch of stuff. And
t here was anot her channel that had sone water in it
t hat was about 50 feet east of that.

Now, there m ght have even been anot her

channel that was beyond that. | don't know. \Wat |
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saw were those two channels right there.

So at that | ocation of the upper point of
di version, the | ocation of that other channel was not
flow ng to that upper point of diversion. They were
separ at e.

Q Ckay. | just want to nake sure
under st ood what you were tal ki ng about when you
ref erenced those two channel s.

You al so nentioned in respect to section 3
sonme historic flows that you were -- had been
examn ni ng.

Coul d you tell ne about -- what you neant
by "historic flows" through that area.

A Could you point to ne where | said that.

Q | don't think you wote it here. You were
testifying that you exam ned -- or that you'd | ooked at
sonme historic flows and you nentioned that.

A Well, although it's not in ny report right
here, | have | ooked at a USGS system cal | ed
StreantSstats, which is a programthat's commonly used in
t he Northwest, and maybe el sewhere, to provide
esti mates of annual flows, the 20-year flood, the
50-year flood, the 100-year flood, those types of
t hi ngs that you m ght have heard commopnly used before.

Q So that's what you're referring to is just
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sone tabul ati ons of infornmation about what the historic

fl ows may have been?

A Well, okay, that's -- that's one exanpl e.
Q Ckay.
A But bei ng an engi neer working in the water

field for a long tine and this being part of my career,
| know that flows historically have been -- we've had
very big flows before, and so things nove around in --
in those flows. W have neandering and, |ike | said,
erosi on and deposition and channel bifurcation, things
happen under these different fl ow regines.

Q And does the information you're famliar
wth wth those historic flows al so give sone
descri pti on about, for exanple, historic flows in the
1880s when sone of these decrees were initially begun,
as opposed to flows since even the '90s or 2000s, if
there's been a shift in the neasurable flow of a
streanf

A | think there's various evidence out there
to support that maybe flows m ght be different than
they are historically, but I have not |ooked at that.

Q Ckay. Different in what way?

A That there are areas where -- and tines.
W -- we go through seasons, we go through periods

where we have | ow fl ows and we have higher flows. The
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'80s, for exanple, were a period, 1980s, where we had
hi gher flows than we had in the 1930s where we had sone
pretty serious droughts.

Soif -- 1 can't speak to a long-term
change in the flow regine here, but | can certainly
speak that -- that other scientists that study this
tell us that flows change over tinme based on our
hydr ol ogi ¢ cycl es and at nospheric conditi ons.

MR MANVWARI NG Ckay. | don't have any ot her
questi ons. Thank you.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

EXAM NATI ON
BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:

Q l'"mgoing to junp in and ask kind of a
question along the lines of what M. Manwaring was
aski ng.

And | want you to set aside junior water
rights. | want you to set aside the issues of this
case. W do have a nunber of streans within the state
t hat you -- like you nentioned, that nove, that nove
over tine, change.

If you were dealing with a client -- and
' m sure you have -- who has a point of diversion that

is dowmnstream of a confl uence of two creeks and
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there's, you know, a thunderstorm event, a high-fl ow
event and all of a sudden the tributary stream gets
bunped out and cones in downstream of their ditch
headi ng - -

A Yes.

Q -- what options does that client have to
renedy the situation?

A The client m ght have two options. One
m ght be to alter the stream upstream of their point of
diversion to try to get water back to their point of
di ver si on.

The ot her option could be to go to a | ower
point of -- a |ower point below that confluence and
change their point of diversion. They m ght have to do
anot her change to try to get water fromthat other
channel over to their point of diversion. So | could
see perhaps three different renedies. But it's -- it's
their responsibility to do that.

And | think that's what's happened here in
this case, and that's why we have the change fromj ust
one upper point of diversion to a systemwhere there's
two points of diversion, is because there was a need
wth streans that have changed for themto go put in
that | ower point of diversion to access their water.

Q To -- if the first option were used and you
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were -- and the client was to try to reconnect at the
old point of confluence, at the old confluence

| ocation, that would require, | guess, a stream channel
alteration permt possibly?

A Possi bly coul d, yes.

Q Ckay. GCkay. You don't -- you haven't
i nvestigated the stream channels, it sounds I|ike,
enough to know whet her that woul d even be a possibility
to reconnect the streans at sone | ocation upstream on
Lee Creek?

A No, | haven't. But we also have the issue
that that upper point of diversion in that upper ditch
cannot convey the 15 cfs water rights that they have.
So even if all the water was avail able at that upper
one, because those ditch systens have changed sonewhere
bet ween 1970 and '86, | don't think if the water was
avai | abl e at the upper one under the current ditch
systenms that he has, that he could nake use of it.

Q Uh- huh.

A It would require a bit of ditch work to
take all the water at one point and then take it down
to that | ower ditch.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Thank you.

We'll continue on -- oh, did you have

anything nore? | kind of junped in and pi ggybacked on
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sone of your questions, M. Mnwari ng.
MR MANWARING | quit.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Movi ng al ong,
Ms. Foster, do you have any?
M5. FOSTER | don't have anything. Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. M. Johnson, any
questi ons?
Ckay. W'Ill cone, then, to you,
M. Harris, if you' ve got cross-exam nati on questi ons.

MR HARRI'S: | do.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HARRI S:

Q Scott, you had testified before that -- you
have testified as an expert witness in other water
right matters?

A Yes, | have.

Q Have you represented both applicants and
pr ot est ant s?

A Yes, | have.

Q And you testified that you are famliar
wth the standards under |daho Code 42-222; correct?

A Yes.

Q And that would include injury to other

wat er rights?
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A Correct.

Q What i ssues do you review for in your
injury anal yses? Wat do you | ook for to determne if
there's injury to other water rights?

A | look to see -- that could be broad. That
expl anation could go on for a while. But sinply it
could be put | look to see if the change proposed by
the transfer will cause an inpact to other water rights
that could injure them

Q Right. So there's kind of a base
expectation, and then you eval uate how t he change woul d
change those expectations; is that fair?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And would adm nistrative access to a
wat ershed or a source of water that wasn't there

previous, could that be a formof injury.

A Yes.

Q Ckay. | want to just kind of wal k through
your report. | -- in order, just because | have --
just have several questions. So we'll start on page 1.

There's a statenent under section 1.2 that
says, "The point of diversion was inadvertently
admtted fromwater right clainms."

Do you see that statenent?

A. Yes, | do.
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Q Was that what the McConnells told you, or
was t hat your own i ndependent concl usion?

A | think that it goes to both. | think I
first heard that from McConnells, and I think I would
agree with the sane thing, because it certainly appears
to ne that that |lower ditch and the | ower point of
di versi on was apparent on the imgery used for the
Snake Ri ver Basin Adjudication, and it should have been
cl ai med.

Q Ckay. But you agree that that | ower point
of diversion was not on any of the prior decrees, the
Lemhi decrees or even the original decree back in 1911;
correct?

A And t he Snake Ri ver Basin Adjudication.

Q Ri ght .
A The | ower di versi on was never decreed, that
| can tell.

Q Ckay. Let's go to section 3 of your
report. It's on page 7. Well, I'll actually start
wWth this question.

Do you know how USGS maps are created?

A My understanding is that USGS naps are
created using aerial imagery with on the ground
investigation. There m ght be other information that

goes into it too. But it does often say on a USGS nap
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that it's based on aerial photography froma certain

dat e.

Now, how that was done historically back in
t he 1880s, | doubt that they were using aerial inmagery
at that time. I'mreally not sure. So a lot of it was

probably done from hand-drawn survey. So | believe
that the USGS uses a variety of nethods to prepare
their nmaps, but aerial imagery being one.

Q Correct. And | think right on your nmap
right there it says that it was initially devel oped
froman aerial image; right?

A Correct.

Q You did say there's sone ground-truthing.
| don't see any indication on there that there is
gr ound- t r ut hi ng.

But where does your understanding cone from
that there is sone ground-truthing on what's depicted
on the USGS map?

A | think this goes back to ny history with
the earliest napping that surveyors were doing before,
that there are | ocations on the maps where survey nmarks
are placed where they're actually locating pins --

Q Uh- huh.

A -- or nonunents. And so there is

ground-truthing going on to | ocate certai n nonunents.
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And those get placed in the map al so.

Q And | agree with you, there are sone inages
or there's things you can see in an aerial imge that
are pretty cl ear.

Are stream channel s covered by dense
vegetati on easy to see froman aerial photo?

A Depends on the aerial photo. Sonetinmes it
can be taken during a tine of year where it's fairly
easy to see because the | eaves are gone and there's not

as much vegetative cover. So that's an "it depends”

answer .
Q So |'mgoing to have -- even though Janes

just noved it over, I'"'mgoing to have it noved back.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER: That's fine. | thought we

were going to ook at the notes on the bottomof this
map.

MR HARRIS: No, you're fine.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: That's all right.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): In this photo, though
during the sumertinme, is it easy to depict the precise
| ocati on of the channels that goes through those trees?

A There are places that there are and pl aces
that there aren't. So when |I've | ooked at the Google
imagery and |I've zooned in on |ocations, there are

pl aces in there where you can clearly see a channel.
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Q Uh- huh.

A And it's been pointed out there's these
pl aces where it crosses through culverts under this
area that looks like a little road there, and there's
ot her places up and down where you can zoomin and you
can actually see what appears to be a stream channel.

Q Ri ght.

A But naybe it's where you're getting.

Can | exactly pinpoint where a stream
channel is going through all of that? It mght be
difficult. 1t looks like there's one that's com ng
t hrough here, and it | ooks |like there's another one
com ng through here, and it | ooks |like there's another
one that's com ng through here.

Q Yeah. |In your experience with sone of the
USGS maps, have you ever cone across an error in the
USGS maps?

A | can't think of one specifically. But I
won't argue that they are never in error.

VMR. BROMLEY: That's a nice fish, Rob

MR HARRIS: Sorry. | always do that.

MR. BROMLEY: Every tinme | see it.

MR HARRIS: | know. | really need to change
t hat .

MS. YENTER  You're just boasting.
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MR. BROMLEY: He's showi ng off.

MS. YENTER  Yeah.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Are you aware of --
there's actually a couple websites where individuals
are able to report changes or discrepanci es on USGS
maps to the U S. Geol ogi cal Survey?

A No, | wasn't. That's good to know. Thank
you.

Q Ckay. And this -- the Departnent of Water
Resources even tal ks about this dataset where they --

they're actively updating [unintelligible] --

A This, | have seen, yes.

Q Ckay. So you are aware of this?

A Yeah.

Q So you woul d agree naps aren't al ways
-

per f ect

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And even though the USGS nmap showed
t he confluence of Stroud Creek com ng in above both
di version points, you don't have any aerial photos or
ot her i ndependent verification of that, other than the
USGS nmaps, the Lemhi adjudication naps we' ve tal ked
about; correct?

A And that 1954 engi neer's nap.

Q And the '54. And did you happen to see the
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| egend, on the |l egend, that that map was prepared from

an aerial photo as well?

A | believe so, yes.
Q Ckay. So nost of them are taken from
aerial photos. I|I'mgoing to -- and just to confirm--
Wll, let ne -- sorry, Janes, |I'mgoing to

have you nove the USGS map.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No. That's good.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Can you give ne the
approxi mate quarter-quarter |ocation for where that map
shows the confluence of Stroud Creek and Lee Creek?

A That would be in section 30. It would be
in the sout heast of the northeast.

Q Ckay. |I'mnot going to have Janes nove --
| keep having himnove, but -- so --

MR. BROMLEY: Rob, would it help if he just puts
a mark on that nap? It doesn't bother ne at all.

MR HARRIS: It's totally up to you, if you
want .

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah. Scott, why don't you put a
mark. | --

Sorry, Rob, to junp in.

THE W TNESS: Yeah. Sure.

MR. BROMLEY: Wy don't you throw a mark in.

THE W TNESS: Make sure ny old eyes are put
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together right. So | amgoing to circle that right
there. So there's a big nmark.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Ckay. So southeast of
the northeast. Now, up on ny GQS map |'ve got the
sout heast of the northeast up on there. And | ooking at
that -- and | can zoomin -- it appears that we' ve got
a channel here.

Did you go visit this quarter-quarter in
any of your field visits?

A No, | don't believe so, because | -- |
think that the -- the furthest up that I went on the
system was at McConnel |l s' upper point of diversion,
maybe slightly above there, but not nuch.

Q And this is where | maybe m sunder st ood
your testinony, so | apologize if I'mrehashing old
ground. You said you saw two channel s at the upper
di ver si on poi nt.

Were those -- was one of those channels Lee
Creek and the other Stroud Creek, or are you saying
there were two channels of Stroud Creek?

A ' msaying there are two channel s of Lee
Cr eek.

Q That are split?

>

Yes.

Q So you're saying that the channel that was
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50-f oot distant is another Lee Creek channel ?

A Correct.

Q Based on what ?

A Based on this mapping and all the rest of
it that shows that that confluence is in this area.
And yes, there is another systemthat's conmng in here.
But I'd maintain if you went back historically, that
Stroud Creek is tributary in this area, that this flow
here has artificially been constructed by nmani pul ati ng
this streamover to the east.

Q Ckay. But that's -- that's based on what
evi dence? Just your | ooking through the nmaps?

A Looki ng through the -- | ooking through the
engi neer's map and | ooki ng t hrough series of aeri al
i magery.

Q Ckay. Are you saying today, then, that --
because | think -- | think what we're all dancing
around is this is where the Stroud Creek water is
com ng from

Are you saying that's not the Stroud Creek
channel or that's a Lee Creek channel ?

A Wiat |"'msaying is that's where sonme of the
wat er cones down t hrough now. W do know that there's
been -- fromwhat | understand, through listening to

what wat ermaster said and ot herw se, a | ot of
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mani pul ation with the Stroud Creek channel through the
Whittaker place of use. |It's not clearly defined as it
used to be. There was at one point where there clearly
was probably a channel going through there. But it's
not clearly defined now
And so ny contention is that if we | ooked
hi storically before the channel was mani pul ated t hr ough
the property that it would cone in in this |ocation,
but that the water has been pushed off to the east, and
now that water tends to flow down nuch nore in this
channel. And that can cone, | think, because Bryce
said he saw water at this |ocation but not this
| ocation and in this |ocation.
Q Yeah, that's not what he said, but we'll
have himclarify that.
A Ckay. Thank you.
Q But that channel, that southeast northeast,
that's BLM property.
So are you saying that there has been

mani pul ati on of the channel on that property?

A No.

Q Ckay. Then | m sunderstood you
A Not that | know of.

Q Not that you know of ?

A Yes.
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Q So if a stream channel just naturally
nove -- and you agree that they do that?

A | think naturally and unnaturally nove.

Q Yep. Wiere would you say the natura

channel of Stroud Creek is today?

A | would say that it's nearly inpossible, if
not inpossible, to tell because of the mani pul ati ons
t hat have happened with the natural channel through the
Whi ttaker property. | can't tell you where it is.

Q You were not asked to do that in your
eval uati on?

A No.

Q Ckay. So you're not testifying today about
where you think the confluence is? M. MConnell
testified it canme in bel ow his upper diversion point,
and you're not here disputing that?

A | won't dispute that there was anot her
channel that was west of the upper point of diversion
t hat j oi ned anot her one downstream No di sagreenent
there at all.

Q Yeah. Wen you say "channel," channel of
Lee Creek or Stroud Creek? Don't know?

A ' msaying that the confluence before
mani pul ati ons woul d have been upstream So | woul d

still call that Lee Creek. Because it had been pushed
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off to the side doesn't nean that it's Stroud Creek
pushed off down there.

Q Wien you say it's still Lee Creek, you
woul d agree with nme, the USGS map calls it Lee Creek
all the way up? It doesn't call it R ght or Left Fork?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. So there's just one Lee Creek, based
on that nap?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Setting aside this issue, because |
think | understand your |egal position, but assum ng
there was no di spute over where either the historic
confl uence of a creek cane in or the current one is, is
novi ng a di version bel ow that confluence to gain
adm ni strative access, in your opinion, would that
cause injury to other water rights?

A Potentially so, yes.

Q Ckay. How so?

A If you're gaining a new streamthat you did
not have access to previously. But | believe that
t hese water rights had access to that stream
hi storically when they were devel oped.

Q [Unintelligible.]

A And whet her naturally or unnaturally, that

nmoved downstream t hat confl uence, they have noved their
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poi nt of diversion to capture it.

Q Right. And |I'm saying assunm ng there's no

di spute. | understand your position in this matter.

But again, no dispute over the confluence,
you woul d say that would be grounds for an injury
determ nati on?

A If it was water that was not available to
the water rights before, potentially so, because they
woul d be able to call on water rights that they had not
hi storically been able to call.

Q Thank you.

On page 13 of your report -- actually, let
me ask you this question.

In all of your experience wth the
Departnment, have you ever been a waternaster?

A No.

Q Ckay. But you would say you're an expert
on water right interpretation and --

A Yes. And part of ny job while at Water
Resour ces was advi si ng waternmasters on wat er
distribution --

Q Ckay.

A -- and working with themin the field,
providing instructions to them

Q So if this transfer was approved w t hout
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any subordi nation condition and M. MConnell called
for water out of Stroud Creek, do you believe he would
have the ability to do that?

A | think M. -- do what?

Q Well, right nowif this transfer were
approved and his senior right is now downstream of the
confl uence of Stroud Creek, do you think
adm nistratively he would be entitled to call for water
out of Stroud Creek?

A | think M. MConnell's points of
di version, as historically devel oped, were al ways
downstream of Stroud Creek. And then the | ower one was
put in, because the streans had noved around. So |
t hi nk he's al ways been able to call on Stroud Creek. |
don't see that there's a difference in the sources of
wat er that's avail abl e.

Q So - -

A And | think that's also -- go ahead.

Q No, no. | interrupted you. Go ahead.

A | think that the -- the water rights that
are 1883 --

Q Uh- huh.

A -- that are downstream very -- they very
much inply that, because we have -- MConnell having

three water rights that are 1883 downstream and we
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have the ot her ones upstreamthat are 1883. And these
upstream ones say we're special. You don't have to
send us downstreamto deliver water.

And | think that's inplicit, because
there's no other reason that | anguage woul d have been
put on those rights if it wasn't for 1883 water rights
t hat were devel oped downstreamthat could have call ed
on that or been shared equally anongst them

Q Well, when you -- I"'mnot sure | track what
you' re sayi ng.

Wien you say sonething "inplicit,"” what do

you nean?

A We have the two water rights upstream --
369 and 370. | forget get their nunbers.

Q Uh- huh.

A But they have the pro rata | anguage in the

condi tions that say between the other 1883 water rights
you can't call on us.

Q Uh- huh.

A We' re uncuttable. But between oursel ves,
we got to be prorated.

Now, why woul d that | anguage be applied to

t hose water rights if there weren't but for other 1883
wat er rights sonewhere else in the system downstream

Q Wasn't that -- wasn't that in the original
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1911 decree, that | anguage?

A It probably was.

Q Ri ght .

A And that's why | say that's very clear
goi ng back historically. That |anguage woul dn't have
been pl aced on those water rights if it wasn't for
downstream 1883 that could call on them

Q Ckay. Referring to page 13, you say at the
bottom there under 4.1, "The | ower portion of Stroud
Creek may locally be referred to as the Left Fork of
Lee Creek."

When you say "the |lower portion,"” |'m not
sure | understand what you're saying there.

A Yeah. Maybe | should just say Stroud Creek

al t oget her.

Q Ckay.
A | think there's been a | ocal call of Stroud
Creek, perhaps to the Left Fork. I'mnot sure if that

goes to Everson Creek al so.
Q In -- on page 15 -- well, actually, 1"l
hol d t hat .
Let's go to page 18, the very, very top
sent ence.
MR. BROMLEY: Rob, did you say "18"?
MR HARRI'S: Correct. Yeah.
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MR. BROMLEY: Thanks.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): You say, "Because the
McConnel | points of diversion are downstream "

Are you sayi ng downstream of the confl uence

as shown on the maps or on the [unintelligible] --

A Let ne read the paragraph before that, so |
can put it into context, please.

Q It's just that first sentence

A Yeah. Correct. Except for perhaps the
Johnson water right, there's no what we call
| eapfroggi ng of points of diversion. MConnell points
of diversion historically have been, and in the future
will be, downstream of all of the protestants, except
for potentially that one Johnson point of diversion.

Q But if McConnell were to call for water out
of Stroud Creek right now, could he physically get it

to his upper diversion point?

A Under the flow regine --

Q Ckay.

A -- and conditions that | saw when | was
there, | don't think so, but I'"mnot positive, because

| don't know that those are separate channels all the
way up to there. W can make an assunption they are,
but I don't know of anybody that's wal ked t hose

channel s down.
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Q I*'mgoing to have you | ook at your
Exhibit 4. Sorry, not your Exhibit 4, but Exhibit 4 in
t he binder. These are the letters, 4 and 5, the
letters between the waternmaster --

A Ckay.

Q -- and M. MConnell -- M. and
Ms. McConnell and M. Udy.

Are you famliar with those letters?

A | am

Q Have -- how many conversations have you had
wth Ms. Yenter prior to this hearing?

A Two.

Q Ckay. Wien were those?

A | don't recall the exact dates. But one
was, | think, a couple of weeks ago within the | ast
coupl e of weeks. And the other one was maybe two
nont hs ago.

Q Ckay.

A Mont h and a hal f.

Q On Exhibit 6 -- I"msorry, Exhibit 5, at
t he bottom of that page there were instructions given
to the waternmaster to take certain neasurenents.

Are you famliar with that -- that part of
the letter?

A. Yes, | am
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Q Did -- did you discuss any of those
nmeasurenents with Ms. Yenter?

A | renmenber them being briefly discussed. |
don't renenber a concl usion, whether --

Q Ckay.

A -- whether there was -- what the results of
t he neasurenents were.

Q Ckay. And that's really what | was goi ng
to ask, is did you discuss any concl usi on reached on
that? | think your testinony is no?

A l'"mgoing to say no. And if we did, |
don't recall it.

Q Ckay. Do you understand why she woul d have
asked the waternmaster to do this?

A Yes.

Q Wiy do you t hink?

A That if the diversions in Stroud Creek,
ones in particular -- no, excuse ne, that spring
di version 74-157, whether that water would fl ow
downst ream and becone avail able to McConnells' points
of diversion. And I'd have to ook at this again to
see if it was just one of themor both of them

Q Ckay. And if those neasurenents were that
it didn't show any water yielding to the upper

di version point, that would indicate that Stroud Creek
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is joining below the upper diversion?

A Or that that water wasn't nmaking it down
there in the first place. So it could be that that
di version was curtailed at that |ocation.

Q Uh- huh.

A But it still mght not have fl own
downstreamto that point at all.

Q Ri ght.

A So | can't necessarily say to the upper
one, to the |l ower one, or to anywhere down there.

Q But at least curtailing 74-157 out of west
springs didn't yield any water to the upper diversion
poi nt ?

A | don't know that, because |I'm not sure |
see the concl usi ons.

Q You're right. | didn't ask that very well
That's okay. You're right.

That's all the questions | have.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE Okay. M. Bronley, do you
want to take a break and then cone back wth any -- any
redirect, or are you --

MR. BROMLEY: Sure. Yeah. Let's do that.
Yeah.

THE HEARI NG CFFICER Let's take a five-m nute

br eak. We've been at it for a while.
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MR. BROMLEY: | could use the bat hroom
MS. YENTER Do you want ne to stop it?
THE HEARI NG OFFICER.  That's all right. Go
ahead.
(Recess.)
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay. W're back on the
record.
M. Brom ey, did you have any foll ow up
questions for M. King?
MR BROMLEY: | do. Not -- not very nany. Just

a coupl e.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BROMEY:

Q Ckay. Scott, what

you |l ook at to form your
confluence is | ocated?
A. We' ve di scussed t hese

bei ng this USGS quadrangl e, there

used for the Lemhi adjudication.

map that was drawn -- excuse ne,

SRBA adj udi cati on.
adj udi cat i on.
we cal l

was - - t he engi neer's map

Q Ckay. And that --

t hat

pi eces of evidence did

know edge of where the

-- the npbst recent,
was the 1986 i magery
There was the 1970

86 map used for the

The 1970 map used for the Lemhi
And then there's the 1954 map t hat

from' 54.

"54 map, | think
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coincidentally, mght actually be Exhibit 154, if you
| ook in the Wittaker book.
Is that right?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER It is.

MR, BROMLEY: Yeah. Rob. | don't know if you
coincidentally did that or not, but your 1954
engineer's map i s Exhibit 154.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Wl | done.

MR. BROMLEY: It's kind of fun.

MR HARRIS: |1'mgoing to say | did that on
pur pose, but --

MR. BROMLEY: It doesn't surprise ne in the
| east.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: It is.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): GCkay. So with the
docunent ed evi dence that you've just summari zed again
in those three maps, and then | think, Scott, you --
you drew on the big Exhibit 24 where you -- where the

confl uence, as you understand it to be, is |ocated.

s that what you drew? |'mfar back here
and | can't --
A Yeah, that's a | ong ways away, isn't it?
Q Yeah.

A And kind of pointing with big sweeps. W

have -- we have Porcupi ne Creek com ng here. W
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have -- 1'll get in front of the Hearing O ficer, too,
to nake this fair.

| was tal king about the systens over here.
We have Porcupine Creek comng in. W have Lee Creek,
sonetines called the R ght Fork, sonewhere up there
com ng together. W have Stroud Creek and Everson
Creek com ng together.

And between this Stroud Creek and the Lee
Creek, they conme together and join where |I've nade a
circle. 1t's about, oh, three-eighths of an inch in
diameter. And this is in the southwest corner of the
sout h sout hwest corner -- quarter of the southeast
quarter of the northeast quarter of section 30.

Q Coul d you just put your initials on that

circle, Scott, so we know that that's what you drew.

Is there anything -- so you've -- you've
been out there. |Is there anything physical on the
ground in that |ocation that hel ps you understand where
this is on planet earth?

A Well, | have not been to that |ocation.

| ve been downstream at the McConnells' points. But in
| ooking at the imagery and things there, there's
these -- this road, which |I've not been on, but I
understand that there's sone culverts, this road right

here, trail, and sone culvert pipes that are close to
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t hat | ocati on.

Q And that's upstream is that correct,
[unintelligible]?

A Yes. In looking at this and | ooking at the
rest of it, I would call the |ocation of the confluence
of those systens right here.

Q Ckay. And that's upstream of the points of
di ver si on?

A Yes.

Q The point of diversion that's on the
McConnel |l right and the point of diversion that we are
tal king about in the transfer at the [unintelligible]?

A Well up -- well upstream of those.

Q Ckay. By "well upstream™ nmeani ng by how

far?

A What's our scale here? That's al nost
500 feet -- or about 500 feet. So there's 500 feet, a
t housand feet, 1,500 feet. Sonewhere between

1,500 feet and 2,000 feet.

Q Ckay. So quarter to -- quarter to half a
mle, somewhere less than half a mle?

A Yeah.

Q | grew up in Colorado, so 5,280 feet is a
very near and dear nunber to ny heart. Mle High Gty.

Love of Denver Broncos.
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Ckay. The other question that | want to
ask, Scott, is just to follow up again on we had tal ked
about the presence of this pro rata | anguage on 74- 369
and 74-370.

A Correct.

Q And you had been asked sone questions by
M. Harris about your prior testinony, and then you had
menti oned again the pro rata | anguage.

Wiy again is that significant to you that
t he upstream Left Fork of Lee Creek rights are
adm ni stered together with the downstream Lee Creek
proper MConnell rights?

A So the McConnell has three 1883 water
rights. They're very far downstream -- four?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: I think --

THE W TNESS: Three or four.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Yeah.

THE WTNESS: Sorry. You shouldn't have done
that, and | shouldn't be wat ching.

Needl ess to say, there are several 1883
water rights that McConnell owns that are downstream
t hat do not include any | anguage about the pro rata
di stribution of those water rights. Sane exact
priority date.

And then we have these two water rights far
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upstreamthat are a bit smaller, and they include this
pro rata |language. So | |look at this and say the
decree at that tine and the judge that's putting that
decree toget her says we have several 1883 water rights
on this system W have a couple of smaller ones
upstream and sone bi gger ones downstream

And what nmakes the nost sense, for sone
reason or the other, is these 1883 water rights get
adm ni stered anongst thensel ves and can't be called
downstreamto distribute to deliver water to the other
1883 water rights.

Is it because there woul d have been a
futile call? Too nuch | osses? Wre there sone other
reasons that that decision-naker deci ded that those
ones were special? | don't know. But the |anguage is
there. It was there certainly fromthe earlier decree
and got carried forward.

So it clearly says between these there's no
ot her 1883 water rights along there. There's a bunch
of junior priority ones, but nothing else until you get
to McConnel |l s' pl ace.

So to ne that's obvious that there was a
realization that those water rights coul d have been
called on by the other 1883 water rights if it wasn't

for that | anguage.
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Q (BY MR BROMLEY): And so if the -- because
we -- presently there's a point of diversion on the
McConnel | rights.

If the confluence truly were comi ng in down
bel ow t hat point of diversion that is on the water
rights, what would the purpose of the | anguage be?

A | don't see any purpose for that | anguage.
Because if that diversion point were upstream of that
confl uence, those other water rights could never cal
on the upstream ones to be delivered.

And as far as | can tell, between 1970 and
"86, in '70 the water -- the point of diversion was
even further upstream So if that confl uence goes
downstream it was even a further upstream point of
di version, which is contrary to that | anguage there in
a conbi ned adm nistration of those water rights, and
t he i mportance of these ones not being delivered to the
downst r eam ones.

Q So i n your experience, Scott, the
conditions that are put on the water rights are
i ntended to be adm ni stered?

A Yes.

Q And if the confluence was sonewhere el se,
if the confluence was com ng in bel ow that upper point

of diversion that is on the face of the rights, it
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woul d be neani ngl ess | anguage?

A Those water rights would have been
adm ni stered pro rata anyway. Yes, it would be a
meani ngl ess condi ti on.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. | have nothing further.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Com ng around.
M. Manwari ng, anything nore?

MR, MANWARI NG  Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Go ahead.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR NANWARI NG

Q If you'll -- on that point, if you'll |ook
at your Exhibit 1. W're in Rosalie Ericsson's water
right.

A Whi ch page, pl ease?

Q Well, it doesn't have a page nunber. But
it's in the actual water right section. There's an
Appendi x - -

A Oh, one of the appendi ces. Ckay.

Q -- C I'"'mlooking at Water Ri ght
No. 74-370.
A Yeah, just a second. | got to get to

Appendix C. Oh, there's 74-370.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.
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THE W TNESS: Rosalie Ericsson, yes.
Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : And the | anguage

you're tal king about is on that next page, page 2 of 3.

Under paragraph 1 it says -- I'mgoing to read this. |
want to make sure | read it correctly, if you'll follow
al ong.

A Yes.

Q "When the flow of water in Lee Creek is

insufficient to supply all water rights under the
5/ 12/ 1883 date of priority, R ght 74-369 and R ght
74-370 shall not be prorated with any rights on Lee
Creek with that priority date.”

Did | read that correctly so far?

A Yes.

Q And what are we tal ki ng about with Water
Ri ghts 369 and 370? Wose are those?

A Rosalie Ericsson, and | believe Wittaker
owns the other one.

Q Ckay. So we're tal king about the sane
peopl e? W' re tal king about those two people, that's
all we're tal ki ng about ?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Then it goes on to say, "Wen the
flowin the Left Fork of Lee Creek falls bel ow anounts

decreed in Rights 369 and 370, the two rights shall be
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prorated, according to the respective anpunts of water
decreed. "
Did | read that correctly?

A Yes.

Q And so that | anguage isn't tal ki ng about
McConnel I s' water right, is it?

A Whi ch | anguage?

Q No. 1. It's not referring to that? Wat
just read to you isn't referring to McConnells' water
right?

A Yeah, | believe it is.

Q You' re basing that on why el se would they
put it in there? Let ne just ask you.

Does that water right show up on there?

A No. But --

Q Ckay.

A -- the source is Left Fork Lee Creek,
tributary to Lee Creek. And so that condition is
specifically saying the water in Lee Creek is
insufficient to satisfy the McConnell water rights, the
ot her 1883 water rights under the 5 dash 12 dash 1883
water rights, then these should not be prorated with
the rights on Lee Creek.

Q Ckay. Wiose water right is 74-3697?

A That's Wi ttaker.
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Q And whose water right is 74-3707

A Rosal i e Eri csson.

Q Ckay. It says there when it's
insufficient -- when the water flow is insufficient on
Lee Creek to supply all water rights under the 1883
date of priority, those two water rights, Ericsson and
VWhittakers' will not be prorated with any rights on Lee
Creek with that priority date; right?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. But there isn't an actual reference
to the water right nunmber of McConnells' on there, it's
just tal king about Lee Creek with a priority date?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. And then in the second part of that,
it's just tal king about water flows in the Left Fork of
Lee Creek; correct?

A Yes.

Q And from what we can gather, Left Fork nay
have been Stroud, nay have been Everson, may have been
bot h?

A ' mnot sure, yes. Maybe Everson, but
certainly there's a common | ocal nane of Left Fork and
Stroud Creek on the sane system

Q Ckay. At least -- at least Stroud Creek?

Not necessarily Everson, but at |east Stroud?
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A Yes.
Q And again, it's tal king about the Ericsson

and the Wiittaker right having this prorating going

on --
A Uh- huh.
Q -- is that correct?
A Yes.
Q But again, there's no reference to a

specific water right?

A And that doesn't -- that does not surprise

Q Ckay. | understand it namay not surprise
you.

But there's no reference to one?

A Not -- not a reference to it. But it
certainly is acknow edgi ng that there are other water
rights with an 1883 priority date.

Q On --

A The only others are this 369 and 370. So
clearly in this decree there was an acknow edgnent t hat
there were other 1883 water rights.

Q On Lee Creek?

A Yes.

Q But not Left Fork?
A

Correct.
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MR MANWARI NG Ckay. | don't have anythi ng
further.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Ckay. M. Johnson, |
j unped over you.

Any?

MR, JOHNSON: |' m good.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ms. Foster?

MS. FOSTER |' m good.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. M. Harri s,
anyt hi ng nore?

MR HARRI S: Just one clarification.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HARRI S:

Q | believe M. Brom ey said what evidence
did you |l ook for -- |look at for where the confluence is
| ocat ed.

And you said the 1986 imagery for the Lemhi

adj udi cati on?

A Yes. And | neant 1986 for the SRBA
adjudi cation. | did say Lenhi at first and then
corrected nysel f.

Q But | don't see that inage of the BLM
property in this report.

Are you saying you | ooked at the inmage to
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determ ne where the confl uence was, or were you doi ng
that to | ook at the points of diversion, MConnells'
poi nts of diversion?

A Yeah, you're correct that Figure 7 shows
t he 1986, does not show the | ocation of that
confl uence. But that was one that | was al so | ooki ng
at to see if it appeared consistent with the others.
But | don't have that in a figure here.

MR HARRIS: Ckay. No further questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Thank you,
M. King.

M. Brom ey, you had nentioned that you

wanted to call one nore witness. You can go ahead.

MR. BROMLEY: Yes. W'd call G ndy Yenter.

THE HEARING OFFICER:. | think this can all just
run.

M5. YENTER Let ne just get ny -- get us | ogged

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

Cl NDY YENTER,

havi ng been called as a witness by the Applicants, was

duly sworn and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Ms. Yenter, wll you
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affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give is the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?
THE WTNESS: | do.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. Go ahead.
MR, BROMLEY: Thank you.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROWLEY:

Q C ndy, would you pl ease state and spell
your nane for the record.

A C ndy Yenter, Ci-n-d-y, Y-e-n-t-e-r.

Q And, C ndy, since |I've known you for kind
of along tinme, I"'mjust going to continue to call you
"Gndy," if that's okay.

A That woul d be dandy.

Q Thanks.

Who are you enpl oyed by?

A I *' m enpl oyed by the | daho Departnent of
Wat er Resources.

Q And what is your current position?

A Classified as an Analyst 4. | staff and
manage the Salnon field office, and I'm al so
wat ermaster for Water District 170.

Q Have you been a waternmaster before prior to

bei ng wat ermaster for 1707?
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A | have. O f and on since the start of ny
career, but pretty much full tinme since 2003 when | was
appoi nted waternaster of Water District 130 in the
East ern Snake Pl ain.

Q Ckay. How | ong have you been the
wat ermaster for 1707

A | was appointed in 2015.

Q And being the waternaster for 170, do
you -- do you have super- -- would it be right to say
you have supervisory -- you have a supervisory role
over sone of the other districts? O quite how does
t hat work? Because we've tal ked about Water District
74Z, and then you' ve di scussed bei ng wat ermaster for
170. And --

A Ri ght .

Q -- I"'mjust kind of curious how that works.

A Water District 170 was established as an
oversight district. And within the oversight -- and
the oversight district is neant -- is intended to
eventual |y enconpass all of the Upper Sal non basins,
from Gl ena Summt all the way down to the M ddl e Fork.
We, as you know, are not quite finished with that
expansi on, but we have included the Lemhi Basin in
Water District 170.

And so all of the existing water districts
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in the Lenmhi Basin, including Water District 74D, were
put into Water District 170 as subdistricts. And so
each subdistrict continues to operate autononously.
They el ect their own waternmasters. They adopt their
own budget s.

But then yeah, | kind of take on a
supervisory role for those subdistrict waternasters,
and | provide technical support, conpliance support,
gener al gui dance, and handhol di ng, and -- and anyt hi ng
really that they need to -- to nake their job easier
and to allow themto just basically go about their

daily duties and deliver the water.

Q And - -

A So it is supervisor of sorts.

Q Ckay. And | think you said 74D
A O | nmeant "Z," if | said "D."
Q That's what | think you neant.
A I nmeant Z.

Q Yeah, that's what | thought.

A There's |ike 12 of them

Q I know. How | ong have you been the
wat ermaster of Water District 1707

A As | said just a mnute ago, | got -- | was
appoi nted in 2015.

Q 2015. Ckay. And so then you're famliar
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wth Lee Creek drai nage?

A. | am
Q Geat. And are you famliar with the water
rights, then, that defer from-- | should say within

t he Lee Creek drai nage, which would be Lee Creek
proper, Right Fork Lee Creek, Porcupine Creek, Stroud
Creek, Everson Creek?

A I am

Q Ckay. So if you could turn to Exhibit 4,
Cindy. I'massuming you're famliar with this letter.
You signed it.

A I am

Q Coul d you just please describe it.

A This is a letter that | sent to Bruce and
d enda McConnell on August 6th, 2020, after it had cone
to ny attention that they had been using an
unaut hori zed di version on Lee Creek. And | had asked
themto pl ease nmake arrangenents to cl ose that
di versi on and cease using it.

Q Ckay. Then Exhibit 8, which is this
transfer that we've been tal ki ng about, are you

famliar with this docunent?

A I'm-- yeah, I'mfamliar with it.
Q Ckay.
A | have not -- yeah, |I've reviewed it. Yes.
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Q And so as to the McConnell diversion, is
this transfer addressing the concern that you raised in
Exhi bit 47

A Yes. The intent of this transfer appears
to ne to be to add that | ower diversion as an
aut hori zed point of diversion on the McConnell water
rights.

Q Separate question as to whether it's
approved or not --

A Exactly.

Q -- but it's at |least a paper attenpt to
correct --

A It's the -- yeah, that's what the intent of
the transfer appears to ne.

Q Right. Could you turn to Exhibit 10.

And what is this docunent?

A These are ny waternaster comments that |
made and sent back to the region after -- as -- when
this transfer -- it was during the period this transfer
was in advertising. And like all waternmasters, | got
t he opportunity to nake comments on this proposal.

Q Ckay. So let's -- let's talk alittle bit
about what you wote, then.

What did you wite in this first paragraph?

A That was just to say that | -- that | was
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aware that the second diversion had been in use for
sone tine, and then that that alone did not justify the
approval of the transfer, of course, but that everyone
in the general area seened to be aware that that
di version was there, including the watermaster and many
of the adjacent water users, although |I didn't ask all
of them

Q Ckay. And then in this -- this second
par agraph, C ndy, | see sone reference again to these
Water Rights 74-369 and 74-370.

How do you understand that those are

adm ni stered with the McConnell downstream 1883 rights?

A Wll, effectively the conditions on 369 and
370 causes subordinati on of McConnells' rights at the
time that there's no longer water in the system And
of course, everybody's tal king individual drainages. |
don't necessarily look at it that way. It's a system
It's the Lee Creek system | don't care what you cal
t he creeks.

When there's no | onger water in the system

to fill all the 1883 rights, then | think the net
effect of those two -- of that -- of those conditions
on 369 and 370 is that the McConnell rights are
subordi nated, and they no | onger get water sent down to

them And the upper -- the upper two 1883 water rights
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can use that water, and then they will continue to
proportionately reduce their use until there is no nore
wat er .

Q Do you know where the pro rata | anguage

cane fronf

A. No cl ue.

Q Let ne ask you to turn to Exhibit 151
A 151.

Q That's in the Wittaker --

A Thi s one.

Q -- book.

A Ckay.

MR HARRIS: Are you now stipulating to its
adm ssi on?

MR. BROMLEY: | was | ooking at one of the
attachnents, Rob

MR HARRI'S: Yeah. | know.

MR. BROMLEY: He's already said that it's com ng

I'd like you to ook at Exhibit A
You may have to help nme find it here.
You' re al nost there.

s this it?

Yeah. Wiat's that docunent ?

> o0 >» O > 0

It appears to be a water decree of sone
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sort.

Q Ckay. And who are the parties?

A Looks |i ke Reddi ngton [phonetic] are the
plaintiffs. And Bohannan [ phonetic], Mil ky [phonetic],
and Schoonover [phonetic] are the defendants.

Q Ckay. And it says "Decreed"?

A It does -- it is -- it does say "Decreed,"”
uh- huh.

Q Does this ook famliar to you? Just -- |
mean not this particul ar decree, but | see water right
nunbers stanped on the decree.

A Yeah, this is a general -- it's a pretty
general format for -- for a court -- a court-decreed
wat er case.

Q Ckay. And do you know -- so the McConnells
have water with 1883, they've got -- let ne | ook at
Scott King's table here.

A Yeah.

Q They have 1883 water rights that are

74- 361.
So do you see that in the decree here?
A Yes.
Q Do you see 74-363 in this decree?
A Yes.
Q 3657
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Yes.

3677

> O >

Yes.

Q Ckay. And then if you flip to the next
page, do you see stanps for 74-369 and 3707?

A Ri ght.

Q Ckay. And then in paragraph 7, what's
witten there about prorating?

A Well, part of it is |language that's

directly reflected in that condition. The rest of it I

get alittle off in the weeds, because | |ose track of
who -- you know, who now owns those | ands.

Q Sur e.

A The Bohannan and Mul ky, but -- yeah.
The part -- at least part of that is what is currently

reflected in the SRBA partial decrees for 369 and 70.

Q So that prorating concept, then, goes
back - -

A It goes clear back to this.

Q Yeah. And what was the date of this?

A 1911. | can | ook. No. 12, July 1912.

Q Yeah. So over a century.

Ckay. Ckay. And because, then, that that
condition appears on the SRBA rights, are you then able

to adm ni ster them as the wat ernaster?
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A Yes. And to the best of ny know edge,
that -- bear in mnd that | don't do day-to-day
adm ni stration on Lee Creek. There is a | ocal
wat ermaster there. But, you know, | had di scussions
with that watermaster. And to the best of ny
knowl edge, that condition is adm nistered.

Q Ckay. And you can adm ni ster conditions
that you're aware of that are on the face of the right?

A That are on the face of the right, yes.

Q And if you don't have something that's on a
wat er right, how do you adm nister it?

A Many tinmes we are -- don't have any
authority to adm nister anything that is not appearing
on the right.

Q Yeah. Ckay. Cindy, |ooking back again at
Exhibit 10, what did you wite in the third paragraph?

A | was witing there about the historic
confl uence of Stroud Creek and Lee Creek. And this
ki nd of goes back to M. King's testinony where all --
every map in existence that any -- you know, anybody's
ever | ooked at shows that historic or the drawn -- you
know, the drawn point of confluence in a place that
m ght not be accurate in the present day.

But | refer to that as the historic

di ver si on. And | believe that that was -- or the
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hi storic confluence, I"'msorry. And | believe that it
was -- well, | don't even -- | don't even -- | can't
even say that. But | -- | refer to that as the

hi storic confl uence.

And -- and in that paragraph I also
acknowl edge that there is a channel conmng in to Lee
Creek further down. |I'mnot prepared to say | know
where that channel is comng from because | don't. It
is just a channel, and it seened to be carryi ng nost of
the water on the day | was out there | ooking at it.

And it was com ng in bel ow McConnells' upper diversion.
Q Ckay. Then in the final paragraph, G ndy,
what do you -- what do you say there?
A Well, ultimately, | nmean ny reconnmendati on
is that | felt that the transfer coul d be approvabl e
and be adm nistered without injury. Now, | did not
suggest conditions. But that was kind of ny
inmplication, is that there would probably be sone
condi tions involved in order for the admnistration to
occur without injuries.

And | didn't specul ate as to what those
conditions mght be. | left -- I"'mleaving that up to
t he Departnent. But that with proper conditions and
proper controlling works on all the diversions, both

McConnel |l and the upstream diversions, that | felt it
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woul d be proper to admnister -- | nean | felt it would
be possible to adm nister all the rights in that

drai nage in that systemw th that second point of

di versi on pl ace.

Q Ckay. And previously you described this as

a system - -
A Uh- huh.
Q -- the Lee Creek system And vari ous

people are calling different pieces of it different

t hi ngs.
But you see it as a systemis what you
sai d?
A It is truly a system It is -- it is
adm ni stered together. Under |daho water | aw systens

are adm ni stered together. And even in the Lemi, Lee
Creek and tributaries are in one of these separate --
you know, is one of the streanms listed in the
separately adm nistered list of streans in the Lemhi
general provisions.

And that doesn't nean that each tributary
gets to be admi nistered as a stand-al one tributary. It
means that Lee Creek and all of its tributaries are
adm ni stered as one. So if -- you know, and so barring
any special conditions |ike the ones that appear on 369

and 370, every water right in that drainage -- or
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unl ess there's sone extenuating circunstance |ike a
futile -- a futile delivery call, every single right in
that drainage is -- is adm nistered at the sane
priority at any given tine, depending on how nuch water
is there.

Q So the separateness, then, you nentioned
t he general provision, is to the mainstemof the --

A Is at the mai nstem of the Lemhi only.
Not -- not to the -- yeah.

Q Ckay. Let's |look at Exhibit 5.

Do you recognize this letter?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what are you describing in here?
There's a piece about the McConnells, and then there's

a piece about the 74-157 right.

A Yeah. [|'mgoing to have to rem nd nyself
what - -

Q Absol utel y.

A -- what this says.

| was trying to determne futile call. |

mean | -- you know, futile call, even though you didn't
ask, I"'mgoing to give you the definition. A futile
call is when an upstreamjunior water right is

curtailed and there is no resulting increase in

beneficial use to the downstream seni or.
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And this can happen because of channel
| osses and the water just doesn't get there. O | nean
it can happen for a variety of reasons. But usually

it's one of those things that happens, or maybe there's

been some kind of weird disconnect in the channel. And
like I said, I -- | -- we don't know what's happeni ng
wth that channel right now W're still doing an

investigation, as a matter of fact.

But in this case, you know, | wanted to see
if -- 1 wanted to see if -- if resunption of delivery
under that spring right, which we currently had
curtailed, really gave any usable water back to
McConnells. And so | had sent this set of instructions
to the watermaster so he could, you know, run through a

series of tests, as it were.

A futile call is sonething that -- that
unless it's defined -- | nean, you know, unless it's
defined specifically in sonme docunent, futile call is

sonething that has to be determ ned every single year,
every single place.

Q And so the conditions that are in 74-369
and 74-370 Scott King said, you know, could -- may have
been akin to a |l egal determ nation of futile call
witten down in this old Reddi ngton decree that we

| ooked at.
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A Uh-huh. 1'd agree with that.

Q Ckay.

A And though -- | nean, you know, and if --
t hose woul d nake water -- you know, those woul d nake

our life a lot easier if we had those marchi ng orders.
In a lot of cases we do not. And so we have to neke

t hese determ nations -- we basically have to deal with
t hese things as they cone up.

And every year is different, because the
flow every year is different. The channel nmay have
nmoved. Different people nmay be calling for water. So
the futile call determnation is rarely set in stone.
It has to be nade every year. But |ast year we were

| ooki ng at one.

So let's | ook at Exhibit 14.

Q Case- by-case, unless it's --
A Case- by-case, year-by-year --
Q Yeah.

A - - day- by-day.

Q

And that letter that we were just | ooking
at was referencing Water R ght 74-157?
A Correct.
Q So what is Exhibit 147
A It is a proof reports of -- it's a partial

decree. |It's a proof report of the partial decree
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issued in 2012 in the Snake Ri ver adjudication for
Water Ri ght No. 74-157.
Q It's not actually a proof report. It's

actually the partial decree itself.

A It's the partial decree.
Q Yeabh.
A It's a copy of the partial decree.

Q Yeah. Ckay. And the source tributary and
priority date for 74-1577

A Source is springs tributary to Lee Creek.
Priority date is 4/1/1916.

Q Ckay. Nothing on the face of this right
t hat woul d cause you to admnister it any differently
t han any other water right wthin the Lee Creek system

based on priority, based on source, based on tributary?

A No.
Q Ckay. No special conditions?
A No.
Q Let's | ook at Exhibit 11.
Do you recogni ze what Exhibit 11 is?
A This appears to be a water right proof
report or an abstract of -- there it is. Actually, it

| ooks |Iike a page out of either a recomendati on book
or a -- or a decree book. | don't know, because it's

out of context. But it does include a summary report
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of 74-157.

Q Yeah. And | would just represent to you,
Cindy, this -- it conmes out of what's called the G een
Book.

Do you know what the Green Book is?

A | do.

Q Ckay. Wiat's the Green Book?

A The Green Book is the printed report of
final decrees in the Lemhi Basin adjudication. And |
forget the year, but | think it was in the '80s.

Q Ckay. And the source and tributary for
this right is what?

A Springs tributary to Lee Creek.

Q And | see there's sone other springs
tributary to Lee Creek on there as well.

MR HARRIS: Could | -- could | get a
clarification really quick?

MR, BROMLEY: Sure.

MR HARRIS: |[|'ve actually seen a Bl ue Book --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  Go ahead.

MR HARRIS: -- and a G een Book.

MR, BROM_EY: Sur e.

MR HARRI'S: Do you know which one --

MR. BROMLEY: My understanding --

MR HARRIS: And they're a little different.

000209




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 208
Audio Transcription

MR. BROMLEY: Sure.
MR HARRIS: So --
MR. BROMLEY: M understanding, Rob, is this

came out of the Green Book. And if you want ne to,

Rob, | can just withdraw the whole |line of questioning
on this particular exhibit. | conpletely agree with
you the cover page of this is not included. |'mjust

maki ng a representation to G ndy it cane fromthe G een
Book. |I'm happy to withdraw the questi ons.

MR HARRIS: No, I"'mjust -- I"'mjust wanting to
make sure, because there is another Lenmhi docunent
where it's the source of springs, but not tributary to
Lee Creek.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Yeah, [unintelligible]
e-mail --

MR. HARRI S: Yeah.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: -- showing that it's
listed as springs.

MR. HARRI S: So | don't know which one this one

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah. So, Rob, let ne just --
"1l withdraw t he questions, then, on Exhibit 11.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

MR. BROMLEY: | don't want to nake this
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conf usi ng.

Q So, CGndy, I"'mjust going to wthdraw the
questi ons about Exhibit 11.

So let's just look at Exhibit 12.

A Ckay.

Q VWhat's this?

A Sone kind of an abstract report show ng
three different water rights that appear --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER No.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Let's go on --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Exhi bit 12.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Exhibit 12.

A Oh, Exhibit 12. [|I'msorry.

Q Yeah. Let's go to Exhibit 12

A Need to have ny good |istening ears on.

Q No probl em

A Al right.

Q VWhat's Exhibit 127

A Exhi bit 12 appears to be a notice of claim

to a water right which was filed in the Snake Ri ver
Basi n Adjudication in 1990 by Floyd J. Wi ttaker
representing a claimto Water Ri ght No. 74-157.

Q Ckay. And the source tributary and
priority are?

A Springs tributary to Lee Creek, priority
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April 1, 1916.

Q Ckay. Turn to page 3. It looks like it

was signed -- | don't know whet her you recognize the
si gnature or not. ' mnot sure that | do either,
but. ..

A It looks like F. Janes Wittaker.

Q Ckay. So then let's |look at Exhibit 13.
VWhat's this?

A This is a notice of error. Notices of
error were sent out -- well, if this is -- based on the
date, | would -- of 2004, | would say this is a notice
of error. These were sent out after recomrendati ons

had been made in the Snake Ri ver Basin Adjudication to

i ndi vi dual water right owners so that they could review
t he recommendati ons that were going to be nade by the
Depart nent and the Court.

Q And in your experience, you know, what
woul d -- what was the purpose of this notice of error
docunent ?

A | didn't work directly in the adjudication.
But ny understandi ng was that the notice of error was
to give each water right hol der the chance to dispute
t he recommendati on that was being nmade to the Court.

Q Ckay. And so then on this form what are

you seeing that was acconpli shed on the forn?
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A M. Wiittaker checked the line that says "I
agree with this proposed reconmendati on and no changes
need to be nmade."

Q Ckay. And "M. Wittaker" being?

A James Wi ttaker signed it.

Q Ckay. And that then references back to
Exhi bit 12, which was the -- I'"'msorry. That's the --
that's the claim

A Yeah.

Q So then we | ook at Exhibit 14.

And that ultimately is the SRBA decree;
correct?

A Yes, that is the partial decree.

Q Ckay. So all of this informs you, | ooking
at Exhibit 14, that this 74-157 is a spring right
that's tributary to Lee Creek?

A Correct.

Q Wth a priority date --

A O 4/ 1/ 1916.

Q And no speci al other provisions necessary
or adm nistrative [unintelligible]?

A No. None appearing on the face of the
ri ght, no.

Q Ckay. Thank you

Let's |l ook at Exhibit 3.
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Are you famliar with this e-mail? 1t nmay

t ake you a second to --

A It'"s really tiny. But yes, | amfamliar
wth -- | amfamliar with this e-nail

Q It cane out real small.

A Well, wait a m nute.

Q |*ve got a nmuch bigger version of it if you

want to | ook at m ne.
A Ckay. It is what | thought it is.
Yes, | amfamliar with this.
Q Ckay. So what do you -- what does
Exhi bit 3 say?
A Wul d you turn on the other |ight?
Q Yeabh.
A That hel ps.
Well, | had forwarded this to the
McConnells, but it is a copy of an e-mail string
bet ween Rob Harris and | DAR s deputy attorney general
Garrick Baxter discussing a Supreme Court decision from
back in the 1950s.

Q Ckay. And if you recall, C ndy, do you

agree or disagree with this -- this e-mail, or have no
opi ni on?
A Wll, I -- inthis M. Baxter states that

t he Departnment has reviewed the case, the Wittaker
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ver sus Kauer, and disagrees with Wittakers'
interpretation of the case.
And | would have to say that | agree with

t hat, because | was the one that brought it to
M. Baxter's attention, because | disagreed with
M. Wittaker's interpretation of the case.

Q And what was M. Wittaker's
interpretati on?

A As -- as told to nme by Jordan and Janes
Whi tt aker sinultaneously, that they believed that this
court action, which was a Suprene Court -- actually a
Suprene Court decision, had given them-- had given the
Whittakers exclusive right and title to a pair of
springs that are |ocated on their | and adjacent to what
is marked on the maps as Stroud Creek, and that
therefore that right was not adm nistrable within Water
District 74Z.

Q Ckay. So then as -- as a waternaster,
woul d you have expected -- | nean had -- had there been
anything in your mnd to this Wittaker versus Kauer
case, would you have expected to see sonething
docunent ed sonmewhere in the SRBA?

A Most certainly. 1In fact, that's one of the
first things | did was to go out and | ook for just that

sort of thing. But it didn't take |ong to detern ne
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that there was nothing on the face of the right. The
Lemhi general provisions didn't nention it. The clains
didn't nention it.

So for sonme reason -- and |'mnot saying it
was right or wong, but the way it was clainmed, it canme
forward t hrough apparently both the Lenmhi and the Snake
Ri ver Basin decrees without any reference at all to
this 1956 court case. And so consequently ny job was
to adm nister the right [unintelligible].

Q Ckay. So you're waternaster of 170.

VWater District 74Zis a -- it's a water

district; correct?
A It is.
Q And does it have a neasurenent requirenent,

a, you know, |ockable, controllable --

A Uh- huh.
Q -- requirenent?
A It does. In 2018, shortly after the

entirety of Basin 74 was added to Water District 170,
t he Departnent issued a general neasurenent order,
which applied to all of Basin 74, including Water
District 74Z.

That did require | ockable, controll able
headgat es and neasuri ng devices on all adm ni stered

di ver si ons.
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And it also -- the order -- taking a step
back. The order that actually nodified Water
District 170 to include Basin 74 had further identified
the rights that were to be adm nistered by Water
District 170 and its subdistricts. And that spring is
squarely anong them

Q Ckay. And so then within the Lee Ceek
system how are -- how are water users doing with their
install ati on of neasurenent devices?

A From what | could see, nost of them were
already in place, you know, even at the time of the
order. There's a few di screpancies that we continue to
work on. But notably these springs, because they had
been | argely -- they had been unadm ni stered by the
District forever. You know, | don't think they've ever
been actively adm nistered by the D strict.

And | don't know why, but this happens from
time to time, that districts just decide or, you know,
they're not going to adm ni ster sonething. And the
Departnent sonetines has to cone back in and say, you
know, "We're sorry. This is in your district. You
need to start admnistering it."

So that spring was both -- there's two
springs. | say that spring. There's two springs. 1In

my mnd the east spring needs a whole | ot nore

000217




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 216
Audio Transcription

investigation and may not in fact be tributary to
Stroud Creek. And so | don't consider that really that
important to this conversation. But the west spring is
clearly tributary to Stroud Creek.

And so when | first went up to investigate
that, there was no controls. There was a sort of a
measuri ng device that was not working real well, but
there had been an attenpt to put sone neasuri ng device
on it, but there was no controls. And so there was
really no way that the watermaster would have had
control over the flow of that spring.

Q Ckay. Do you know, then, Cndy -- let ne

ask it this way.

Have you been up to these springs?

A |'ve been very, very near them | nean
they -- it does get very boggy in there. But | -- yes,
| have been up there. 1've |ooked at -- |'ve seen
the -- at least the tail end of the collection ditches
t hat have -- that was -- that was -- that was

constructed to collect the springs.

The west spring is a conplex. It's not a
spring. |t appears to be a conplex of springs. And
this, again, is very commpon. And so a ditch was -- was

dug, was constructed to collect that spring fl ow and

bring it out to where it could be put in one of the
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Wi tt akers' ditches. And so | was kind of there at
t hat junction.

But, you know, and we went back into the --

into that area a little bit. But it is very boggy, so
yeah, we didn't go very far. But yeah, |'ve been up
t here.

Q From what you saw, are these springs able

to flowinto Left Fork of Lee Creek, which has al so
been call ed Stroud Creek?
A They can get there. But again, | nean |

have to reiterate what M. King said. That channel has

obvi ously been nanipulated. And I -- | don't know
when, because renenber, |'ve only been around since --
you know, | was appointed in 2015. | noved up to the
area in 2016. | first visited this location |ast year,

because I"'min charge of a really big area.

And so | don't know when this channel was
mani pul ated, but it's clearly been mani pul ated to where
the springs are being kept fromflowng into Stroud
Creek. Now, they can be turned into the creek because
t here's been sone bypass channels built to where they
can be turned into the creek. But again, there's no
controls on them

So, you know, they could be adjusted and

everybody could wal k away and they coul d be put right
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back in the ditch because there's no -- there's no
controls. There's no -- there's no security for the
wat ermaster to be in charge of that water and send it
where they want it, send it where it needs to go.

Q And the way these rights are -- this right,
74- 157, was decreed, it's tributary to Lee Creek?

A Lee Creek, which I -- you know, okay. You
have to interpret that as the Lee Creek system you
know.

Q Ri ght .

A It's -- it's -- these nanes on these creeks
are just |abels. The Departnent tries to get the
correct |abel on the source. Sonetines we m sSs.

So at the end of the day, rights are
adm ni stered based on where they're at and how much
water is flowng there. So when it says "springs
tributary to Lee Creek,"” and | say, well, that spring
really is the first naned tributary to Stroud C eek,
but Stroud Creek goes into Lee Creek, so at sone point
SO -- | -- 1 just interpret that as that spring is
tributary to the Lee Creek system

My observation was that clearly there is
enough flow that -- that if the spring was not
devel oped it would naturally go into that system So

yeah, ny call was that should be adm ni stered as part
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of Lee Creek, Lee Creek water rights.
Q Do you know if Left Fork Lee Creek or
Stroud Creek is still channelized in those upper

reaches through the Wittaker property, or is it not?

A Wll, the last tine | was up there was
August 3rd, | believe, 2020. And at that tinme there
was still what appeared to be sone constructed channel s

kind of feeding this water pretty much into the
Whi tt aker system except for, you know, what was being
bypassed and -- and so, you know, yeah, it could
concei vably be controll ed and adm ni stered properly and
sent downstream There would just have to be sone
nore -- sone additional controls install ed.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. Thank you, Cindy. | have
not hi ng further.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay. M. Johnson, any
questi ons?

Ckay. M. Manwari ng?
MR. MANWARI NG Yes. Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yep.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR NMANVWARI NG
Q Cndy, if | understand your famliarity

wth the area that we're tal king about is from 2016 to
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t he present?
A Yes.
Q And nore specifically, maybe just within

t he | ast year?

A Well, nmy site visits didn't occur until
2020.

Q Ckay.

A | do a |lot of map reconnai ssance in the

course of ny daily work and had gone through the water
rights previously, but hadn't been to the area unti
2020.

Your first visit was |ast year?

Yes.

What we call a field visit?

Site -- site visit, yeah.

O >» O > O

Site visit. Thank you.
Ckay. And any know edge you have about
hi storic flows or stream channels woul d be based upon
usi ng maps or information from soneone el se?

A Yeah, that's a fair statenent.

Q Ckay. |If you'd look at Exhibit 10, which
you were asked to exam ne.

Your first sentence on Exhibit 10 is "The

second di versi on proposed by the applicant has been in

use for at | east several decades, as evi denced by
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aerial inages and even the USGS topo map."

Did | read that correctly?

A Yep, that's what it says.

Q Ckay. |Is this based upon your review of
just maps in general, mapping that the Departnent has
or -- and USGS naps?

A The Departnment has a series of aerial
i maging that we use with our ArcMap licensing. And --
and sone people also use Google Earth. | don't so
much. | -- but -- but with ArcMap we have a series of
aerial images fromearly 2000s up to 2019, and then we
al so have access to the USGS topo naps.

And yeah, so in ny review of just various
years of images, | can see that ditch in i mages going
back for, you know, at |east 20 years.

Q Ckay. And what you're | ooking at then is
generally, if | understand, is the ditch that cones

fromthat diversion point?

A The --

Q You're | ooking at the evidence of the
ditch?

A Yeah, the evidence of the ditch com ng from

really both diversion points, both the upper and the
| ower .

Q Right. And | was going to ask you about
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t hat .
The upper division point has a ditch that

runs fromit as well; correct?

A Yes.

Q And that's pretty visible?

A That's al so visible on the i nages, yes.

Q Ckay.

A And as M. King testified, sonme inages nore

so than others. You know, sonme inmages it depends on
t he cl oud cover and the vegetation cover and what tine
of year the photo was taken. But yes, it appeared in

mul ti pl e i nages.

Q Ckay. The presence of a diversion doesn't
actually nean that there's a right to divert; is that
correct?

A Absol ut el y.

Q As in this case?

A As in this case.

Q Ckay. You nentioned in the | ast sentence
of the first paragraph, "The protestants upstream on
Stroud Creek seemto be well aware of the ongoi ng use
of the unaut horized di version but were not concerned
about it until MConnell nade call for water during
2020. "

Did | read that correctly?
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A Correct.

Q Do you have know edge as to whether or not
t he upstream protestants were aware that that diversion
was an unaut hori zed use?

A | don't have any firsthand know edge about
t he upstream protestants.

Q Ckay.

A Specifically it was -- it was the
Whi tt akers who seened to be aware that that had al ways
been there and -- and the waternaster was aware -- you
know, was aware of the existence of that diversion.

Q Ckay. So it wasn't Tonthaks that was aware
of it and said it was okay with them or sonethi ng?

A No. Maybe perhaps that sentence was nade a
little too generally. You know, in specific it was the
Whi ttakers that appeared to be aware that that
di versi on had been there.

Q Ckay. And were they aware that it was
unaut hori zed?

A | don't know if they were or not until
August when it -- they alleged to ne that it was
unaut hori zed.

Q Ckay. Al right. Now, you tal k about how
you view a system | think you used the word that this

woul d be the entire Lee Creek system right?
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A Ri ght.

Q And in your approach to using that system
t hat would include all of the tributaries that woul d
drain into Lee Creek that would then drain into Lemhi
Ri ver?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. The Departnent of Water Resources
gets nore specific when it cones to the source of
soneone's water right it applied to; is that correct?
The Departnent doesn't say the Tonthaks have a water
right on the source of Lee Creek, they tal k about
Everson Creek or Stroud Creek; correct?

A The Departnment is required by our rules to
assign a source nane to every water right. Again, we
try to get it right. W use as our guide the USGS - -
t he nanes on the USGS map. That's usually what we
defer to in source nanes. But sonetines people wll
read t hose w ong.

| nmean Wi ttakers thensel ves have two
rights that divert at that diversion there by Rosalie
Eri csson's house, and one of themreads -- one of them
says "Stroud Creek" and one of them says "Left Fork Lee
Creek."” As far as |I'mconcerned, it's the sanme water
source wiwth two different nanes diverted at the very

sane point of diversion.
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So -- and this happens all the tinme. It's
not really that uncommon that the incorrect -- that an
i ncorrect source nane gets applied to a right.

Q Ckay. What I'mreferring to, though, is
nore specifically with the Tonthaks.

They have water rights that the source are
Everson Creek and Stroud Creek; correct?

A Wll, | know that they have rights. | --
think -- I"mnot sure which -- which source is naned on
their rights.

Q Ckay.

A | thought they were both Everson, but |
coul d be wong.

Q Yeah. But so whatever the water right says
the source is, that's the source the Departnent focuses
on?

A No. \Where the point of diversionis is
where that water right's adm ni stered.

Q Right. And so if that's Everson Creek,
that's not Lee Creek, is it?

A But it's in the Lee Creek system
| get that.

Yeah.

But it's not Lee Creek; it's Everson Creek?

> O > O

No -- well, technically, no.
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Q Ckay.

A But it is tributary to Lee Creek, and
therefore it could be subject to calls from senior
rights further downstream

Q Dependi ng on where that senior right source
of diversion was decreed?

A Depending on -- well, yeah, if it's in the
system So anything in the systemis subject to a
call, anybody at any point in this systemis subject to
a call froma senior right holder who is positioned
really either downstream or upstreamin the system

But since he's at the very top, nostly, you
know, his calls are going to be comng from-- from
down below. But a call can actually even be nade
from-- fromupstream because if a waternaster is in
control and they've got too nuch delivered to a junior
downst ream user, the upper senior can still say, you
know, "There's water flow ng past that diversion, and

I"'mentitled to it," and the watermaster would need to
go up and -- to the extent the water is avail able at
t hat upper diversion would -- would deliver the water
to that senior.

And so there's -- you know, there's place

and there's flow And so there's all these judgnments

t hat have to be nmade, because not only does the water
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have to be in priority, it also has to be avail abl e.

Q Sur e.

A And if you -- you may have an early senior
right at the top of the drainage, and if there's no
water up there to deliver to you, you still don't get
it. And that's another formof futile call, where you
can't call on water that's below you if there's no way
to get it up to you.

Q So if you have a water right on Lee Creek
that is upstreamfrom Stroud Creek, for exanple, can

you actually call for water from Stroud Creek?

A Well, you know, that really isn't how calls
is nade. Maybe we better -- nmaybe we should clarify
t hat .
Wien a water user calls for water, they
don't say "I want that guy's water." They say,
"Waternmaster, | don't have ny water. Please deliver it

to the extent it's avail able.™

And that's the waternaster's job to figure
out who, if anybody, is diverting out of priority,
where the water is avail able, and can they get water to

t he calling diversion.

So water --
Q Yeabh.
A -- calls are -- are not specific as to
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source or water user. They -- they are just -- "I am
calling for ny water. Please, to the extent you can
get it to ne, please deliver it."

Q I can understand that.

A Yeah.

Q And | don't have any dispute with that.

What |' msaying, Cndy, is, if your water
right is on Lee Creek and your point of diversion
that's decreed is on Lee Creek and downstream from Lee
Creek is the actual confluence of Stroud Creek and you
make a call and say "I want ny priority water right,"
but you can't get water fromthe downstream up, how are
you going to get it out of Stroud Creek?

A Well, i n sone cases you cannot. And that
is the watermaster's uni que and soneti nes burdensone
job is to evaluate all those factors and can that water
be delivered, you know, in priority or w thout waste.
And that's part of the exercise we were going through
| ast year when we realized that was -- that nay be --

t hat may have been occurring.

Q Ckay. Al right. So if the water can't be
brought upstream you can't call on that water?

A You can't. Wll, you can nake a call, but
the watermaster just sinply can't deliver it. It's --

it's futile. And so then sonetines you have options to
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turn those juniors back on if you cannot get the water
delivered to the senior.

Q Sure. Ckay. Geat. You talk about what
you' ve seen as the historic channel of Stroud Creek. |
t hi nk you nentioned several tines that it |ooked |ike
t here has been a diversion in the channel or sone

changes in the channel of Stroud Creek?

A well, I --

Q I shoul dn't say diversion

A Ri ght. Yeah.

Q | should say there's been --

A Yeah, that did throw ne off.

Q Yeah, that will throw you off. That's a
bad term

Is -- did you notice that there was a shift

per haps in the channel of Stroud Creek?

A Well, where | don't have a -- | don't have
a lot of history, but -- but I think |I observed the
sane thing M. King did when he was up there, is that

this is a channel that is noving. You know, this is a

channel that has noved. It has -- it has -- it has
made side channels. It has bifurcated. It has maybe
gone back and forth from channel to channel. W don't

know. W honestly have not investigated it enough to

know where it's happened or when.
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And yeah, | observed, very simlar to what
M. King observed, is that this is a -- this is an area
of this particular systemwhere the channel is braided.
Q And you haven't had yourself an opportunity
to wal k Stroud Creek from Everson Creek down to its

confl uence?

A | probably wouldn't do it. | don't know --
| nmean it's -- | don't know that it's -- it would be a
very difficult hike. 1 know that sone people have
wal ked a lot of it, and you'll probably hear from them
later. And I have walked -- I -- | am-- the
underbrush is so dense that | was having trouble

getting through it.

Sol -- 1 admt that I only went into the
creek where it was easy to get there. But, you know, |
did go in at several different vantage points where |
could to see what | could see. But no, | never wal ked
t he channel, because the underbrush was just so dense
t hat wal ki ng was al nost i npossi bl e.

Q Ckay. And the topography in that area, do
you agree that Stroud Creek kind of curves al ong on
t hat ridge and cones down through that channel before
it gets to Lee Creek?

A There are a couple of ridges up in there.

Q Yeabh.
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A Yeah, there's a couple ridges. And it is
definitely steeper up in the Stroud Creek part of the
drai nage than it is once you get bel ow what ever
confl uence you're tal king about.

Q Ckay. You nentioned in that third
par agraph of Exhibit 10 that the -- you said "Viewed as
a natural hydrol ogic change, the altered fl ow path of
Stroud Creek does have the potential to affect
adm ni stration of Lee Creek and Stroud Creek water
rights under the principle of futile call."”

Do you see that sentence?

A Yeah, uh-huh. [|'mtracking.

Q All right. Now, explain to ne what that
neans.

A Well, it was discussed before. M. King
ki nd of started down that road.

Nat ural changes happen in channels. It's
just like kids grow up. You know, it's a statenent of
fact. Sonme channels are nuch nore prone to it than
others. You know, sone -- sone -- sone streans flow
t hrough | ess noveabl e strata, and so they -- they don't
nmove nmuch. But this one obviously is in sone alluvium
and it's junped around a bit.

And sonetinmes that does change

adm nistration. | nmean it creates a very dynam c
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situati on where, you know, the rights m ght have been
decreed when the flow regine, as Scott calls it, or --
or where the flow was in one channel and the rights
wer e decreed, and then the fl ow changes, and the water
user may or may not have the legal right to get to the
wat er where it nowis. And, you know -- and that

was -- that was an act of nature that put that water
over there.

And so, yeah, | was just sinply trying to
acknow edge that -- that we don't know how this has
nmoved. And it could affect adm nistration. But |
don't know how it will until we get out there and start
to adm nister it.

Q Ckay. The next sentence in that sane
par agr aph, that concl usion sentence says, in part,
"Certain upstream di versi ons remai n out of conpliance
with control and neasurenent requirenents.”

Can you tell nme what you nean by that.

A Yeah, | was referring to the Wittaker
di versions that we had ordered to put neasuring and
control devices on. And as of the date that | nmade
t hese comments, to the best of ny know edge, that
hadn't yet occurred, so...

Q Ri ght.

A And so what | was trying to get at there is
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that until all the diversions are net -- you know, are
in conpliance, it's really going to be hard to
adm ni ster that area the way it's supposed to be.

Q But the Tonthaks aren't sonebody who's out
of conpliance with control neasurenent requirenents.

A Not to ny knowl edge. | have not been to
their diversion or to Foster diversion, but the
wat ernaster has indicated that they are in conpliance
wi th the headgate neasuring device requirenent.

Q Ckay.

A He was satisfied with the structures there,
so | didn't go visit.

Q Now, as it relates to this Stroud Creek
channel, from what you're describing in your testinony,
Cindy, you really can't tell us whether or not the
channel has junped around upstream fromthe Wittakers
pl ace or downstream it's just in that area where you
were at it | ooked |Iike there were sonme changes in the
channel ?

A Yeah, there was -- | nean | -- | did
actually wal k over to where that side channel was
coming in, and I did confirmwith nmy own eyes that that
side channel was in fact comng in bel ow the MConnel
di version, and on that day appeared to be carrying the

majority of the water. But | never did really figure
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out why or how or where it was com ng from

Q Ckay.

A | just knew that it wasn't available to
McConnel I, unfortunately, so, you know. ..

Q Because it was bel ow their diversion point?

A Because it was below their diversion. So |

did confirmthat.
Q Ckay. And that channel that you | ooked at
t hat had the heavy flow, apparently, was that Stroud

Creek, as far as you could tell? O do you know?

A Don't know. It was a channel.

Q It was a channel ?

A It was a channel. It was a side channel.
| really didn't -- didn't -- | don't think we know. In
fact, I know we don't know. And | don't know that it

matters, honestly, because | think that it just kind of
all goes to location and availability and -- and
timng.

It was comng -- it was com ng out of the
upper reaches, and | don't know that it's inportant to
say where it's comng from although I'msure we'l|l
continue to investigate it.

Q In that | ast paragraph of Exhibit 10, you
tal k about "adequate watermaster's control, that the

di versions will be appropriately adm nistered to
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satisfy any transfer conditions and approval, and to
protect existing diversions on Stroud and Lee Creeks";
correct?

A Correct.

Q And tell ne what you mean by that.

A | anticipated that -- that if the
transfer -- if the Departnment did elect to approve the
transfer, particularly with the protests, that 1'd
already seen -- and it could be that there was only one
protestant at the time | wote this, because | m ght
have been witing it before all the protests cane in.
So maybe that's why | only referenced one protestant
there at the begi nning.

But given the circunstances, | figured
t here would be a hearing. And the Departnent, of
course, is at its discretion, can add conditions of use
or conditions of approval to transfers. And one of the
primary reasons for that is to protect existing rights
and exi sting diversions.

And so w t hout going through the process, |
coul dn't predict what those conditions m ght have been.
But knowi ng the types of -- of conditions that are
typically applied, | feel that with adequate control
and neasurenent on all points of diversions, no matter

what conditions were put on the transfer -- unless they
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were |i ke crazy unreasonable, but | don't expect that,
but | woul d expect that sonebody would object to them
if they were crazy and unreasonable. But yeah, nost
conditions could be -- could be adequately adm ni st ered
w t h enough control and nmeasuri ng devi ces.

Q Just give ne a sanple of what you woul d

percei ve as conditions applicable to this transfer.

A | don't really feel confortable doing that.
Q Ckay.
A Because | don't want to put thoughts in

anybody' s head.

Q Li ke Janes?

A Mostly him yeah.

MR. MANWARI NG Do you have any thoughts in your
head?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: No, | don't. Usual 'y not.

THE WTNESS: He's an enpty vessel

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : You nentioned that
there were sone investigations that were bei ng nmade on
t he channels up there.

Can you tell ne what those investigations

A The wat ernmaster -- and again, are you
referring -- let ne ask you before | answer. Are you

referring to the -- maybe the Upper Stroud Creek
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channel ?
Q You just nentioned in your testinony that

t here was sone investigations that were going on up

there. | assune on everything, Lee Creek, Stroud
Cr eek.

A Well, to be quite honest, I'mnot really
sure, in retrospect, what | was referring to. W are
doi ng sone investigations on -- with respect to this

west spring.

Q So - -

A The Whittakers' west spring.

Q -- the investigation relating to a spring
that's on the Wi ttakers' property or --

A Yes, it's the spring that's -- that's
represented by Water Ri ght 74-157 and the
adm ni sterability of that water with respect to the
rest of the Lee Creek water.

Q Ckay. |Is there any investigation that's
going on to try to determ ne what the channel is for
Stroud Creek?

A Well, not at the nonent. W -- not at the
monent. | had did a little bit last sumer. D dn't
|l ook at all the channel, as | said. D fferent people
have | ooked at different parts of the channel.

So | anticipate additional investigation in
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the future as we try to sort this out. But |I think we
at one point decided that we would just wait until
after this hearing --

Q Ckay.

A -- to see what -- to see where the
Depart nent | anded.

Q And you nentioned al so in your testinony
about the springs -- | think you nenti oned one of them
was a tributary of Lee Creek, but you couldn't see how
t hat coul d be.

Coul d you expl ain what that was.

A Well, | think ny reference was to the fact
that 74-157 has -- lists two points of diversions
representing two different springs or, in ny mnd,

spri ng conpl exes, because | actually have seen them
bot h.

And |"'ma little bit puzzled as to how t hat
right -- how they both ended up on the sane right,
because while one spring was clearly -- clearly
appeared tributary to the Lee Creek system the other
spring appears to, you know -- and it's hard to tel
because there's been devel opnent. You know, there's
been a coll ection ditch.

But it appears that if -- absent, you know,

any mannmade di versions, that spring could very well
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flow the other direction. And I'mnot the only one
that's nade that observation. And there's other --
t here's other evidence by M. Contor that that spring
mght in fact flow the other direction.
So I kind of just renpved that from ny
i medi ate concern and just said, you know, let's deal
wWth the west spring right now, and we're going to have
to ook at the east spring to see if or if it does not
even conformto the -- to the decree, and then what we
wll do about it. Again, it's that -- | admnister
themlike a see them you know, attitude.
But for the tine being, | just -- you know,
we did order there to be a control structure and a
measuri ng device on the east spring. But, you know,
for the tine being | amnot attenpting to adm ni ster
t he east spring as part of the Lee Creek system That
could change. W reserve the right to change our m nd
about that.
MR MANWARING | don't have any ot her questions
for G ndy. Thanks.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Thank you.
Ms. Foster?
M5. FOSTER |' m good.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE Okay. M. Harris?
MR. HARRI' S: Yeah.
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CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HARRI S:

Q Cindy, |'ve got several questions.

A ' m so surprised.

Q | know. |'m sure you are.

A Sorry, | didn't nean to be trite.

Q You were appointed the waternaster for

Water District 170 in 2015; correct?

A Correct.

Q And | believe you testified that the way
this would work with these subdistricts is you would
hol d hands or provi de gui dance and support; is that --
did | sunmmari ze your testinony accurately?

A Yeah, that's -- that's exactly what | sai d.
And that is really ny role is to -- | try to | eave the

districts alone to the extent they don't need ne.

Q That - -

A But --

Q That's --

A -- if they need guidance, then | -- | step

in, and | give them whatever gui dance they need.

Q Wll, that -- that's really what | want to
get at, because | want to understand kind of your
relationship with M. Udy.

Are you his boss?

000242




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 241
Audio Transcription

A | don't think that's a correct term The
Department appoi nts wat er mast ers.

Q Ri ght .

A And as dul y- appoi nted wat ermasters, they
are considered simlar to as an enpl oyee of the State.

Q Uh- huh.

A Wat ermasters -- water districts are
considered instrunentalities of the State.
Wat ernasters are elected by the water users in the
wat er district and paid by the water users in the water
districts, soit's kind of -- I've always rel ated ny
job as simlar to a stepparent, where | have all the
responsibility but none of the authority.

You know, |'ve got -- it is certainly ny
job to guide themand to tell themif | think the water
is not quite being adm nistered properly and to give
t hem what ever resources | can to help themdo their job
t he best they can.

But they answer both to ne, representing
the Director of the Departnent, and then they can
also -- and they al so answer to their chairman or their
advi sory conmittee, who al so can cone in and help
resol ve things, you know, help resolve conflict within

those little -- within those subdistricts.

Q Is it --
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A So to say I'mtheir boss isn't really
accur at e.
Q Wll, and I'"'m-- 1'"m asking, do you

consi der yourself as boss?

A No, | don't consider him-- | don't
consi der nyself his boss. | consider nyself nore --
nore his nmentor.

Q Let ne ask it this way. Let nme ask it this

way .

If there's a di sagreenent between you and
hi m on water distribution, who's -- does your authority
trunp his?

A Yes.

Q And is that why you were involved with this
delivery call within 74Z's Water District, is you had
a -- both had a disagreenent on how this delivery cal
was supposed to be adm ni stered?

MR. BROMLEY: (bjection to the phrase "delivery
call."” It does have |l egal connotations. Wat |
understand is Ms. Yenter's been invol ved.

But, M. Harris, when you say "delivery
call,” I think of other things, |ike Conjunctive
Managenment Rul es and things |like that.

So ny objection is to the phrasing. To the

extent you're not inplying a | egal conclusion as to,
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quot e/ unquote, "a delivery call,” that's just sinply
t he basis of ny objection.

MR HARRIS: And if | could respond. [|n your
e-mail you said, "But we're not concerned about it
until MConnell nmade calls for water during 2020."

So you could rule on the objection, but
that's the phraseology |I"'musing. You could call it
just a call or a delivery call, but I think they're the
sane thing.

MR. BROMLEY: And, M. Harris, with that
understanding, I'mfine with that. It was just the
bringing it out of the chute as a, quote/unquote,
"delivery call.” So thank you.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Okay.

A So run it past ne real quick so | nake sure
| answer the right question. O ask ne again, please.

Q W need the recorder to play back the
questi on.

A Ckay.

Q No, |'m just Kkidding.

How t hen -- is that why you becane involve
in this?

A Wiy did | becone invol ved?

Q Yeah. Wiy did you becone invol ved?

A Yeah.
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Q Was there a di sagreenent between you and
M. Udy on the adm ni strati on?

A No, not between me and M. Udy. It was
nore that M. Udy needed ny support. He had received a
call from M. MConnell that he wasn't getting his
water. And so he went out, and he tried to deliver
the -- deliver the water. And MConnell still wasn't
getting his water.

And so he called ne -- well, he -- he may

have even done some | ooki ng around on his own. But at

t he point that he called ne, he said -- you know, it
was basically "I need sone help."”

Q Ckay.

A "I got a situation up here and | -- you
know, | got a situation, and I'mnot really sure how to
handle it." That's -- those are the big -- those are

the big things that | step into.
Q Well, and | believe M. MConnell testified

that he didn't start this, that he heard from you.

Is that -- did you hear that testinony this
nor ni ng?
A | did hear that. And | -- | did renenber
that. | nean | think | had nade the sane -- | think I

have nade the sane suggestion to M. MConnell that

M. Cefalo nay have nmade back in 2014, is "You need to
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call for your water. You're entitled for it -- you're
entitled to it."

And -- but then -- and so |I'm not sure
exactly the series of events. | can't recall them

But at sone point right around the sane tine that all

t hi s happened and we knew that -- you know, Merritt
called ne and said "I got this situation.”

Q Ckay.

A "I"'mtrying to get McConnell's water down
to him | can't get it down to him And | think I

found sonething. Can you cone |ook at it?"

Q M. Brom ey asked you sone questi ons about
| anguage on decrees and | anguage needed to be there for
you to adm nister the water rights.

Do you recall that testinony?

A Yes.

Q If two water users cone to an agreenent on
how t hey want to rotate water, even though they have
different priorities, and they tell the waternmaster of
their agreenment, would the watermaster consent to that,
or does it have -- does every agreenent have to be on
t he decree?

A Well, the agreenent's got to be | egal,
first off. And an agreenent |ike that probably isn't

| egal , under |daho water | aw.
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But no, waternmasters are not obligated and,
in fact, are asked not to adm nister private
agreenents. There are certain private agreenents
pertaining to use of diversions and use of water that
are kept off water rights on purpose because the
Depart nent does not want to be a party to those. And
we don't want our watermasters delivering those kind of
[unintelligible].

Q And |'m not suggesting the Departnment's a
party. But if they cone to an agreenent to say there's
only so nmuch supply and -- but we're okay rotating back
and forth, even though one woul d have a senior right
over the other, you're saying as a waternmaster you
woul dn't recogni ze their wishes; is that --

A Well, I"'msaying first and forenost, that's
not | egal under ldaho law. So they can't do it, even
if the watermaster did agree to it.

Q Wll, if it doesn't affect --

A Yes, it does, because it -- one --

Q Hold on. Let ne ask the question

I f you have two senior users on a creek and
there's not enough water to supply water to any juniors
but they decide we will -- we want to -- "I'm not going
to call for ny water one day. He's not going to cal

for it."

000248




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 247
Audio Transcription

A Ckay.

Q So then he gets all of it, the other --

A Ckay. Yeah, franed that way -- franed that
way, then basically those requests -- franed that way
wth no other junior users calling for water, and let's
say that we're down to the last two water --

Q Ri ght.

A -- framed that way, the waternaster doesn't
enforce it. The watermaster sinply responds to calls.
But it's up to the water users to say "I'mcalling
today," and the other one calls tonorrow.

Q | agree with you.

There's obviously an issue in this case
over where these channels cone together. And |I'm going
to be really particul ar about parsing | anguage, because
| think what | heard you testify to, sone was based on
evi dence, sone was based on just what you assume or

t hi nk happened. So | want to wal k through that.

Ckay?
A Ckay.
Q Have you -- have you actually wal ked t he
stretch -- no, I'mnot asking that very well.

You di d observe that there was a side
channel of water com ng down that bypassed the upper

di versi on point --
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A | did.

Q -- correct?

A | did.

Q But you're not -- but you're saying you

don't know if that was Stroud Creek or not?

A | don't, really.

Q Ckay. Wiat -- so tell ne exactly what
you' ve done to coll ect evidence on that issue.

A | -- 1 have been to both MConnell
di versions. And we walked -- and then | wal ked with
M. Udy over to see where the side channel cane in.
But it becane real clear to ne that this old body was
not going to crash through the underbrush to wal k up
the stream So | said, "No, | can't do that."

And so we went back out. | went -- we went
in where the culverts are. Everybody's tal ked about
the culverts and where there's --

Q Here we go right here.
Yeah.
So --

> O >

| went to that -- 1'll get the lights. I'm
up.
Let ne get nyself oriented here.
MR. BROMLEY: That was a good job of

mul titasking being a wwtness and getting |lights.
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THE W TNESS: | have on three hats now.
MR. BROMLEY: Well done.
THE W TNESS: Okay. Oh, gosh, | got to get
nyself oriented. Can you back out, zoom out just a
bit.
Q (BY MR HARRIS): Okay.
A Thank you.
Ckay. That's where | thought it was, yeah.
Because here's the road. There are three culverts
here. And | observed -- and | nean | think this was
stated by M. King and then refuted by sonebody el se,
but I'"mgoing to state it again, | saw water in this
culvert and in that culvert. And | didn't see any
water in the mddle culvert.
Just based on the map and st andi ng out
there, | assune that this was the Ri ght Fork of Lee

Creek com ng down, and | expected to see Stroud Creek

coming in just -- just above this road. And | saw no
water. So, you know, that's -- that's what | was --
that's -- | have | ooked in here.

| took GPS points here, here, and here so
that | was positive | knew where | was. And | took GPS
poi nts at each one of MConnells' diversions so that |
knew where | was. And so that's -- that's basically --

| tried to take a GPS point back there in the
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under brush when | -- when we -- when | was | ooking at
the side channel. And it didn't cone out very
accurate, but I -- you know.

Q Are you referring to this as "the side

channel " ?

A | don't know. That may be the side
channel. It mght not be. Again, it's so unclear --

Q Ckay.

A -- that I"'mnot willing to call any --
anyt hi ng.

Q But you in August of 2020, you asked
M. Udy to take sone neasurenents.

A Yeah.

Q Let's turn to Exhibit 5.

A Thanks. Yeah. | was going to ask you what
exhi bit that was.

Q Did he -- so at the bottom of that page, he
said, "Ootain a neasurenent of total flows available to
McConnell at his authorized point of diversion."

Dd M. Udy do that?

A You know, it seens to ne that he did. This
was after we'd been up there the second tine and we
had - -

Q Uh- huh.

A -- been tal king about, well, is this
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really -- is this futile at this point, you know, to
keep the spring curtailed, is this water really getting
down to McConnel | s.

And -- but, you know, those -- | don't have
t hose notes with ne, M. Harris. But -- but evidently
he obtai ned enough infornmation and sent it to ne to
satisfy ne that -- that there really wasn't water
com ng down there, because | allowed the springs to
stay on.

Q So in the reneasurenent 12 to 24 hours
later, it |looked |like there was -- there was no change
to the flows that were avail abl e at the upper point of
di versi on?

A That's ny general recollection wthout

havi ng ny notes in front of ne.

Q Because | think the letter says forward
t hat --
A He di d.
Q -- provide that infornmation to you
A He was - -
Q Ckay.
A He was sending me information. W text a

lot. That's just an easy way for us to conmuni cate.
And |1'd have to go back through the text nessages,

but . ..
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Q Wul dn't that be evidence that the water
com ng out of the Stroud Creek drainage is not going in
above t he upper diversion?

A It was evidence on that day.

Q Whi ch woul d be part of the evidence you
would collect if you had to conme to a concl usion --

A Exactly.

Q -- on where Stroud Creek --
A Yeah.

Q -- enters?

A

On that day only.

Q Ckay. And you nentioned that there's
probably been sone braiding of channels down in here?

A Uh- huh.

Q Have you actually been on the -- on the BLM
property where the USGS nmap showed t he confl uence of
Stroud Creek with Lee Creek?

A Well, the -- the historic or the USGS --

Q Correct.

A -- both.

Q So yep, it would be right -- that's the
sout heast northeast?

A Yes. Zoom back out. There.

Wll, where it shows it is right there kind

of where this road cones acr oss. It shows it -- well,
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| think Scott drew it right up here. | -- it's right
in here sonepl ace.

Q Here's the sout heast nort heast.

A Right. Inny mndit's drawn right in --
it's drawn right in here somewhere.

Q Ckay.

A That's where those cul verts cone across.

MR. BROMLEY: Cindy, could you just explain the
| egal descriptions where you were circling with your
finger and gesturing "it's right in here.”

THE WTNESS: Were | was circling was kind of
i n between the sout heast northeast and the northeast
sout heast of section 30.

MR. BROMLEY: Thank you.

Sorry, Rob.
THE WTNESS: And that is where the -- all the

maps. And if | go over here and | ook at the quad map

where Scott drew his circle, that's -- that's pretty
much -- the quad nmap actually has it comng in alittle
north of this quarter-quarter line. | was standing

here on this culvert right here where Lee Creek crosses
and | ooking for sone other channel to cone in. And I
just wasn't seei ng anythi ng.

Q (BY MR HARRI S): Ckay.

A So I'"'mnot really sure where it was
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supposed to be, but...

Q You were asked several questions about
what's on the face of the decree for 74-157.
M. Brom ey asked you sone questions on that. And I
think there's two issues here. One is an
adm ni stration question, but one's an interpretation.

You would agree that Stroud Creek is

tributary to Lee Creek?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Wiittakers' water right says it's
tributary to Lee Creek?

A That's correct.

157 you're speaking of ?

Q Correct.

A Yes.

Q It doesn't say "Lee Creek systeni?

A No.

Q It just says "Lee Creek"?

A It does.

Q Does the west and east springs flowinto

Lee Creek proper, or do they flowinto Stroud Creek or

nei t her ?

A The east spring | have not nade a final
determ nati on about. The west spring appeared --
again -- and again, there had been a | ot of manmade
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construction, but it appeared to nme, just fromthe | ay
of the land and sone other factors, that naturally the
flows out of those springs would enter Stroud Creek and
t hen Lee Creek.

Q So there's sone issues wth how that water
right's described. | would agree with that. And I
t hi nk you summarized it in one of your watermaster

comments as wel | .

A Uh- huh.
Q So some things could be clarified there.
| want -- let's now turn to Exhibit 10.
This is your -- your comments on this transfer.
A Ckay. | just don't see in the dark.

Ther e. That's better.
Q The first paragraph you say, "But they were
not concerned about it until MConnell made calls for

wat er during 2020."

What -- what was that based upon, that
concl usi on?
A Well, again, as | clarified with
M. Manwaring, | think when | wote this nmaybe only the
first protest had cone in. And so -- but | can tel

you that | was referring to the Wiittakers, sinply
because Jordan Wiittaker and | had had sone brief

di scussion out in the field. And it's in ny notes, not
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docunented, but | renenber it.

Q Yeabh.

A And it seened |i ke he acknow edged t hat
t hat di versi on had been there and he knew about it,
but -- and so | guess | just felt it just alittle
bit -- oh, | don't know what | felt. | just thought it
was strange that they -- they knew it was there all
al ong but never said anything about it until -- until
the distribution got -- you know, got ranped up and
their water was threatened to be taken away fromthem
And then they decided to cone forward and say sonet hi ng
about that diversion.

Q Coul dn't that be because of the arrangenent
or agreenent that they thought was still enforceable
wth regard to the Kauer Ditch?

A Ch, I'"'msure. Sure, it could be.

Q Ckay.

A But you know.

Q And correct ne if I'mwong, but you -- you
made t he decision to close the Kauer Ditch; is that
right? You determned it was not an authorized point

of diversion?

A. No, that's not correct.
Q Ckay.
A. | think that was done in 2014 before | was
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ever invol ved.

Q Ckay. So that was done before you becane
wat er mast er ?

A Yeah, |'ve never -- |'ve never been to that

di ver si on.

Q You' ve never been to the Kauer Ditch.
Ckay.
In the third paragraph of your e-nmil you
say, "lI'mnot convinced that the | ower MConnel |

di version is bel ow the historic confluence of Stroud
Creek and Lee Creek."
And ny question is just sinply, based on
what? |Is it based solely on the naps, or is there
ot her information that you've based your concl usion on?
A You know, |'m not even sure what | nean

there, M. Harris.

Q Ckay.
A Hang on here a m nute.
' mnot sure what | nean there, quite
honestly. | mean | -- | -- it mght have been a

reference to --

Q That' s okay.

A Yeah.
Q If you don't, that's okay. That's fine.
A Yeah, I"'mnot -- I'mnot even really sure
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what | neant.

Q And M. Manwari ng asked this question. It
said, "Viewed as a natural hydrol ogi c change, the
altered flow path of Stroud Creek does have the
potential to affect adm nistration of Lee Creek and
Stroud Creek water rights under the principle of futile
call."

A Uh- huh.

Q And is that statenment based upon what you
ultimately di scovered in 2020, that the water was --
nost of the water was conming in bel ow the diversion,

t he upper diversion?

A Yeah. And that was just a reflection
that -- that, you know, sonetines these changes happen
and no one's responsible for them They're just
natural and -- but they do affect the dynanm cs on the
stream and. .

Q But if a water user |ike MConnells haven't
done anything to try to put the channel back over nmany
years but they still call for their water, and they
cane to you as the watermaster, what would you tel
t henf

A Well, probably what | told them | ast year.
| mean we [unintelligible] --

Q Which is you're -- you're stuck with the
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natural channel that's there?

A Well, no, I -- you know, | would probably
tell themthe sane thing M. King said earlier, is, you
know, if they want to pursue options to alter a
channel, they're going to have to get a stream channel
alteration permt. They just can't go out and do that.
That's against State -- State | aw.

But, you know, they may have sone options
to either pursue a legal alteration of the channel to
get the water back where they felt that it bel onged or

file a water right transfer to put in another point of

di version to recoup the |lost water. You know, they're
pursui ng one of their legal options, | believe.
Q Yeah. | want to ask you just quick

questi ons about stream norphology. And if you don't
think you' re qualified to say nuch on it --

A "1l et you know.

Q -- you'll let ne know Ckay.

H gh-fl ow events have a tendency to change

stream channel s; would you agree with that?

A | agree with that.

Q So in this particular case, if the Kauer
Ditch had been used historically to take sone of those
fl oodwaters, it would keep those fl ooding events from

really altering those | ower channels; would you agree
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with that?
A Yeah, | think that's a fair statenent.
Q Ckay. Let's have you | ook at your second

e-mail, which is Exhibit 17. And | think in the first
par agr aph you' ve identified sone -- sone potenti al
| egal issues with how 74-157 was decreed; correct?

A Correct.

Q But it does say, you're inclined to agree,
that in the absence of devel opnent, flows fromthe east

spring would probably not go into Stroud Creek?

A Yeah, that was ny determnation at the tinme
and - -

Q Ckay.

A -- I'd still stand by that.

Q But the west springs you would say is

tributary to Stroud Creek, which then goes into Lee
Cr eek?

A That's what | observed on the ground.

Q | think I"mjust about done. | just have
to -- well, 1I'"lIl ask this question.

In a mnute M. Wittaker, Jordan

Whittaker, is going to go over the diversion structures
that are up there. And perhaps |I was m staken, but ny
understanding is that there are neasuring devices in

pl ace, and that you've actually participated in taking
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measur ements up on sone of those -- sone of those
weirs.

A vell --

Q Is that correct?

A Yes. By the second tine | went up there,
Jordan had installed a weir on the east spring. |
don't knowif that weir is still there. But, you know,
by the tine I went up there the second tine, he had --

Q Yeah.

A -- he had installed a weir on the east
spring, and we were able to get a neasurenent of that.

Q Was that .8 cfs? Do you recall?

A That seens correct. It was -- it was right
around 1 cfs. .8 mght be correct.

Q Ckay.

A | don't renenber. As | said, | don't have
my not es.

On the west spring Jordan had installed

sonething akin to a subnerged orifice, although only it

wasn't submerged on both sides, and so it didn't really

fit the formula, but I went home and | played with sone

di fferent discharge fornmul as based on a subnerged
orifice that was free fl owi ng on one side.
And I'mnot real confortable wth those

formulas, but | cane up with sonething that was, if
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recall, sonewhere just a little over 1 cfs neasured
through that. But | wasn't real w |l d about that
measuri ng device, just because it really wasn't
standard. And | think | had suggested that maybe he
try sonething different there.

MR HARRIS: kay. | don't have any further
questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

M. Bromey, it's your witness. D d you

have anyt hi ng nore?

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah, just -- just one or -- one

or woul d, G ndy.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROMLEY:

Q | think I heard you say that you woul d
use -- use the USGS as a gui de.

A For ?

Q Locat i on.

A Ch, well, the Departnent uses USGS stream
nanes as -- as a guide for identifying water sources,

and particularly nanmed tributaries, because our rules
say a spring or any other source that, you know, flows
into some other source you're to nanme the first naned

streamas the tributary. And we use the USGS stream
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nanes as a guide for that.

Q I think one of the potential consequences
of this case is if you're not using sonething that's
objective like a nap, or various maps in the case of
Scott King's testinony, he | ooked at three maps -- the
USGS quad, the Lenmhi map, and this 1954 engi neer's
map -- | think one of the consequences potentially is
that if you don't use maps as a guide -- and |I'mjust
curi ous whet her you agree with this or not, but does
that |lead others within the basin to attenpt to
mani pul ate streanflow for their own benefit to the
detri nent of others?

MR MANWARI NG | would object to that form of
question. But I'lIl let you decide what you're going to
do.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Yeah, |'m going to sustain
that. That's a strange questi on.

MR. BROMLEY: That's fine. Wthdraw -- |
W t hdraw t he questi on.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): So, C ndy, on these east
and west springs that you were discussing, the water
right again is tributary to Lee Creek; correct?

A The face of the water right says "tributary

to Lee Creek", correct.
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Q So in order to alter that, a transfer would
be needed?

A That -- yes, that -- at this point, since
t he Court has spoken and we have the final unified
decree, that would be the only way to alter.

Q Ckay.

A Alter the tributary, yeah.

Q And there was a transfer that was -- was
filed?

A Ther e was.

Q And it was -- do you recall, was it

W t hdr awn?
A Yeah, it was abruptly wthdrawn. | never
really under st ood why.
MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. | don't have anything
further.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Com ng around. |
| i ke nodding -- noes all the way around.
Anything nore, M. Harris?
Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Yenter. Back to your
regul ar duti es.
THE W TNESS: Back to ny regular job, ny day
j ob.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER: M. Bronl ey, you had

identified a couple other names, | think, on your
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potential wtness |ist.
Do you intend to call any -- anybody el se?

MR. BROMLEY: No. As | said at the begi nning,
M. Cefalo, we have three witnesses that we're going to
cal | .

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

MR. BROMLEY: You know, reserve the right at
| east to recall themif we need to. But no, no
intention of calling anybody else. So with that,
not hi ng further.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Ckay. Thank you,
M. Bronl ey.

(Recess.)

MS. YENTER Al right. There's that one going.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. Wel cone back.
We're back on the record.

M. Harris, it is your turn. W' ve decided
that you can go first anong the protestants,
representing -- now you represent both James Wittaker
and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch. And -- and so your
W t nesses are kind of joint wtnesses between those
two -- those two protestants; right?

MR HARRIS: That's correct, yep.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER. Okay. So if -- go ahead.
MR. HARRI'S: Just because we'l|l take one kind of
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out of order, just because of cattle needs.
So we'll have Merritt Udy come up.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay, M. Udy. Come on

up.

MERRI TT UDY,
havi ng been called as a wtness by Protestants Janes
Whi ttaker and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, was duly sworn

and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFICER M. Udy, do you solemmly
affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give is the
truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

THE W TNESS: | do.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay. Have a seat.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HARRI S:

Q Coul d you pl ease state your nane and
address for the record.

A My name is Merritt Udy. |I'mat 238 Big
Ei ght M| e Road, Leadore.

Q What ' s your current occupation?

A " ma rancher and the waternaster.

Q Ckay. For which water district?
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A 147.

Q And how | ong have you held that position?

A | -- | took over for Paul Maughan | ate
June 20109.

Q And what creeks or watersheds do you
adm ni ster?

A Big Eight Ml e and Lee Creek.

Q And did you say Paul Maughan was the
wat er mast er before you?

A Yes.

Q Did he resign?

A No, | -- | guess he got fired.

Q Ckay. And did you want to becone a
wat ernmaster for the -- all the glory or the high pay?

A No, | -- that year | had trouble getting ny
water, so | thought it was a good idea so | could get
my own water, and then the pay, | guess, the small pay.

Q When you first becane wat ernaster, what
training did you receive?

A Ch, very little. But I'"'mfamliar with all
t he points of diversion. | just got the book of how
much water to each water user, priority dates, yeah.

Q And so what have you done to famliarize
yourself with the water rights and the diversions in

t he Lee Creek drai nage?
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A Just -- just done the job, learn as |I go.

Q So you -- you visited the -- you visit the
di versi ons, adjust, then neasure?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. And does your water district include
Stroud Creek?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you actually live kind of close
to all this; right?

A Yeah, | do.

Q Ckay.

A |'ve been -- |I've lived there since 2012.

Q Ckay. Were you involved with the Water
District prior to 2012? D d you serve on the board?

A No. |'ve just been a water user for both
Eight MIle and Stroud Creek.

Q Ckay. Are you famliar wth Bruce
McConnell's water rights?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. How are you famliar wth thenf

A Just what |I've got in witing, that his

1883s, the anounts.

Q Ckay.
A | was -- well, the -- ny first day on the
job Bruce took ne to both diversions. | didn't know
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t hat one was not |egal, but...

Q So - -
A I don't even know if Bruce knew if it
wasn't legal. They were just his two diversions.

Q But you've been to both of thenf

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. And you understand it's the | ower
one that he's trying to add to his water rights in this
pr oceedi ng?

A Yeah, it's the | ower one that got shut off
| ast fall.

Q Were you involved in a water adm ni stration
di spute in 2020 that involved McConnell, C ndy Yenter,
and the Wittakers?

A Just -- | don't know what you mean by
"di spute,” but --

Q Did M. MConnell call you and nake a call
for his water?

A Ri ght. Yeah.

Q Can you tell nme what the -- what that
conversati on was.

A Basically he wasn't getting what he thought
he should, so --

Q At the upper or the | ower point, or both?

A | think maybe -- maybe just the total --
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Q Ckay.

A -- of the two.

Q Ckay.

A So up in the Ericsson property, where | was
maki ng the adjustnments, | kept -- kept adjusting, but

not hi ng woul d show up down below. And Wittaker had

explained to nme what | was supposed to be doing, but I

m sunderstood, so all the water was not going to Bruce

t hat | thought was goi ng.

Q When you say up on the -- the Ericsson
property, |I'mgoing to have you | ook up here on the
map. And | know an aerial photo is sonetines alittle

hard to see,

but I'lIl represent to you what's outlined

in blue is the Tonthak property, and then the Ericsson

property is

inalittle
A
Q
A
Q.
right there
A
Q
A

there in white, kind of in this area.
Where were you adjusting? And | can zoom
further. Do you recall?

Ri ght there at 74-369, yeah.

Ri ght here?

Ri ght there.

Is that the headgate that's in the yard

Yeah.
-- from Stroud Creek?

Yeah, it's -- it's Stroud Creek.
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Q Ckay. And --

A So when | would nake ny adjustnent and it
woul dn't show up as Bruce's, | finally wal ked it and
figured out...

Q When you say you wal ked it, you wal ked
downst r eanf

A Yeah. | wal ked down fromthere. And it --
it all makes a turn toward 74-157. And then from
74-157 you can turn it down to Bruce.

Q Ckay. And in a letter -- well, I'll have
you turn -- there's sone binders in front of you. |It's
Exhibit 5. There was a little letter that was

addressed to you?

A Wiere would it be at?

Q It's -- there's a tab. It should be 5.
A 5?

Q Yeah. Be right after that tab.

A Ckay. | got it.

Q Do you recognize that letter?

A Yeah, | received this.

Q Ckay.

A As an e-mail, | believe.

Q So as a result of this -- was it as a

result of this letter that you wal ked down through the

Whi ttaker property?
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A Yes.
Q Ckay. And what -- what did you -- when we

get down to M. MConnell's upper diversion point,

what -- what did you observe down there?

A So --

Q If I can zoomin. The red dot is his |ower
di version point. This dot right here is his upper.

A So at the -- the upper, what we observed if
you wal k into the jungle, that the Stroud -- Stroud
channel goes -- hits -- hits Lee Creek below his

di ver si on.

Q Ckay. And in your view, the water that was
com ng down that side channel is Stroud Creek?

A In my opinion, it's Stroud Creek. | don't

know what else it coul d be.

Q Ckay.
A Because when you wal k fromthe 74-157 down
it -- it stays in -- stays in that channel.

Q Great. Thank you.

On this letter there's sone instructions
there at the bottomfor you to obtain sone -- sone
measur enents.

Do you recall making those neasurenents?

A Yes.

Q Can you renenber today what those were?
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And if you can't, that's okay. But the first one was
to obtain a neasurenent at M Connells' authorized point
of diversion?

A Yeah, | made both -- | made neasurenents at
McConnel | s' upper and | ower, and then we sent the
74- 157 west spring to McConnell. And | believe it was
about 1.2 cfs. And then 24 hours later it showed up in
McConnel I s' | ower diversion. The upper diversion
didn't seemto be affected.

Q Ckay. In -- there's an expert report
that's been submtted in this matter. And | don't need
you to refer to it, but | think it accurately states
that in your 2019 waternaster report, there's no record
of delivery under Water Ri ght 74-157, which are the
spring -- that's the spring right that Whittaker owns.

A Ri ght .

Q Do you know -- can you expl ain why that
wasn't in the report?

A Basically, | didn't know what | was doi ng
yet. Took on late June, and | didn't even know t hat
spri ng exi st ed.

MR HARRIS: Ckay. | have no further questions.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ckay. M. Broniey?

MR, BROMLEY: Sure.

Iy
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROWLEY:

Q So, hey, M. Udy. M nane's Chris Broniey,
attorney for Bruce and d enda McConnell. Rob was
calling you "Merritt."

Ckay if | do the sane?

A Sur e.

Q Geat. So you said that -- that Bruce
called for his water.

Did he -- was it a phone call? Ws it in

witing? Dd --

A Just a phone call that he was | ow, yeah.
So | would go to the -- that 369 point and nmake an
adjustnment, and it still wouldn't show up. So then |

wal ked the creek to see why.

Q Ckay. And so then when you wal ked t he
creek down, you went down to the Wi ttaker place?

A Yeah. | -- fromthat point of 369, | just
assuned it was going to Bruce and to Jordan. But when
you wal k it, it makes a sharp turn where they've nade a
ditch to collect the spring. And so there at that
spring you can nake an adjustment to send it to Bruce.

Q | see. So you -- you wal ked what you
t hought was the channel, | guess, of Left Fork Lee

Creek or Stroud Creek?
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A Yeah.
Q And then you ended up on the Whittaker

A Yeah.

Q And then you hit a sharp turn, is what you
wer e sayi ng.

And is that -- that's a collection ditch,
in your mnd or --

A It 1ooks |like they dug a ditch to coll ect
t he west spring.

Q Ckay. So then did you see a channel of --
of Left Fork Lee Creek or Stroud Creek, whatever we
want to call it, then continuing on through the
Whittaker place? O how did water then get down to
McConnel | s?

A Yeah, there's -- there's a spot there at
t he 74-157 west spring where you can distribute the

Stroud channel and the spring or you could take the

spring to Wiittaker, yeah. It was back and forth all
summer long on the spring that -- after -- after
wal king it, | figured out that the Stroud -- how to get

t he Stroud channel to Bruce.
Q Ckay. And how did -- why -- why, in your
opinion, is it the Stroud channel and not sonething

else that's at the Wi ttaker place?
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Can you rephrase that
questi on?

MR, BROM_EY: Sur e.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Yeah.

Q (BY MR BROWLEY): So you said you -- you
put water into sonething to -- originally you nade sone
adjustnments in water to get it down do Bruce; right?

A Ri ght.

Q And so then you wal ked further down and you
ended up at the Wiaittaker place, and there's this ditch
that's intercepting flow, is that right?

A Ri ght.

Q Ckay. And then you did sonething to get
wat er, | guess, out of the ditch and put it on

downgr adi ent ?

A Yeah, there's -- there's board -- a board
headgat e.
Q And then it goes -- the water then that you

t ook out fromthat board headgate goes into what?

A It's the Stroud channel. But it's -- it
can have the spring water with it or not, whi chever way
you want it.

Q Uh- huh. And then you think that's --
that's the Stroud -- you think that's the Stroud

channel ?
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A Il -- 1 think -- in ny opinion, it's the

Stroud channel, because you can follow it clear from

Ever son.
Q Ckay.
A Yeah.
Q Did you wal k that channel all the way down

to Bruce's pl ace?

A Yes.
Q Yeah.
A | walked it fromthe spring down to Bruce's

upper di versi on.
Q And then into the jungle?
A Yeah, through the jungle, over the river,
t hr ough t he woods.
MR. BROMLEY: Right. GCkay. Nothing further.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.
Ch, you're still back there, Steve.
MR, JOHNSON: |' m good.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Gkay. M. Johnson, any
questi ons?
Ckay. M. Manwari ng?
MR. MANWARI NG Yes.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Go ahead, if you've got
any --

MR. MANWARI NG  Thank you.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  -- questions for this

W t ness.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MANVWARI NG
Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : MConnells' upper
diversion, is there a headgate there?
A No. | don't -- no, |I don't think there is.
There's just a dam

Q Just a bank?

A Yeah.

Q So how can you neasure fl ow of water at
t hat bank?

A You don't neasure there. The neasuring

device is down the ditch quite a ways.

Q So in order to neasure what's going
t hr ough - -

A Yeah, there's no adjustabl e headgat e.

Q Ckay. There's no | ockabl e, adjustable
headgat e at that upper diversion?

A No, not at this tine.

Q And the only way to nmeasure what's com ng
t hrough that diversion is to go even further downstream
to where there's a neasuring device?

A. Yeah.
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Q About how far away is that?

A Ch, |I'd say between a quarter mle and a
half a mle.

Q So you really don't get a very good
measurenment as to what's at the danf

A Not so nuch. His |ower diversion, the
measuring device is a lot closer to the diversion.

Q So when you were tal king about maki ng sone
mani pul ati ons upstreamon Stroud to try to get sone
nore water down, you weren't seeing anything change at
t he upper diversion?

A No.

Q Were you seeing any change cl ear down at
t he measuring device?

A No.

Q Did you check both pl aces?

A Wll, I -- at the diversion you -- there's
not hi ng. You can just eyeball it, yeah.

Q So there's not nuch to check?

A No.

Q So you have to go clear down to the

measuring --
A No, | -- pretty much | just go to the
measuri ng devices on both of the diversions. | didn't

spend any tine at the diversions, because there's
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not hi ng to adj ust.

Q Yeabh.

A But the way that that Lee Creek is set up,
Whi ttaker and Ericsson get their water rights, and then
Bruce basically gets what's left until -- if Bruce gets
his decree, then Tonthak and Ms. Smith get theirs.

Q They get the crunbs?

A Yeah.

Q Yeah. Ckay. You nentioned that you've
wal ked Stroud Creek and that's defined as a channel
from Ever son?

A Well, | know where -- | know where Everson
hits Stroud, so | know that that's Stroud on down. And
|*ve wal ked it, yes.

Q Have you wal ked it from where Everson hits
St roud?

A No, not fromthere.

Q Ckay.
A But | used to have that ranch | eased, and |
know -- | know that's pretty cl ear.

Q And how do you know it's pretty clear?

A Just fromdriving ny four-wheel er up and

Q Hasn't changed over the years?

A | -- not with -- | wouldn't say
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drastically, no.

Q And fromthe point that -- | think you said
157 on down to the --

A To his upper diversion | have wal ked.

Q H s upper diversion

And then you' ve wal ked Stroud Creek even a
little further to see it go bel ow that diversion?

A Yeah, it -- it -- Stroud -- that Stroud
channel comes in bel ow Bruce's upper diversion.

Q And how confident are you that's the sane
channel, that's the Stroud Creek that we're talking
about that flows all the way out?

A ' mconfident, because | walked it fromthe
157 spring.

Q And is -- are there --

A And not hi ng - -

Q -- other channels that confuse you when
you're down there, or is it a pretty straight channel ?

A It's pretty -- there's no -- like |I know
where Porcupine hits Lee Creek, and I know where Lee
Creek is. And Lee Creek never cane close to this other
channel .

Q Ckay. So back to the question | had, when
you' re down close to where Stroud is conmng into Lee

Creek, are there different channels in there, or is it
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still one, clear channel that you wal k?
A. Yeah, there's two channel s. There's what |

call the Stroud channel and the Lee Creek channel.

Q And --

A They don't -- they don't go back and forth.
Q They don't go back and forth?

A No.

Q Ckay. That's what I"mpainfully trying to

get at but couldn't.
A Ckay.
Q So thank you for that.

| don't think I have any ot her questions.

Thank you.
A Ckay.
M5. FOSTER |' m good.

EXAM NATI ON
BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:

Q M. Udy, you may have said this, and I'm
jotting down thoughts and notes quickly, so | apol ogi ze
if you've already answered it.

As the Stroud Creek channel conmes down from
the Wiittaker Ditch, that 369 ditch I think is what you
call it, and, you know, it stays in the Stroud Creek

channel until you -- until it hits this spring ditch,
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maybe a ditch comng fromthe west springs, then that
Stroud Creek water is taken out of the Stroud Creek
channel at that |ocation, at the spring -- spring area,
right, or at this Whittaker spring ditch; is that
right?

A It's hard to say what -- what was the
ori gi nal channel or not, because it -- this ditch that
collects the spring, it looks like it's been there
f orever.

Q It collects Stroud Creek too?

A Yeah, the Stroud -- Stroud Creek and the
spring are in this sane -- it's running -- the ditch
runs opposite of the channel to try to collect the
spring.

Q After it makes that 90-degree turn, what is
t he di stance between that -- that intersection point
between Stroud Creek and that ditch and where water
t hen gets turned back out of the ditch into Stroud
Creek? Do you have any estimate for what that distance
is where you can then turn water back to the Stroud
Creek channel ?

A Fromthe -- fromlike where they collect --
where they collect the spring back to the original
channel ? It's pretty short distance.

Q Are we tal king hundreds of feet? 50 feet?

000285




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 284
Audio Transcription

12 feet?

A Oh, probably a hundred yards.

Q A hundred yards?

A At the nost.

Q Ckay. \Wiere water then woul d be taken out
of the Stroud Creek channel into that west ditch or
that ditch comng fromthe springs, then you turn it
back toward the Stroud Creek channel at that -- you

said there was sone boards that you can manipul ate --

A Yeah.

Q -- turn back water back down?

A Yeah.

Q Is that correct?

A Right. But this -- this has been there so
long that | can't tell where the original channel was
or if this mght be the original channel. | -- but it

appears that it's been dug to collect the spring,
because the springs are sporadic through there.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay. So hundred --

hundred yards between those two points.

Ckay. Thank you.

M. Harris, this is your witness. D d you
have any ot her questions for M. Udy.
Iy
Iy
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HARRI S:

Q Just to piggyback off of M. Cefalo's
testinony -- and | don't know if an aerial photo hel ps
or not, but there's -- if we zoomin, there's a circle
right there that's a pipeline intake.

Are you famliar with that?

A Let's see.

Q | believe the channel that you were tal king
about collecting west springs cones in this way.

A Ch, yeah.

Q But | -- and then this is where it can be
t urned back.

Is that -- if | zoomin, does that help you
out ?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: And that's an ol der photo
t hat you see.

THE W TNESS: Yeah, | don't recogni ze the sheds.
The sheds aren't there anynore, are they?

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: No. That was --

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: -- a m | ki ng barn.

THE W TNESS: Okay. Yeah, | -- 1 recognize
this --

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Ckay. So --
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A -- Spot.

Q -- M. Cefalo -- this is where water from
west springs cones in, and then it goes down
approxi mately a hundred yards, and there's a structure
there that would turn what's | eft back down this way.

Is that -- do | understand your testinony

correctly?

A Yeah. Zoomout a little bit.

| think that ditch is right through here --

Q Yep.
A -- goi ng opposite direction.
Q Yep.
A All these springs are right in here.
Q And then it takes the 90-degree turn --
A And then it takes --
Q -- and it appears --
A Yeah, and then it -- and then it -- so this
is your Stroud channel and it's collecting these
springs, then --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER A ditch channel -- or the
ditch, you nean?

THE WTNESS: A ditch, yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Yeah.

Q (BY MR HARRI S): Ckay.

A So | don't know. The original channel
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m ght have went that way. | don't know.

Q But then you say after -- as | zoomin, it
| ooks like there's kind of an overflow  You wal ked
basically this --

A Yeah. | walked fromright there down to
Bruce' s upper diversion.

Q And there's a road right here.

Are you --

A Yeah.

Q -- famliar with this road?

Ckay. So is this the approximte | ocation

of the channel that's collecting?

A Yeah. It |ooks so small right now  But
there's -- there's quite a bit of water there.
MR HARRIS: Ckay. | was just trying to help

pave what you were tal king about, Janes. That's all
t he questions | have.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.
M. Brom ey?
Any ot her parties have questions?

MR, BROMLEY: Sure.

RECRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROMEY:

Q So, Merritt, you said that the origina
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channel m ght have gone that-a-way, |ike back over to
the left --
Is that to the west?
MR HARRI'S: Yeah, this would be west, this way.
MR. BROMLEY: Yeah.
Q Is that what you neant? |t m ght have gone

to the west,
A. Yeah, | don't.

original or if this has been

t he wat er goes.
you're --

MR HARRI S: Qops,
but t on.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER
back out --

THE W TNESS: Can you
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:
MR. BROMLEY: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER

channel comng from--
THE W TNESS: Up here
MR HARRIS: There is
THE W TNESS: -- your

assune this is Bruce's water

sorry. I

but you don't know?

don't knowif this is

dug. But this is the way

But up here where you're thinking

pushed t he w ong

Can you actually pull that
go this way?

-- M. Harris --

-- SO We can see the

i's where you nake your --
it is, yep.
adj ustnments. And you

and this is Wittakers'
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wat er, so you assune it's headed to Bruce. And then
when you walk it, it comes down and goes -- and goes
this direction.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): And the -- so the water
goi ng through there has been turned into ditches, it's
been channel i zed.

And what you're saying is you're not really
sure where Stroud Creek channel was up there

originally?

A Yeah, | don't know for originally.

Q Uh- huh.

A But | know from-- fromthat point down
it's all in one original-I|ooking channel.

Q But you also said that the ditch | ooked
like it had been there forever too?

A Yeah, it's -- the ditch is probably ol der
t han ne.

Q So it's -- it's difficult to say, then,
what -- what's natural, what's been human caused; is
t hat true?

A Yeah, | woul dn't know.

MR, BROMLEY: Not hing el se.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay. Any ot her
questions, M. Manwari ng?

MR. MANWARI NG No.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: M. Harris?
MR, HARRI S No.
Thank you. Good |luck with your cows.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
MR. BROMLEY: Thanks.
MR HARRIS: Okay. W'Ill call Jordan Wittaker.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Cone on up, Jordan.

JORDAN VH TTAKER
havi ng been called as a witness by Protestants Janes
Whittaker and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, was duly sworn

and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFICER M. Whittaker, do you
solemnly affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give
is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth?

THE W TNESS: | do.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Thanks.

| don't think I've had you under oath in
any water matter before. Ckay.

THE WTNESS: This is ny first tine ever
testifying in a water hearing.

THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right. Good. Let's
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make it your | ast.

THE WTNESS: Good? |It's not good.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Make it your last. That's
okay.

THE WTNESS: It's not good at all

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HARRI S:

Q Jordan, could you please state your nane
and address for the record.

A Jordan Waittaker. 201 G I nore Avenue,
Leadore, |daho 83464.

Q And are you a nenber of an entity known as
Whi ttaker Two Dot Ranch, LLC?

A | am

Q Ckay. And in your capacity as a nenber or
manager of the LLC, you filed a protest in this matter;
is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And what is your current occupation?

A I'ma farner slash rancher slash irrigation
contractor in irrigation design.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): Ckay. You install center

pi vot s?
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A Yes.

Q Ckay. And Wiittaker Two Dot Ranch, LLC,
owns farm and ranch ground in Lemhi County; correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And have you -- because of that,
have you becone famliar with water rights and water
di stri bution?

A Yes. Now, |'ve been involved in water
right admnistration ny entire life.

Q Are you generally famliar with MConnell s’
transfer that's the subject of today's hearing?

A. Yes.

Q Ckay. How did you becone famliar with

t hat ?

A | had to becone famliar with it because |
feel -- | feel threatened by it.

Q Ckay. And I'magoing to pull up -- | mght

be goi ng back and forth a little bit, but thisis a dS
map. And this doesn't capture all of your property.
But does the -- this green |ine generally
depict the property that Wittaker Two Dot Ranch owns
in this Lee Creek, Big Eight M| e drai nage?
A Yes.
Q And the irrigation place of use for your

Water Right 74-157 is depicted in that yell ow single
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hatch; is that right?

A Yes, that's correct.

Q Ckay. And so how |l ong has the Wi ttaker
fam ly owned that property?

A There's two different ranches there. But
t he one to the west we've owned since the 1920s.

Q Ckay. And you're generally famliar with
where McConnells' property is |located --

A Yes.

Q -- right?

And are you famliar with his points of

di versi on on Lee Creek?

A | am now.
Q Ckay. Have you ever -- have you been
t here?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. Do you know who the waternmasters for

74Z were before M. Udy?

A Yeah. W had Paul Maughan who was -- for
about half a year. | think he was 2018 and half a year
in 2019. Cerald Peterson did it for, | believe, a year
before that. And then we had Tom Udy. And then prior
to that it was Calvin Udy on Lee Creek.

Q And was Calvin --

A. O Calvin Whittaker, excuse ne, on Lee
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Cr eek.

Q And was Calvin the waternmaster for a | ong
time?

A For ever.

Q Ckay. Is he still alive?

A No. He's passed away.

Q Ckay. And this is always a | oaded

question, but how old are you?

A ' m 42.

Q 42. Okay. How -- how -- how | ong woul d
you say, then, have you been famliar with this
property?

A You know, | was noving cows and running

hayi ng equi pnent fromthe tine | was 5, and changi ng

dams with ny dad. |'ve been there.
Q Ckay.
A 37 years | would say |'ve been very well

acquainted with that property.

Q So you -- you've becone famliar with this
property and this watershed; is it fair to say?

A Extrenely.

Q Ckay. And did the prior waternasters
adj ust headgates and deliver water?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. Wat | want to do nowis we'll Kkind
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of go to Google Earth. And | think it would be hel pful
for you to just wal k through your -- the distribution
system and point out certain features on the property.
So we'll start here. And just generally, |
believe this is --
A Can | --
Q Yeah, go ahead and stand up.
A -- go up to the board?
Ckay. So this would be our Stroud Creek
di version, the senior water rights for 2.4 cfs. And it
turns --
Q So right as you stand up, |I'mgoing to have
you grab a book. Sorry.
If you could turn to our exhibit book at
Exhi bit 159.
M5. YENTER  Maybe t he ot her book.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER | think that's that one.
MS. YENTER  Yeah.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  The photos all the way at
t he back.
MR. HARRI S: Yeah.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Yep.
Q (BY MR HARRIS): That picture.
A Ckay.

Q Is -- is where you're pointing there -- |
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call it in the yard. And | should clarify this.
Whose property is this?
A It's Rosalie Ericsson's now. It was ny
Uncl e Cal's.
Q Ckay. And so is the |ocation you' ve
identified, is that what is depicted on that picture?
A Yeah, that's the headgate that sits right
t here.
Q Ckay. And so then go ahead and conti nue
down the system
A Ckay. It -- yeah, it crosses the weir
that's Exhibit 161 right there. There's a brand-new
weir fromwhat was there that was an ol d wood one, and
it was starting to fail. | replaced that one prior to
the irrigation season starting.
Wat er crosses there.

Q Real quick, if you turn the page -- or 160,

is that -- is that that neasuring device?
A Yes. That's the one that's currently
t here.
Q Ckay.
A Ckay. So the water goes over the weir,

goes into an intake for a bubbler, hits the pipeline,
and goes kind of north, maybe northeast just a slight

bit to a pivot point that's, oh -- it's probably --
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probably a mle to the pivot point fromthis point

ri ght here.
Q Ckay.
A. The excess water that the -- if there's

excess water that the pivot doesn't take, it goes down
this ditch, which unites with -- with bypass flow for
t he bubbl er and heads that direction.

Q So this is -- right here, this is an
overflow ditch here to the right?

A Yeah.

Q And then over here to the left is -- is
what is not diverted from Stroud Creek?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. And then at sone point it crosses
t he fence and goes into sone brushy area.

A Yeah.

Q Coul d you just describe --

A So this -- this was a ditch that was dug
right here to kind of keep ny Uncle Cal's place from --
or his pasture fromwhere it just built up the ice.

And so they dug this ditch to the willows. And then in
the wintertine the ice builds up in here.

But what's happening now is Stroud Creek
goes in here and it fans -- fans out through these

wllows and gets -- gets to be a general ness. It's
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knocked t he fence down between Grady Ericsson and |.

And then it goes up to our west spring
ditch and gets gathered up for multiple -- multiple
| ocati ons, and then conmes back into our ditch.

Q So let's -- let's tal k about the west
spring. So I"'mpulling this up right here. It appears
that there's a channel starting about right here
that --

A Yeah, it starts at the fence |ine between
us and -- and Johnson, Steven Johnson. And it just --
it just peters through here, and I don't know. W
could neasure it if we wanted to, but it's like a
quarter of a mle long, and it picks up 5 inches here,
5 inches there, all -- all the way along. And by the
tine it gets over here, there's typically 80 -- 80 to
90 i nches, depending on the tinme of year, that gets
gat hered up by it.

Q Ckay. So the west springs cones in this
| ocation. And | want to back up just a little bit,
because it now appears that there's a channel comng in
fromthe east.

A So if you -- if you zoomout just a little
bit, you can see -- see the east ditch, east springs
ditch, starts al nost clear back over at the road to

Shanna Foster's house. But it -- it wnds along and it
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picks up little, bitty springs.

It used to be a ot nore effective when
this place was being flood-irrigated, but it's being
sprinkled now. But it used to pick up Uncle Cal's
wast ewat er and sone springs, but nowit just -- it just
has sone springs that it's picking up.

And cones -- cones back in here and about

the fence |line --

Q Do you want me to zoomin?
A Yeah.
So at CGndy's request, | put a weir in

right here at the fence line last year. And we
nmeasured that. Her, Merritt, and | neasured about
40 inches of water right there.

Q And |1'm going to have you | ook at
Exhibit 161. It's the |ast picture.

A Ckay. At 161 is -- is the weir. So |

don't know where the picture went to that actually has

the -- has that weir on it, but it's mssing.

Q Ckay. So 161 is -- is not the east springs
wei r?

A No.

Q Ckay.

A That's the west spring weir that's there

currently.
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Q Ckay. | apologize. | don't knowif | have
any springs one.

A So --

Q But there is --

A There's a weir that sits at this |location
that both -- that Merritt neasured and G ndy -- C ndy
and | were there when Merritt neasured. There was
about 40 i nches.

Q Ckay.

A And it's a brand-new Ci ppoletti.

Q So then the -- this ditch -- well, go ahead
and keep descri bing there.

A Ckay. So the -- so the -- all of this was
built initially to flood-irrigate before the pivot got
put in in 1996.

So in order to flood-irrigate this hill
the water from Stroud Creek, the water fromthe east
springs, and the water fromthe west springs all got
channeled to -- this is a -- this is a ridge, basically
it's like a Continental Divide between -- between Lee
Creek and -- and Big Eight Mle.

And -- anyway, this -- the Stroud Creek
water, the West Fork water, and the East Fork water all
cane together and followed the very tippy top of this

ridge and went -- went out to flood-irrigate where this

000302




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 301
Audio Transcription

pi vot is now.

Q So if I zoomout --

A Yeah. Yeah.

Q -- just a bit.

A There was a nmess of ditches out there when

| was a ki d.

Q Ckay.
A But now nost of the tine Stroud water,
t here's not enough Stroud water to fill the pivot.
It -- it takes 3 cfs to fill the pivot, and Stroud --

the Stroud water rights were 2.4. And so since 19- --
well, we used to have a diesel notor that punped it. |
can't renenber what year we put in the gravity |ine.
But all this water used to flow out the
ditch. And then we had a diesel punp out there that
pressurized the pivot. W put in a gravity line |I'm
guessi ng soneti ne around 2000. And then we picked up
the west spring water. And there's a little electric
punp that boosts it to give us enough water to run --

to run that Harry's pivot.

And there's -- there's typically sone water
left. |If we shut off the pivot or anything |like that,
all the water cone -- all of our water is supposed to

cone down this ditch and go to areas that we

flood-irrigate, which would be this -- what we call
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Harry's Swanp.
And then there's one nore bubbler on down

this ditch just at that | ocation on the edge of the

pi vot that drops -- drops a mainline off the edge of
the hill where there's sonme hand lines that pick up the
corners.

Q So ditch conmes down, and then at this

| ocation there's --

A Yeah, there's one nore bubbler right there
that drops the mainline off the hill into -- to the --
to the corners. You notice that the -- when you pulled
up the -- like -- like this area here and then this

area right in here.

Q Ckay.

A And then the flood irrigation occurs --
occurs down through there.

Q Just as a point of reference, is there

sonet hi ng constructed here now where this is disturbed

or --

A That's just a big clay pit.

Q Ckay.

A The main point of reference is this tree
has got to be -- that tree is as old as -- as there's
been people in the valley. It's amazing.

Q Ckay. So let's cone back now to where al
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of these cone together.
Is there a control structure there by your

bubbl er i ntake?

A There's a control structure right here.
And when Gerald was adm nistering the water, he just --
he just put a little spike in the board and -- where he
t hought 50 to 80 inches was going by. And -- and then
the -- the water was spilling -- Tom Udy -- when Tom
Udy was adm ni stering water, the water went out up in
the Kauer Ditch, so he didn't -- he -- | nean it was
just an earthen dam and the whole spring went to us.

Q Ckay. Currently, though, this -- if
there's excess water, it |ooks like there's a channel

t hat cones down.

A It --

Q s that --

A It can be turned out. So prior to the 2020
irrigation season, it was -- everything with Paul was a
ot of work. And so Il -- 1 -- | had been raised

know ng and understandi ng that the spring was ours and
t hat McConnells recei ved Stroud water.

And when they were no longer taking it down
t he Kauer Ditch, it got a |lot nore conplicated to
adm nister, so |l put in-- 1 put in tw weirs so that

we coul d neasure their water in and neasure it back
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out, which in effect, with a little sinple al gebra, you
end up with how much water is left in our ditch
Q So the water that cones down from here --

this is on your property?

A Correct.

Q Have you wal ked fromthis point?

A I've wal ked the entire | ength.

Q And you were here during the testinony of
Merritt Udy just a m nute ago; correct?

A Yeah.

Q Is there anything you want to add to his

t esti nmony about where sone of the features are with
this water?

A You know, this is -- this area here,
what -- what they're calling the channel, is -- is a
ditch. And there's a ditch here.

Q Is that the old Bohannan Ditch?

A That's the old Bohannan Ditch. And it --
it kicked water out onto the bar on the opposite side

of this knoll.

Q Ckay.

A | wal ked this section by nyself. Well,
|'"ve walked it nultiple tinmes. 1've walked it -- |
wal ked a fair anmobunt of it with Bryce. | walked it by
nyself. | didn't walk this with Merritt.
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The section -- none of you guys are -- soO

far, wth the exception of Merritt, nobody's really

been right.
If you scroll down to where the culverts
are.
Q Ckay.
A So this deal here is not the channel.
That's just a little -- that's just a little, piddly

spring that cones out. This is Lee Creek, and this is
Stroud Creek.

Fromthis area down there's -- there's a
natural ridge that -- from soneone who can run grade at
a half an inch in a trackhoe over a quarter mle,
there's a substantial ridge that runs down through
here. 1 -- 1, for the life of ne, can appreci ate why
me, Merritt, the sheriff, the deputy, Dave Tonthak, |
mean you dunp sone Kool -Aid in right here, you can do
what ever you want, the water is not deliverable to --
to this upper point of diversion.

Q So you're -- you've wal ked it, and
you're --

A l've -- I've -- 1've crawl ed through the
brush, nunber one, because | had very strong incentive
to wal k through the brush | ast year, as | was wat chi ng

an awful lot of ny livelihood disappear.
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Q Ckay. Any other details on the irrigation
system your current irrigation system that you want

to point out?

A You know, it's a pain in the ass. And it's
not ny fault, | guess, would be part of it. I'm..

Q All right. | want to tal k now about the
2020 admi nistration matter. Well, actually, let ne

back up. There's a couple things | do want to ask you.
So if you want to go ahead and have a seat.

"1l have you switch binders. Well, we
won't do it that way.

You' ve been here during C ndy's testinony
where she said at |least prelimnarily the east springs
appeared to not be tributary to Stroud Creek.

Did you hear that testinony?

A Yeah, | did.

Q Ckay. Do you agree with that?

A |l -- 1 -- 1 agree that prelimmnarily -- but
| mean in ny mnd if you've been working around wat er
your whole life, you should -- it's not even a
question. It's an absolute certainty that they're not
tributary. | nmean water doesn't run uphill. That
ditch is cut on grade, a very -- a very flat grade. It
doesn't run very fast. |It's cut there to bring that

water to that ridge. It's not -- it's not a -- it's
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not a matter that needs nore investigation. |t just
needs smarter people.

Q But you -- you did have Bryce Contor go up
and do a technical evaluation?

A Yeah. No, | had Bryce cone and do a
hydr ol ogi cal analysis of it.

Q Ckay. GCkay. | want to talk to you now
about the 2020 admi nistration matter.

Wien did you first in 2020 becone aware
that there was potentially an issue with water
distribution in this drai nage?

A So the end of May -- | -- | -- | had taken
Merritt and I'd shown himthe new weirs that | put in,
and | thought | explained howto get Bruce's water by
ny deal. | -- and |l -- | wear a mllion different hats
and go a mllion different places, but the |ast week in
May we didn't have our 2.4 cfs, so there wasn't any
Stroud water com ng down into the west spring. So the
headgate was conpletely shutting off any flow to go on
down to Bruce.

And the |l ady that | have that was
changi ng -- changing the fl oodwater and ki nd of
wat chi ng over the -- |I've got a slew of kids that
change pi pe for ne.

And Morena [phonetic] -- | don't speak good
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enough Spani sh, and she doesn't speak good enough
Engl i sh, but anyway, she kept saying that they weren't
hardly getting any water down to the | ower bubbler,

whi ch catches water for the -- for the pipeline. And I
wasn't going there nyself. | just -- | just figured
that the creek hadn't come up yet.

And then shortly after the 1lst of June,
| -- | drove up there in person.

And if we could scroll back up, | could
show you where it all happened. Go back up to where
that old house is on this nmap.

Q Well, I"mjust -- what conmunication did
you receive that there was an issue? Did that cone
fromthe watermaster or directly from M. MConnell or

from anot her --

A In ny recollection, it was Dave who had the
i ssue, because he wasn't -- they weren't getting any
water. And | -- inny mnd, | was |like, Wll, hell,

|*"'mnot getting any water either.

And so anyway, | rode up here on ny
not or bi ke. And about right here on this hillside ny
ditch is blown out and there's a slew of water just
pouri ng down into the swanp. And | knew we had sone
problens, so | went up here to this headgate, sw tched

it toturn all the water to Bruce until | could get ny
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ditch fixed.
Q Ckay.
A And at that point in time, | believe it

woul d be somewhere around the 5th to the 10th of June
is when G ndy becane involved. And I -- | felt like
we' d resol ved the issue because | -- after | fixed the
ditch, I went back to taking between 50 and 80 i nches,
enough just to get ny pivot filled and run a few hand
lines, and turned the water -- the rest of the water
| oose to Bruce. But --

Q Let ne ask you, are you famliar with the
Kauer Ditch?

A Yeah, I'mfamliar with it.

Q Ckay. How are you famliar with that?

A So we have a State section.

Q Here's 36.

A Anyway, so if you park the horse trailer at
Uncle Cal's place, because this road back through here
goi ng towards Porcupine is m serable.

Q Sorry.

A But anyways, you park the horse trailer to
Uncle Cal's place, and then you ride your horse back on
this road, you cross the Kauer Ditch. Every year when
we're taking care of cattle up here on the school

section, we ride across the Kauer D tch.
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Q Ckay. And do you know what year the Kauer

Ditch was -- was officially closed?
A | know it had water in it in 2015. |
don't -- |1 don't -- | don't believe it ever had any in
2016.
Q So just as a general matter, can you
descri be, as you were growi ng up, how water was -- how

t he Kauer Ditch was involved with water distribution in
t hi s drai nage.

A So any -- any water above -- there's 4 cfs
goes down to Uncle Cal, 2.4 cfs goes to us. And then
Cal, | think, had an arbitrary nunber in his head.
Maybe it wasn't arbitrary. | see in sone of the --
sone of the stuff you guys submtted there was a 4 cfs
quantity at one tinme conmng fromthe -- comng from
t hi s side.

But at any rate, Cal had a nunber. Cal
turned a nunber in this ditch, and then he sent 2 nore
to us. He probably didn't send the 2 that goes to him
and then he filled them filled -- filled Tonthak
and -- and Shanna up.

And things got a ot nore conplicated when
Cal retired. And then after Tom Udy died, then -- then
everyt hing got screwed up.

Q So since 2015 -- or you haven't seen water
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in the Kauer Ditch after that year?

A No.

Q Ckay. And now the way that water -- well,
let nme -- et ne withdraw t he questi on.

A The nice -- the nice thing about -- the

nice thing about that was is everything that just cane
down here -- | nean Cal -- Cal turned us down our 2.4.

Everything that cane in the west and the east springs

just -- we just got.
So there -- | nean there's -- there's a
giant -- not a giant, but there's a big -- this west

springs ditch is an earthen damthat's been there --
been there for |onger than anybody in this rooms
probably been here.

Q And -- and |I'mjust tal king about what was
hi storically done.

But now the way water gets down to Lee

Creek is through your property, whereas before it was
turned down the Kauer Ditch, it would inject into the
Ri ght Fork?

A It would inject into Porcupine and then go
on down.

Q Ckay. GCkay. And that arrangenent, in your
view, was explained in the | daho Suprenme Court opinion

from 1954; correct?

000313




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 312
Audio Transcription

A Yeah.

Q And -- but you would agree that that is not
on the face of the spring water right at this point?

A No.

Q Were the water rights affected by that
decree, were they ever anended, even in the Lemhi
adj udi cation, to describe this arrangenent?

A No.

Q And the Suprene Court didn't say you had to
go file a transfer in the opinion, they just said
here's an agreenent ?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay.

A And it worked for a hundred years.

Q Ckay. There's been a | ot of discussion
about -- so Il'mgoing to take you back to Stroud Creek
and | abel the features. But you say you've wal ked
Stroud Creek as it -- during -- on the |ower parts of
your property. And there's -- at |east on the USGS
map, there's an indication that the Stroud Creek
channel came in in the southeast to the northeast.

Are you famliar with that property?
A | am now.
Q Ckay. Have you | ocated anything -- any

sort of a remmant channel on that property?
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A No.
Q Ckay. Wiat -- describe for nme what you

f ound t here?

A So water crosses out of our property, and
it's -- it's a very well -defined channel all the way --
all the way down. And there's a pretty good -- pretty

good ridge in the mddle of it.
Q So there's -- there's an el evati on change

right there that would direct water --

A. Yeah.
Q -- further down?
A. | nean it -- it wouldn't -- it's not |ike

you could put a canvas dam at any point in that channel
and divert it over.

Q Ckay. Now, in 2020 there was a letter that
was sent by Cindy to Merritt Udy to do sone
measur enents.

Did you acconpany him --

A Yes.

Q -- with those nmeasurenents?

A Yes.

Q And you were here during his testinony
earlier?

A Yeah.

Q Do you agree with how he descri bed the
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neasurenents that were taken and the resul ts?

A Yeah. Yeah. No, we -- | -- that's -- you
know, there were -- there were a couple things that
occurred. | believe it was on the 31st of July we'd

gotten the sheriff to turn our water back on, the
spring water back on. And that was a Friday. And so
our water ran through the weekend.

And then on Monday C ndy cane back up and

she said, "Well, this will be an interesting test to
see whether it's a futile call.”™ And so we -- we
turned the water all back down. I wasn't -- it's not

like I was excited for a test, but anyway, C ndy turned
t he wat er back down.

And when we went down to that | ower point
of diversion, C ndy had said, just kind of halfway in
passing, and | just only halfway heard it, that
McConnel ls only had one point of diversion. And then
it took about 48 hours for the water to actually show
up at the | ower point of diversion.

But | was nainly intrigued, possibly -- |
mean partially because | had that prick in nmy ear from
Ci ndy saying there was only one point of diversion held
by McConnells. And then the other interesting thing
was is we observed absolutely no change in the upper

poi nt of diversion. And so all our water went down to
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t hat | ower one.

And so | thought about that for a while.
And then | dug out the G een Book and | ooked up
McConnel I s' water rights, and then | got that map
essentially right there and | |ocated the -- | ocated
t he point of diversion and determ ned that their upper
poi nt of diversion had to be it.

And at that point intinme it was -- it was
getting late into the evening. But | wal ked the
channel the rest of the way down from-- through the
BLM And |I found that that was Stroud channel that

cane out below theirs and that it was a futile call

And so | -- | had the sheriff and his
deputy cone up, as well as Merritt. | can't renmenber
whether it was Steve or Chip. | think it was Chip.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: It wasn't ne.

THE WTNESS: Yeah. | think -- and Chip canme up
there. And so there was quite a flock of us wal ked it.
And, you know, you can -- you can listen to -- you can
listen to your GPS director in the car, but if it tells
you to hang a left into a | ake, just because it's the
damm map doesn't nean it's right.

And | nean you tal k about -- you talk
about -- |'ve heard thing things about neandering and

brai ded channels. And it's not a neandering or braided
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channel . And -- and it has the soil structure that

it's highly erodable.

Vell, it's not. It's full of wll ows.
It -- the other thing is is that until 2000 -- 2016
t here hasn't been any kind of -- any kind of flow

bypass -- bypass that west springs ditch. So if
that -- if -- if the Kauer Ditch has been used since
the "30s, it's been 90 years since there's been any
kind of -- any kind of flow go down -- go down t hat
channel .

Q In 2020 you were ultimately able to use
Wat er Ri ght 74-157 again; correct?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. If this transfer is approved, it
woul d add a point of diversion below the current

confl uence of Stroud Creek and Lee Creek; correct?

A Yes.
Q Wiy is that a concern to you?
A Wel |, because the way the water rights are

structured right now, the historical adm nistration
remai ns the sane. They can't call for 74-157. |f you
nove that point of diversion down in the absence of any
ki nd of agreenent, they're calling for -- for water

t hat they' ve never had.

Q And you believe that would be an injury to
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you?

A | have no doubt it would be an injury. |
had to -- had to cut --

Q What about -- what about others on Stroud
Cr eek?

A You know, there's -- there's -- there's a

lot nmore injury to it than just ne. There's an aw ul
lot of injury to Steve. Not just in his water

adm ni stration. Wen you -- when you take that water
essentially fromone side of that Continental Divide to
t he other, you nake -- you nmake Harry's Swanp, which it
turned out to be last year infinitely drier.

And so all his water com ng from Ei ght

Mle, his -- his ditch didn't work, you know.

Q I f --

A Then the other thing is there's -- there's
no good channel. There's no efficient way for that

water to get through there. There's places where the
creek is 100 feet wwde. And so when you -- when you

| ook at Tonthak and when you | ook at Shan, if it's
taking 8 cfs going past ny place, there was at | east

12 cfs avail able up there where the Kauer Ditch is, and
there's only nmaybe 6 cfs getting down to them you

have -- you have an awful | ot of |oss that's being

stood by junior water right holders that don't have
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much to go on anyways.

Q If the Hearing O ficer were to approve this
transfer but subordinate McConnells' water rights to
your rights and the others on Stroud Creek, would that

resol ve your protest?

A Yeah. No, that would -- that would resolve
my protest.

Q Ckay.

A That's --

Q So you don't have a problemw th hi m using

the I ower point of diversion to irrigate his ranch, do
you?

A No. No.

Q It's the adm nistration effect potentially
on you that you're concerned about?

A It's the adm nistration effect on ne.

Q Ckay. And if for sone reason this
proceedi ng doesn't turn out |ike you had hoped, is one
of your options to pursue a District Court action over

t he agreenent ?

A It's -- it's absolutely what we have to do.
It's too expensive. |It's too big of a loss not to
pur sue.

Q Is that sonmething you hope to avoi d?

A Ch, absol utely.
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| don't know about you, Bruce, but this is

maki ng me ol d.

MR HARRI'S: No further questions. Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

M. Brom ey?
MR, BROMLEY: Sure.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR BROMLEY:

Q So hi, Jordan. Chris Bronley, Bruce and

d enda McConnel | .

out .

Try t

i nto

m ght

nor e.

A Yeah.
MR. BROMLEY: Rob, could you --
MR HARRIS: Wich nap would you like? | can

MR BROMLEY: | think if you could just back

MR HARRIS: On the A S nmap?

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah, | think that was -- yeah.
0 go back to, you know, where Stroud Creek cones
maybe that -- is it 3697

MR HARRIS: The -- this Google Earth inage
be the best, so...

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah. |If you can just back out
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MR HARRIS: Onh, sorry.

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah. Maybe even nore. WMaybe a

little bit
Q
Creek in --

nore. Sure. Let's give it a shot there.

So, Jordan, where is -- where is Stroud

in this ook at Google Earth? Is it in the

bottom | eft-hand corner, maybe?

A.
Q
not sure --
A.
Q
A.

Q

So it's comng right along here.
Yeah. Kind of in at a 45 going to -- I'm

at the top of the [unintelligible]?

Where are we -- we going to?

Yeah. It's --

Her e?

Yeah, I'"'mjust taking it fromthe bottom

| eft-hand corner.

A.
Q

Cr eek?

A
Q

Ckay.
Ckay. And so that's -- that's Stroud

Yes.

Wiere is -- so where's the diversion from

Stroud Creek?

A

Q
A

Whi ch one?
Your 3609.
369 is.

MR. HARRI S: ls that --

Q

(BY MR BROMLEY): Sorry.
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321

A -- down in Uncle Cal's yard.

MR HARRIS: Yeah. D d you want to see it on a

G S nap?

MR, BROMLEY: Yeah, | was just trying to trace

things, and it was a little hard for ne to foll ow
the -- the drilled in --

THE W TNESS: 360 --

MR HARRIS: Sorry.

THE W TNESS: That was uncalled for, Chris.
[Unintelligible.]

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): \What did | say?

A You said the drilled in, you started on
sonet hi ng.

Q No, | was --

A Anyway .

Q Yeah. | wasn't going anywhere with it.

prom se you.

A Ckay. Al right. Fine. That's good.
m st ake.
Ri ght there is 369.
Q Ckay. So that's -- is that Stroud Creek,
t hen?

A This is Stroud Creek right here.
Q Ckay. So that's -- that's then the

headgate - -

My
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A Yeah.
Q -- where you would divert water into your

di version for 369?

A. Yes.
Q Ckay. So then where is -- where is water
t hen -- then neasured?

A Ri ght there.

Q Ckay.

A You could see the tail, tail com ng out of
the G ppoletti.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: The weir.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): GCkay. And is that still
Stroud Creek?

A No. That's our ditch.

Q Ckay. So then where does Stroud Creek --

Rob, if you could back out. | won't use
the --
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Ri ght there.
Q (BY MR BROMLEY): VWhere does Stroud Creek
go?

A So since 2016 it -- they regulate 2.4 to
us, and then it conmes down this ditch here.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Down t he channel ?

THE W TNESS: Yeah. Well, it's a ditch.

But anyway, it goes down the ditch, and
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then it spreads out in the willows here. That's where
it goes.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Ckay. So Stroud

Creek -- you're in your Uncle Cal's yard there?

A Yeah.

Q That's where the diversion -- the headgate
is --

A Yes.

Q -- the diversion?

A Yes.

Q Where does Stroud Creek go fromthere? O

does it not go? Does it just go into the ditches?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay. So Stroud Creek, at your Uncle Cal's
pl ace, goes into ditches?

A Yeah. | nmean so this -- this deal here is
a ditch that takes the water out of this little
pasture. And then after this ditch it just fans out in
the willows, and then it gets coll ected back up at
various points all along this.

Q Ckay. So then there are -- there are
ditches that are taking the water -- getting back into
the systemthat you're using to irrigate?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And then -- so then it continues to
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go through this system of ditches.
And then you were tal king about a center
pi vot that | think was designed for what was it, 3.2
or --
A 3 cfs.
Q 3, yeah.
Where is at that center pivot agai n?
A It would be out right here.
Q Ckay. Is -- is that a bluff? | -- since
don't know t he topography.
A This is a big sagebrush ridge.
Q Yeabh.

A d aciers died right here and pushed that

mound up.

Q Ckay. So that -- that center pivot is up
above?

A Wll, it's -- it's -- | nmean so this ditch

here i s grade.

Q Ckay.
A The water doesn't flow uphill. So it's
downhill fromall of this.

MR HARRIS: So maybe if | can interject.
Googl e Earth does have an approxi nat e
f oot age.

THE HEARING OFFICER:  No, | don't want it.
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MR, HARRI S: Ckay.

THE HEARING CFFICER | don't need it. Go
ahead.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): I'mjust trying to
under st and where that center pivot is.

It's above the channel of Lee Creek down
there; is that right?

A Well, so there's a ridge. There's this
ridge in between us.

Q Uh- huh.

A And Stroud woul d be over here.

Q Ckay. So then backing out again, you go
into Uncle Cal's yard where the headgate is.

That's where Stroud Creek, it sounds |iKke,
ends at his place, because you're not saying it's
channelized? |It's going into the ditch systenf

A Yeah.

Q And then sone of it's then going into the
wllows and then it's getting recaptured, and it's then
bei ng brought down to the center pivot on the right
there, and there's a divide between the center pivot,
which is on the east side, and the -- the Lee
Creek/ Stroud Creek/Left Fork Lee Creek drainage on the
west side?

A. Yes.
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Q Ckay.

A Yeah.

Q So then water that's going into this ditch
system it otherw se should have gone into Stroud

Creek, but there isn't a Stroud Creek to put it in to?

A That's pretty accurate.

Q Ckay.

A W' ve been -- we've been turning | oose
the -- | take between 50 and 80 inches out of the west
spri ngs.

Q Ckay.

A That's what | was told was m ne.

Q Ckay. And I'm-- you know, |I'mjust trying
to understand kind of the lay of the land. And it was
really hel pful to understand where all of the ditches
are | ocated.

So then where do you think Stroud Creek --
so it -- we knowthat it's not -- it stops, it seens
li ke, at Uncle Cal's place.

And then where do you think Stroud Creek

pi cks back up agai n?

A So if you want to -- if you want to zoomin
right here, I think -- | think Stroud Creek went a
mllion different directions. | think that at sone
point intine there's a -- there's a ridge right here
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t hat was dug through by hand and the dirt's piled up.

You can find -- the only place that you can find open,
exposed gravels, like a -- like a historical stream
channel, is here.

And then could you scroll that way.
Ri ght here.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: I --
THE WTNESS: And right through there. And then
you can find an irrigation ditch
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  |' m struggling because --
because this -- you know - -
THE WTNESS: It's hypotheti cal
MR HARRI S: Ckay.
THE HEARI NG OFFICER:  Well, just the map is --
is going to be very difficult to track through all of
your questions, M. Harris, and through these

Cross-exam nati on questions. There's a lot of "here's"

and "there's.” I|I'mnot so interested in -- in pointing
at the map. | just want to hear how things exist on
t he ground.

MR HARRI S: Ckay.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER And so --

MR. BROMLEY: And so that --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah.

MR. BROMLEY: M. Hearing Oficer, that's what |
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was trying --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER G eat.

MR. BROMLEY: -- to do, then, with Jordan, is to
get the explanation, that Stroud Creek shows up at
74-369 at the diversion at Uncle Cal's place. And then
t he channel of it --

THE W TNESS: The historical channel --

MR. BROMLEY: W don't -- he doesn't -- it then
ends up in ditches, and we don't know where the
hi stori cal channel was.

And then ny question to Jordan was, where
do you think the historical -- where do you think the
channel picks back up? Because we went through a
series of questions from M. Harris about --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  And rat her than show ng ne
on the nap, have a seat.

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  And just answer the
question. Yeah.

MR. BROMLEY: And -- so the map, | was trying to
get nmy own brain oriented --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Uh- huh.

MR. BROWMLEY: -- because we've been noving
around so nuch to help ne --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Ri ght.
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MR. BROMLEY: -- with ny question.

Q So, Jordan, at Uncle Cal's place, Stroud
Creek is there, and then it goes into your headgate.

Stroud Creek, then, isn't on your place for
some | ength, because it's getting --

A Yeah.

Q -- channelized into ditches, it goes into
the willows with nore ditches picking it back up,
putting it back into your -- the main ditches --

Uh- huh.

-- is that right?

> O >

Yes.

Q Ckay. And then -- and then eventually it
makes its way to your center pivot, which is --

A That's our -- that's our water rights that
go there.

Q Yeah. And again, I'mjust trying to
under stand the system

So then it ends up in the center pivot,

which is down there where the -- let's just |oosely
call it the confluence area, where the culverts are?
It's over there to the east?

A To the west.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  To the west.

MR. BROM_.EY: "' m sorry.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Uh- huh.
Q (BY MR BROWMLEY): GCkay. So that hel ps.
The Stroud Creek channel, then, is where?

A The Stroud Creek channel picks --
there's -- there's a valley -- | nean the -- the grade,
wat er seeks the | owest place. That's where it's going
to go. And so bel ow the Bohannan D tch.

OPERATOR: Hell o, there doesn't appear to be any
activity in this neeting. |If you would like to stay on
the line until others join, please press 1.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Candi ce nust have si gned

of f .
We're good. CGo ahead.
THE W TNESS: Anyway, bel ow t he Bohannan Ditch,
there's -- the ridges kind of beconme nore apparent and

the water is in the | owest place there.

Q (BY MR BROWLEY): Ckay. So you' ve wal ked
downstreaminto the -- into the Lee Creek drai nage, and
you' ve foll owed sonething that you think is Stroud
Creek or Left Fork of Lee Creek; right?

A Yes.

Q And that's your opinion?

A It's what it is. | neanit's -- it's where
the water goes. It's what -- | nean | -- | had to say

| agree with Bruce. | agree with Cndy. | agree with
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Merritt. | agree with everybody who -- who has seen
it, it cones out below their point of diversion.
Q And you renenber the maps we' ve | ooked at?

A Ch, yeah.
Q Ckay. And so again, it's -- your opinion

is that this channel of Stroud Creek/Left Fork Lee

Creek --

A You wal k with your walk -- | nean if you
want to -- if you want to take your boots off, you'll
stay in water the whole way down. |[If you clinb out and

go to the west, you wal k across dirt the whol e way
dowmn. So it's -- it's Stroud water.

Q Ckay. And again, that's -- this is your
opi ni on, because we've | ooked at maps. Maps have their
own opinions. M. King' s given his opinion.

This is your opinion; right?

A It's -- it's the way it is.

Q Ckay.

A It's not ny opinion. 1It's the way it is.
Q Ckay. Wll, it's your observation?

A Sur e.

Q Ckay. You weren't alive when this
litigation between the Kauers and the Whittakers
happened; right?

A No.
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Q

Ckay. So again, your -- your statenents

about this 1956 | daho Suprenme Court case, those are

al so just your opinion?

A

adm ni strati

Q

A
Q
A
Q

They're ny opini on based off of the

on that | saw ny entire life.

But again, you're 42, so you were born --
Yeah.

-- what, in the late '70s?

1978, yep. Yeah.

And water is really inportant in this

state; right?

A
Q
l'i febl ood?

A.
Q

right?
A
Q

poi nt ed out,

It's extrenely inportant.

Yeah. In the Western United States it's

Uh- huh.
It's hard to do nuch w t hout water.

Water rights are really inportant, too;

Yep.

And so the McConnells, you know, as you

you went back to the G een Book, there was

one poi nt of diversion.

McConnells are in a transfer proceeding;

you understand that?

A

Yes.
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Q And they're pursuing their |legal renedy to
add a point of diversion?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And for sonmething that -- and again
it's the testinony was, and the opinion is that
sonet hi ng got m ssed, and they're pursuing their | egal
opti ons today to nmake a change.

You understand that?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So this 74-157 right, since water is
inmportant -- | don't know if you recall the testinony,
but the docunents have consistently shown throughout
hi story into the SRBA that these were springs tributary
to Lee Creek.

MR HARRIS: |1'mgoing to object. That
m sstates what is in the Lenmhi adjudication docunents.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. So I'Il -- 1"Il rephrase
that, Rob. That's fair.

Q In the Snake Ri ver Basin Adjudication, this
74-157 was clained as Lee Creek -- I'msorry, springs
tributary to Lee Creek; correct?

A That's the way it appears on the paper.

Q Yeah. And we | ooked at a notice of error
formthat was signed by Janes Wiittaker agreeing with

t hat .
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Do you renenber that?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. And then the SRBA decree cones out,

and it explains springs tributary to -- to Lee Creek?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. So then -- | nmean | fully appreciate
t hat you understood that sonething was -- sonet hi ng was

wong wth 74-157, because if you turn to Exhibit 15 in

t he white book that you've got there.

A Wel |, appreciating that sonethi ng was w ong
withit, I -- 1 don't know that | agree with that
st at enent .

Q Ckay. So let's -- let's | ook at
Exhi bi t 15.

A | gotcha.

Q Yeah. Can you turn to Exhibit 15, because
' mnot sure that you're --

A |'ve got it right here.

Q Yeah. That's not 15.

A 1-5. [Unintelligible.]

Q Yeah, there you go. Exhibit 15 at the
bottom ri ght .

A Yeah. Sorry.

Q Ckay. So do you know what this docunent
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A No.
Q Ckay. I'll represent to you it's a water

right transfer receipt at the top corner.

Transfer No. 84508?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. And it was filed by Janes Wi ttaker

and Paul a Whi ttaker?

A She' s deceased.

Q Ckay. Who's Janes Wi ttaker?

A That's himright there.

Q Ckay. Your father?

A Yes.

Q So let's turn to the second page, then, of
this application for transfer.

And do you see a line A at the bottom
"Pur pose of Transfer"?
A Yes.

Q And line 1, and then there's a box that's

checked "Other," correct, "Tributary"? Do you see
t hat ?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And this -- this then has to do
wth -- if you flip to the page 3, Water Ri ght 74-157,

do you see that up there at the top?

A. Yes.
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Q Ckay. And so then back on page 2, if you
flip back one page to "Purpose of Transfer," see the
line 3, "Describe your proposal in narrative form'?

A Yes.

Q And what is it -- what's witten in the
underline part of that?

A "The transfer proposes to update the
identified tributary. This water right utilizes water
fromthe identified source of springs to extinction.
The source springs does not actually flowinto a
tributary water stream No change to the point of
di version rate, diversion rate, stock water anount, or
irrigation acres wll be changing with this transfer.™

Q Ckay. So what that -- you know, what do
you think that's saying in -- in plain English?

A Well, what it's saying is that we didn't
feel like the tributary bel onged on there. But what
t he conclusion that we reached is, |ike G ndy said,
where your water right is or your point of diversion is
is where you're -- where you're allowed to divert.

And so we felt like with -- there was --
with Bruce McConnell's single point of diversion, he
didn't have the ability to call for this water right.
So in effect, it was correct.

Q Ckay. So McConnell has senior priority
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dat es, 18837

A. No.
Q Some of his water rights; correct?
A Vel l, he can. But it's a futile call to

call for this water, because he can't get it, so the
wat er ri ght was protected.

Q Ckay. And | recall Ms. Yenter saying that
a futile call then is -- you know, you nmentioned futile
call is a case-by-case determni nation?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. So then this transfer, if you'd turn
to Exhibit 18, was then w t hdrawn?

A Yes.

Q Is that what that says, "Wthdrawal of a
transfer"?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And do you know why it was
W t hdr awn?

A Because -- because it was a futile call,
and we felt like -- felt like the water right worked
the way it was, the way it was intended to work. Let
t he historical adm nistration stand.

Q Ckay. But for sone reason you thought you
needed to file a transfer, and then you changed your

mnd; is that -- is that accurate?
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A Yeah.

Q Ckay. And you understand that the
McConnells are here trying to pursue the legally
correct thing?

MR HARRIS: |I'mgoing to -- I'mgoing to
object. | think we've gone through this. [It's been
asked and answered before, this question about
McConnel I s going through the transfer process. | think
he's answered why he withdrewit. So |I think we've
gone through this before. That's ny objection.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER°  Okay. Your question was
the McConnells are seeking to add a second poi nt of
di ver si on?

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): So your understanding is
there's a legal way to pursue corrections to water

rights, and a transfer is one of those ways; correct?

A Yes.
Q Ckay.
A But for a transfer to proceed, there can't

be infjury to water rights.

Q And - -

A And you guys injure ny water right with
this transfer. So you put sone conditions in there, we
all nove forward, and we go on with life.

Q Ckay. And that -- Jordan, | conpletely
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understand that. And that's why we're in a contested
case proceedi ng, and we have a Hearing O ficer who's
goi ng to make that determ nati on, because everybody in

here has their own opinion, otherwi se we wouldn't be in

her e.
That Kauer Ditch point of diversion, that
was -- it's further up -- up drainage --
A Yeah.
Q -- right?
A Yeah, it's up -- it actually is on

Tonthak' s ground.

Q But | don't believe we've seen that point
of diversion described on any of the water rights; is
t hat true?

A That's true. It was theirs. As far as --
as far as we were concerned, we -- we -- we noved
t hrough the SRBA process as best as we could. W have
an awful |lot of water rights to wade through. And so
long as things like -- like they were represented to us
wth the SRBA, so long as the adm ni stration stayed the
sane as they were. W weren't going to ness with
McConnel | because we didn't want MConnells' water. W
want ed hi mto have his.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. GCkay. Nothing further.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.
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Any questions for this w tness,
M. Manwari ng?
MR, MANWARI NG  Yes.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Go ahead.
MR, MANWARI NG  Thank you.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR MANWARI NG
Q Back on Exhibits 159, 160, and 161

A Ckay.

Q | just want to make sure we're clear
because I'm still sonewhat fuzzy here. Not personally,
but | coul d be.

Exhi bit 159 is a headgate?
A Correct.
Q s that headgate in Stroud Streamor is
that in your ditch?
A It'"s in the Stroud Stream
Prior to the irrigation system though, we
had | ockabl e headgates, as C ndy asked for. So we'l|l
be putting one in here in the next week or so.
Q So 159 is a headgate but that's in the
stream channel ?
A Yeah. Prior to 2015 all the water that

cane down there just went to us, because the Kauer
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Ditch was in existence. So the water that didn't go to
us either went to Cal or it went to McConnell or it
went to Shanna, Tonthak.

Q Ckay. | just want to nake sure where that

headgate [unintelligible].

A Yes.

Q Exhi bit 160, | think you said, is the weir?

A Yes.

Q And is that the same as 1617

A No. This weir -- this weir's on Stroud
Di tch.

Q When you say "this" one, which one do you
nmean?

A The 160.

Q 160 is on the Stroud Ditch?

A Yes, it's our upper -- upper point of
di ver si on.

Q And when you say "Stroud Ditch,"” is that
the ditch you nmade, or is that the Stroud Stream
channel ?

A This is a ditch we nmade, a ditch sonebody
made a long tine ago.

Q Ckay. And that's the neasuring device for
that ditch?

A. Yeah.

000343




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 342
Audio Transcription

Q Ckay. 161 is what?

A 161 is an open 2-foot G ppoletti right now.
And it -- it neasures accurately as an open G ppoletti.
But what |'ve done to try and alleviate the situation
earlier was | -- there's bolt holes in it where you
could put a plate down to where it essentially wll
only allow close to 80 inches through it, and then it
forced the rest of the water out of our ditch down
t owar ds McConnel |

Q So where is 161 | ocated?

A 161 is located -- you know that little
round -- funny, little, round thing that they pointed
out up there? It's just upstreamfromthat.

Q Oh, okay. Your funny, little, round thing
was a [unintelligible] --

A It's an i ntake screen for -- for the
pipeline that -- there's a little punp there that
pressurizes the spring water into the pivot system

Q And | think you said that was a punp ri ght
t here?

A Yeah. The round thing's a screen, and then
there's a punp just beside it.

Q Ckay. Al right. Now, you've been talking
about wal king that Stroud channel, particularly from at

| east where the cul verts are?
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A Yes. That's where the nost peopl e have
wal ked it.

Q And it's your testinony that you can stay
within a clear channel when you' re wal king the Stroud
St r eant?

A Yes. Yes. Sorry.

Q And that -- that Stroud channel is
unable -- is separated fromthe Lee Creek channel by a
rise in elevation of sone kind?

A Yeah, there's -- there's a pretty

substantial ridge between the two of them nost of the

way down.

Q What about upstreamfromthe cul verts, is
there still an el evation between thenf

A Yeah. The elevation actually gets greater

when you go upstreamfromthe culverts. You can see on

the map, if you want to look. But it doesn't really

matter to nme, that there's a -- there's an actual
ridge --

Q You can just tell ne.

A -- there that cones kind of down Johnson's

fence line and ours that separates it, separates it.
And there's -- hasn't been -- hasn't been any
nodi fication in any tine.

Q And woul d that same ridge el evati on exi st
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on past where you' ve been tal king about, the east
springs and the west springs?

A Yes. Yeah, it's what separates Stroud
Creek from Porcupi ne.

Q Ckay. So even if you have ditches around
your springs area, you still have an el evation between
that Stroud tributary channel and what woul d be over on
Lee Creek?

A Yeah, it didn't -- it didn't -- it didn't
flowto Lee Creek up -- upstream It's -- it's too big
of a ridge. You're...

Q You were bei ng asked about where the Stroud
channel was on Cal's pl ace.

| just want you to -- can you explain, if
you know, whether that historic streamchannel is still
vi si bl e sonewhere on that area, or it's if it's just in
t he ditch?

A There's -- there's an historic -- there's
gravel that | ooks |ike a hundred-year-old stream
channel kind of towards the far right. And it -- it --
tone it actually |l ooks like at one tine -- at sone
point in history Stroud's been tributary to Big Ei ght
Mle, instead of Lee Creek. But it hasn't been -- |
don't know.

Q Is there a channel al ong that right-hand
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side of those trees you can see depicted on this map?

A No, there's not. That's a fence |ine that
you see right there, and that's uphill in elevation.

Q [Unintelligible.]

A So this -- thisis a-- this is a jack
fence right here, and this is an old wire fence that
the trees have all grown into right here. And this is
where the water goes right now.

Q Ckay. And part of the Stroud Creek channe
as it goes through | think it's Rosalie's place --

A Yes.

Q -- is there an old overgrown weir dam or

sonething in there that causes an obstruction of fl ow?

A There's lots of stuff in there that pushes
it out of the -- pushes it all over.
Q Is that part of the problemthat you're

facing when you're trying to re-collect the flow from
Stroud Creek?

A That's -- that's -- that's one of the nmain
I ssues.

Q If there's a heavy runoff year or a heavy
downpour, let's say, how does the water flow all the
way down through Stroud? Does it have to go through
headgat es or --

A Yeah, if there's -- so prior to -- prior to
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"16 if there was any kind of heavy flow, it would go on
around into our place and probably bl ow out the ditch
like it did again this year. But there -- there's not
anyt hing that would naeke it over the dam w t hout --

W t hout opening that -- without -- w thout having the

headgat e open.

Q And from what you were able to determ ne,
t hink you said even this |last year, you can't |ike
put -- | think you said drop sone Kool-Aid in the

[unintelligible] --

A Yeah, you -- you --

Q -- Stroud and put it in Lee Creek?
A -- could put a bunch of dye in. You could
put whatever you want in it. [It's not going to -- it's

not going to go over above their point of diversion.
That's the sinplest way, if you want to see it.

Q You were asked by M. Bronl ey whether it
was your opinion that the Stroud Creek channel goes
downstream from t he upper diversion point at
McConnel | s.

Do you renmenber those questions?

A Yeah. Yeah.

Q Were you just rendering an opinion, or were
you stating your observation?

A | was stating -- stating an observati on,
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stating -- stating the way it is. [|'mnot an attorney.
It's black or it's white. The water -- that's where
t he wat er goes.

MR MANWARING | don't think |I have any other
questi ons, Jordan.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

EXAM NATI ON
BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER
Q M. Wiittaker, would you turn to 154. This
is that engi neer's map.
So, you know, we're -- at this main
di versi on damthat you have on Stroud Creek, you say
that that -- that the water passing the dam that you
aren't diverting, that the water passing the damis a
di tch.
What nmakes you say that that's a ditch?
A Because below it, it's the Bohannan Ditch.
And so they -- they cut what seeped out of the daminto
a ditch. And then there was another ditch that cane
over, and it forced it all out the Charlie Bohannan
Di tch.
Q In this -- and you al nost have to have
maybe a little bit of a nmagnifying glass --

A. I n the Bohannan D tch.
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Q -- can you identify, then, that |ocation of
your Stroud Creek diversion on this map?
A G ve ne just a second. The actual thing is

a lot bigger to | ook at.

Q Yeah, |'msure that the original is a |ot
bi gger.

A So what was the question?

MR HARRIS: Here's --

Q (BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER): Can you
identify --

MR HARRI S: Do you want ne to --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Yeah, that's fine, if you
want to zoom i n.

Q Can you identify on this map your point of

di version on Stroud Creek --

A Ckay.
Q -- that main ditch that takes off.
A Do you see it says "John Wi ttaker house"?
Q Yep.
A Ckay. | believe that little letter "e"
t here.
Q So at least on this map, M. Wittaker,
that -- that channel headed off or that continues on to
the west on that -- sorry, on the west side, is

identified as Lee Creek?
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A So this was taken froma -- it wasn't just
hand drawn. It was -- it was taken from an aerial.
And so | think if you'd lay that on the USGS |line, it
woul d probably -- probably line up with what that nmap
said and doesn't reflect what was actually there.

Q But at least on this map, the -- the Left
Fork of Lee Creek channel continued on past the -- the
Floyd J. Wiittaker Ditch?

A Yeah, according to the nmap.

Q Ckay. There was sone natural channel that
conti nued?

A Yeah.

Q And it follows roughly that same direction
of the channel that's there; is that true?

A | -- yeah.

Q Ckay. GCkay. And at least on this 1954
map, it then winds to the north until there's sone
intersection here with the -- the Floyd J. Wittaker
Ditch, west springs ditch, | guess what we've been
calling west springs ditch --

A Uh- huh.

Q -- and that there's sone intersection
t here.

You say recently that as it crosses --

before it hits that west spring ditch that the water
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fans out, and it's not in a single channel, | guess --

A No, it's not.

Q -- headed to the north, it fans out?

But it's still then captured by this --

A West springs.

Q -- west springs ditch and pulled over into
the common ditch system as you described, connects
wth the water comng fromthe south, which is call ed
east springs ditch, and all that flows together again
at this downstream | ocati on?

A Uh- huh.

Q Are you -- does -- we've |ooked at water

rights earlier, nuch earlier today for Rosalie

Eri csson.
A Uh- huh.
Q Is that -- those water rights are taken out

upstream though?

A Yeah.

Q They don't share a point of diversion --
A No.

Q -- down here with you?

A No, they're [unintelligible].

Q Is there a water right -- are you famliar
wth a water right that would all ow di versi on opposite

you into that --
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A No.
Q -- other side?
A No.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  There's not a water right
t here.
Ckay. GCkay. M. Harris, that's the
question | had.
But anyt hi ng el se?
MR HARRIS: | don't have any foll ow up.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Anyt hi ng el se?
MR. BROMLEY: Not hi ng.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Okay. Thank you,
M. Wittaker.
MR HARRIS: Hold on. 1'mzoomng in and out.
That's to try to hypnotize you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER Maki ng us di zzy.
MR, BROMLEY: You're doing a good job.
(Recess.)
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay. W're back on the
record.
M. Harris, you can call your next w tness.
MR HARRIS: W'IIl call Larry Borstel nan.
111
Iy
Iy
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LARRY BORSTELNAN
havi ng been called as a wtness by Protestants Janes
Whi tt aker and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, was duly sworn

and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE M. Borstel man, do you
solemly affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give
is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth?

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER. Ckay. Have a seat.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HARRI S:

Q Larry, could you pl ease state your ful
name and address for the record.

A It's Larry Borstel man. Box 70 -- or
376 Morgan Lane, Pocatell o, |daho.

Q And I'"'mgoing to start off by asking you,
how ol d are you?

A I wll be 77 May 2nd.

Q And you' ve been here part of the day at
t hi s hearing discussing areas around Stroud Creek.

Are you famliar with the Stroud Creek

area?
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A Yes, | am | was raised in that area ever
since | was born. And | left there shortly after |
graduat ed from hi gh school .

Q And what year did you graduate from hi gh

school ?

A In 1962.

Q Ckay. And who was your father?

A Harry Bor st el man.

Q Ckay. And are you related to the Wittaker
famly?

A My not her was a Wi ttaker.

Q Ckay. And so did you irrigate the Stroud

Creek -- in the Stroud Creek area that we've talked
about ?

A Yes. | worked -- | worked in that area,
and fromtine to time growing up, | did irrigate, yes.

Q Ckay. Have you been on the Wi ttaker
property that we've tal ked about today where these

springs are |l ocated and further down where Stroud --

A Yes.

Q -- and Lee Creeks are?

A Yes.

Q For what reasons were you on the property?
A Well, as a kid you like to go and do things

and you roam around. And being raised out in the
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country |li ke we was, why | roaned around through
those -- through that area pretty much all ny life
gr owi ng up.
Q Ckay. So we've a couple tines tal ked about
a place where there's sone -- sone culverts down cl ose
to the Lee Creek channel and the Stroud Creek channel.
Are -- do you know the area that |'m

referring to?

A. Not -- that's one area that | couldn't
recol | ect.
Q Ckay. But as far as down in that | ower

area of Lee Creek and Stroud Creek, there's been
testinmony from Jordan Wittaker about what is down
t here.

Did you hear that testinony here today?
Yeah.

Are you famliar with that area?

> O >

Yes. And |I'msure I'mfamliar with it.
Q Ckay. |Is there anything in his testinony
t hat you would di sagree with with how he descri bed
t hose channels and the -- the elevation change in
bet ween t hose two?
A The way that Jordan described the
el evati ons down through there | pretty nmuch agreed with

his testinony.
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Q Ckay. And that's because you' ve -- you've
been on that property?

A Yeah, because | -- | was raised there, and
| spent a lot of tinme there and listened to ny father
because he irrigated the place for years and years and
years.

Q When you say your father irrigated the
pl ace, he irrigated the Wi ttaker property?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And you hel ped himw th that work?

>

Fromtine to tinme.
MR HARRIS: Okay. | have no further questions.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE  Okay. M. Broni ey?

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROWLEY:
Q H , M. Borstel man.
A H .
Q Chris Bronl ey, representing the McConnells.
So M. Harris just asked you if you had heard Jordan's

t esti nony.
And you said you had?
A Yeah.
Q What was -- what was Jordan explaining in

t hat area down there bel ow the cul verts?
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A Well, he -- he was pretty nmuch -- in the
way | recollect it and the way | conprehend it, is that
he was expl ai ning how the lay of the | and goes through
t hat area.

Q Ckay. And | recall Jordan tal ki ng about
sone el evati on changes.

Do you renenber that?

A Yes. The -- the only thing that | can
maybe say about that that |'m-- I'msure of is that |
know how Stroud Creek ran down through there for al
the tinme that | was -- lived there and | was bei ng
raised there. And it's pretty nmuch the same as what
t hey described it to be.

Q Ckay. So you were saying you agree with --
w th Jordan.

A Yeah.

Q And what |I'm wondering is, so he was
t al ki ng about sone el evation differences that was down
inthat -- | think Merritt Udy called it the jungle
nmess down in there.

What ki nd of el evati on changes do you

recall? You know, was it |like 10 feet in el evation
difference? a foot? Do you -- do you know?
A. Well, there's -- I"'m-- | work in

excavation so | dig a |ot of basenments, so | shoot
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grade a lot. So | understand what grade is. And I
understand you can't make water run uphill and it don't
make nmuch -- it doesn't take nuch of a hill to prevent
water fromrunning that direction. And if you could
make water run uphill, you' d be -- you' d have a
| ucrative business.

Q You could turn water into gold; right?

A That's right.

Q Yeah. So yeah, it doesn't take nuch grade,

t hen, for water to nove one way or the other?

A Yeah.

Q You've -- do you recall being down in that
area?

A Yeah. | nean |'ve been in that whol e area.

Q So when you' ve been down in that area, you

know, do you have to | ook up at sone sort of elevation,
or is it all pretty nuch kind of in front of you?

A Wll, it's -- in sone places the el evation
would -- you'd probably have to get an instrunent out
to shoot the elevation to see what the difference is.

And | work with that all the tine. And
soneti nes you don't know. And unless you get the
i nstrunents out and you shoot the elevation, oh, that's
2 feet higher than where we're at right now, you know.

Q Right. So yeah, nmaybe in the neigh- -- so
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we're not tal king about tens of --

A Yeah, we're not tal king about gigantic
fields. In sone of the places we are, but naybe sone
pl aces. But the way -- the way the channel cone

t hrough there when | was a kid, it's always been that
way as |long as | can renenber.

Q Ckay. And since you're tal king about, you
know, water is finding the path of |east resistance.

And then in high-flow events, in your
experi ence, have you seen water nove rock around,
sedi nrent around?

A It's possible that it could, but it takes
a -- it usually takes nore than the usual anount of
water to do that.

Q And that area down there it's -- there's --
| ooki ng at the photos, it seens |like there's a |lot of
veget ati on.

I s that what you renenber?
Yes.

Ckay.

> O >

Yeah.

Q Have -- did you ever walk the -- the Stroud
Creek channel fromthe Wi ttaker place fromwhere Cal's
di version was for the 369 right all the way down?

A Down toward the -- to the north, you nean?
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Q Yeah. Downstreaminto Lee Creek wal ki ng

t he channel .

A | -- I'"ve been through that whol e area,
yeah.

Q Ckay. So that was sone -- was that
sonetine in the 19 -- you said you graduated from hi gh

school I n 19627

A Yeah.

Q So that woul d have been sonetine in the
1950s?

A Yes, it would -- it would have been

probably from around 1950 to ' 62.

Q Ckay. So --

A We noved there in 1948. And I think | was
4 years old when we noved t here.

Q Ckay. This -- this is Exhibit 154.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER It's open right in front
of you.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): Yeah, there you go.
It's a colorful map.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  That nap.

Q (BY MR BROWLEY): Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Yep.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): So you were then -- you

know, you graduated high school in 1962. So then you
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were alive wth good recoll ection when this map was
made in 1954, is ny understandi ng.

So 1954, how old were you?

A In "54 1 would have been 10.

Q Ckay. And so you had good recoll ections
fromthe tine you were 10, would be ny guess?

A Yeah, | can renenber a | ot of things. But
there's sone things, you know, that |I'msure we all
can't renmenber.

Q Yeah. So this map shows this Left Fork of
Lee Creek that sort of goes through section 31 on
al nost a 45-degree angl e.

Do you see that in the bottom|l eft-hand
corner? And then it nakes a bit of a jog in that upper
corner of section 31, and then it follows its way down
into section 30. And that's all listed as Left Fork of

Lee Creek. Do you see that on the map?

A Yes.

Q Do you -- is that your recollection, that
the Lee Creek went -- and it's also called Stroud
Creek --

A vell --

Q -- that it went through the Wittaker place

and then on down?

A Yes, | -- that's one thing |'ve been a
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little confused about all day is |I knew that as Stroud
Creek. | never knew it as Lee Creek.

Q All right. And so on the map it's Left
Fork of Lee Creek.

A Yeah.

Q But you knew it as Stroud Creek?

A | knew it as Stroud Creek.

Q Ckay. And so you would have foll owed,
t hen, that on down?

A Yeah.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. | don't have anything

further. Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.
M. Manwari ng, go ahead.
MR, MANWARI NG  Thank you.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR NANWARI NG

Q Larry, back in the day were there any
headgates on Lee Creek or Stroud Creek that you
renmenber seei ng?

A l"mtrying to renenber. There was -- there
was probably a couple where water -- water would be
diverted different directions for irrigation purposes.

Q And do you recall today if those were on
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Lee Creek or Stroud Creek?

A Well, | knew it as Stroud Creek.
Q And there were sone headgates on Stroud
Cr eek?
A Yeah.
Q Do you recall any on Lee Creek?
A | was not -- | -- like | nentioned earlier,

| was not famliar wth that as being Lee Creek when |
grew up, because it was always called Stroud Creek.
And so | only knew it as Stroud Creek.

Q Ch, okay. So when you're | ooking at
Exhi bit 154 that you have in front of you, where --
that portion that is in the square nmarked "30" in a
circle, do you see that "30" that's been circled in the
upper | eft-hand area?

A Ckay.

Q Ri ght below that "30" is sonme little
streanms that have been designated. And one says "Ri ght
Fork of Lee Creek"” -- they both say "Right Fork of Lee
Creek," then it goes down to "Right Fork of Lee Creek.™
So we got two Right Forks of Lee Creek, or three.

A Ckay.

Q Is that Stroud Creek to you, or is that Lee
Cr eek?

A That's Lee Creek.
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Q That's Lee Creek?

A Yeah.

Q And did you see any headgates on Lee Creek,
on that part of Lee Creek?

A On that part of Lee Creek?

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Uh- huh.

THE W TNESS: No.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : Ckay. And the part
that's the Left Fork of Lee Creek that's shown on that
sanme Exhibit 154, do you see that conming up there? |Is
that Left Fork, is that what you knew as Stroud Creek?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And is it on Stroud Creek that you
saw sone headgat es?

A Well, there -- there was -- | know there

was a headgate where ny dad could divert irrigation

water, but |I'mnot sure just where it went --
Q Ckay.
A -- at the tine.
Q Was that on what -- Wittakers' property?
A Yeah.
Q Ckay. And were there sone coll ection

ditches that you see showing on this Exhibit 154, if
you look? 1'd have to point it out probably.

Could I go and point that out?
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Oh, yeah. Unh-huh. Yeah,
that's fine.
MR. MANWARI NG  Feel s good to stand and wal k.
Q Larry, what |I'mlooking at is on
Exhi bit 154, right below this section |ine between

section 30 and section 31, there's a red section |ine

t here.
Ckay?
A Ckay.
Q And to the -- in the upper right-hand

corner, you see a little ditch right there --

A Uh- huh.

Q -- Wth sone springs.

Do you see that?

A Yeah.

Q And do you recall seeing that ditch when
you were a youngster?

A Yes, | do.

Q So that's been there awhil e?

A Yes, it has.

Q And where was your dad's headgate on this
Stroud Creek? Do you renenber, roughly?

A Fromthis illustration, it's pretty hard
for ne to say where that woul d have been.

Q Ckay.

000366




© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N RN NN NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

Recorded Hearing - Vol. | - April 21, 2021 365
Audio Transcription

A It would have to be nore -- nore detail.

Q There would have to be nore detail than
what you can see?

A Yeah.

Q So this Left Fork of Lee Creek that |I'm
poi nting to that courses from section 30 upstream down
t hrough 31, kind of runs at a 45 through 31, is that
what you knew as Stroud Creek?

A Vell, what | knew as Stroud Creek is it
didn't go here. It went here in this --

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  That's going to be pretty
i mportant, M. Borstelnnan. Wen you're saying "from
here to here,"” what do you -- what do you nean? G ve

us sone references on the nap.

THE WTNESS: Well, let nme see if |I can find one
that I'mfamliar wth.
Yeah. Is -- is this an irrigation ditch
her e?
Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : You know, | have no
cl ue.

What he's pointing at is a little channel,
it looks like, that's right there with the No. 11 and
south by No. 28. It does say "ditch" on it.

A Is this Floyd Wi ttaker --
Q FIl oyd Whittaker Ditch?
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A Yeah, Floyd Wi ttaker D tch.

MR MANWARING So he's pointing to this portion
ri ght here.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  Ckay. All right. That's
t hat common ditch after all of this -- the west and the
east springs ditch cone together, there's a common
ditch that wi nds out through section 29. Ckay.

Q (BY MR MANWARI NG : That's what you recal
as the Stroud Creek?

A Yeah, uh-huh. Well, yeah, that's where --
that's where the water that canme out of Stroud ran.

Q Ckay. Ckay.

A From ny recoll ection.

Q Do you renenber having any high water years
when you were young, watching the runoff cone heavily
down t hrough those two creeks, Stroud Creek and Lee
Creek? Do you renmenber seeing any heavy water running
t hr ough t here?

A Well, as a kid you don't pay a | ot of
attention to sone of -- sonme of that sort of thing.

And 1'Il admt that | didn't pay attention to a | ot of
the details about that, because as a kid it doesn't

af fect you personally, so you just don't pay a | ot of
attention to it.

Q You're just having fun. | can appreciate
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that. My wife thinks I still am

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Soneti nes.

MR MANVWARING | don't think I have any further
questi ons.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:  Ckay.

EXAM NATI ON
BY THE HEARI NG OFFI CER:
Q M. Borstelman, as you |look at this nmap, is
t here anything that junps out to you about this nmap
that is inconsistent with your recoll ections?
A The one -- the one part that's -- that is
i nconsistent with ny recollection is is the fact that

the Left Fork of Lee Creek | knew it as Stroud Creek.

Q So a nam ng i ssue --

A Yeah.

Q -- that you would call it Stroud Creek?

A The main issue is is that | wasn't famliar
wi th that

Q Ckay. Anything el se?
A And then -- then where it shows that Lee

Creek runs up in section 30, see, | was not famliar
wth -- with it ever running in that there.
Q Can you -- can you direct ne to where you

think there's an issue in that section 307?
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A Wll, it's -- it's probably -- the way I
recollect it is that it's come down through there, and
it always went -- this is a hill; right? I'mkind of
confused about -- but as far as | recollect, it always
went this other direction.

Q So et the record refl ect that
M. Borstelnan is saying that his recollection is that
Stroud Creek conti nued down what is highlighted kind of
in brown and identified as the Floyd J. Whittaker Ditch
that term nates in section 29 just below the words
"divide ridge." So that's -- that is what he says is
his recollection, that's where Stroud Creek went.

Ckay. Anything else that you see that --
besi des -- besides those two things that are
i nconsi stent with your nenories?

A Well, the one thing that | -- stands out
with ne is that that water was al ways used for
irrigation purposes, because ny dad irrigated.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE  (Okay. Gkay. Very good.

M. Harris, anything nore?

MR HARRI S: No.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Thank you for your tine.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

MR HARRIS: Gkay. Call Janes Wi ttaker.
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THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE Great. The faster you

tal k, the sooner we get to eat dinner.

JAMES VH TTAKER
havi ng been called as a witness by Protestants Janes
Whittaker and Whittaker Two Dot Ranch, was duly sworn

and testified as foll ows:

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  So, M. Whittaker, do you
solemnly affirmthat the testinony you' re about to give
is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the
truth?

THE W TNESS: | do.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE (Okay. Have a seat.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HARRI S:

Q Janes, could you please state your nanme and
address for the record.

A James Wi ttaker, P.QO Box 240, Leadore,
83464.

Q And | ask everybody this, so I'"'mgoing to
ask you: How old are you?

A 75, al nost 76.

Q Ckay. So what year were you born?
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A '45.

Q Ckay. And was your father Floyd Wittaker
that was involved in the --

A Yes.

Q wll, let ne -- sorry --

-- in the Wittaker versus Kauer

litigation?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And are you generally famliar with
the Stroud Creek property that we've been tal ki ng about

all day today?

A Yes.
Q Explain to us how you're famliar with it.
A |'ve spent ny lifetine there. And for the

| ast 45 years, why |'ve ran the place and the ranch and
everything until 2019 when |I'min the process of
turning the ranch over to ny two boys.

So I noved the cattle, of course all the
water. Why you got to be on top and know and show
different ones howto irrigate and where to irrigate
and how nmuch water they got com ng and...

Q How many acres of | and do you own in Lemhi
County? Do you have an estinate?
A Well, 18, 000- pl us.

Q Ckay. So you have a lot of water rights?
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A lot of water rights.

In a lot of different drainages?

> O >

A lot of different drainages.

Q Ckay. And with this property in
particular -- and | recognize |I'mtaking sone liberties
here, so if there's any concerns wth going too fast,
pl ease | et ne know.

But you heard Jordan's testinony earlier
t oday describing the irrigation systemon the property;
correct?

A Correct.

Q Is there anything that you want to correct
about what he described as far as the current system
that's on the property today?

A Probably not. | don't know that -- it's
cl ose enough. d ose enough.

Q There's a map in front of you.

And you -- you actually have the original
of that nmp, correct, the engineer's nmap?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay.

MR. MANWARI NG  Which one are we tal king with?
' msorry.

MR, HARRI S 154.

MR, MANWARI NG 154. Ckay.
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Q (BY MR HARRIS): And do you know why t hat
map was created?

A My father had made one. He had a | awsuit
wth the Kauers, who at that tine owned the MConnell
property. And they were -- had had the waternaster
break the damthat was -- earthen damthat was there
and turn that water down the creek to them

And of course, ny father had to chal |l enge
it. And they had that lawsuit. And in that |awsuit ny
father prevailed and -- and just like the record shows
in there, why back in 1932 they had an oral agreenent
and worked on that. And that was pre-Kauer days. And
it worked.

And there was either an earthen damor a
flume underneath clear from-- clear back to prior to
1912, that that water has gone to the Wi ttaker
property. And the Wittakers have now owned t hat.
This will be the 96th year that the Whittakers have
owned t hat property.

And that -- during ny lifetinme all that
wat er has been diverted out of that east and west
spring both to the Wiittaker property. And it was
beyond ny wi | dest dream that anybody coul d ever make an
attack on that.

And if that spring is taken fromus, that
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is a definite injury, and it's -- it's an injury of the
magni tude that basically it just makes that property
nonprofitable. W've put new pivots on it. W farned
it. M father broke a | ot of that out of the sagebrush
and t hi ngs.

Q Uh- huh.

A And he dug the east spring back in the
|ate -- late '20s.

Q Let -- let ne interrupt you. And let's
tal k about that.

A Ckay.

Q This map depicts -- generally it depicts
sone ditches and other features on the property.

Do you think it does a fairly accurate job,
general | y speaki ng, of depicting where those features
are? O is there anything in this map that you would
say is not quite accurate?

A Well, I'd just reiterate what Larry said
there, is that we never knew that as Lee Creek going
t hr ough t here.

Ckay. It was Stroud Creek to you?

Yeah, it was Stroud Creek.

O > O

Ckay. And did -- as far as the west
springs, the ditch that collects it, ny understandi ng

is there's a -- there's a bermthat goes across there
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to then run that into the ditch.

Was that there when you were a kid on the
property?

A It's -- it's been there ny whole lifetine.
And | renenber specifically that after | got out of
hi gh school and | nade a little noney and | bought a
backhoe, and that's when backhoes weren't real popul ar.

That spring was just plunmb full of softest
silt and everything. And Larry's dad -- | said, "WllI,
"1l clean it."

"Ch, you can't do that."

But | took that backhoe up there, and I
renmenber when | got in there, why | just had to junp it
t hrough there. And every tine I'd let it down, it
woul d throw wat er out the sides there. Cl ean that out,
and that's why it's got that huge bank off to the | ower
side there is because | put all that out and grew grass
and stuff now, it's been out there. But |'ve done that
at least twce inny lifetine.

Q Ckay. And you're famliar with --
eventual ly that water collects, and | just refer to it
as kind of a hilltop split where you can send water
down to the pivot.

Are you famliar with that?

A. Yes.
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Q Ckay. And historically did water just --
did that ditch carry water out for flood irrigation
where the pivot now is?

A It did. It's a-- all the tine that
Larry's dad was on there, we went out there for fl ood
irrigation. And he -- Larry's dad was a man that
tended water when it needed tended. And it's hard to
believe, but he irrigated al nost as much as --
flood-irrigating as we're doing now with a pivot.

Q Ckay. There's been a | ot of discussion
t oday about down where Lee Creek and Stroud Creek are
pretty close together. And we've referred to a couple

cul verts down a little bit further down.

Do you recall the area that |I'mtal king
about ?
A Yeah.
Q Ckay. So I'mgoing to ask you a questi on,

how are you famliar with that area?

A well, I'Il tell you howl'mfamliar wth
it. And that's why Larry -- right after -- it wasn't
long after | got out of high school that ny dad bought
anot her grazing permt to the west of us there that --
and we call it the dry farmarea. And we'd been -- we
had a band of sheep, but now we had cattl e too.

But historically they had to nove those
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sheep clear around through ny Uncle Cal's property and
down. But there was -- at that tine at the bottom of
t hat property there, that was just like the rest of it
goi ng down the creek, all that brush and everything,
you couldn't get through there.

And I -- 1 went and | talked to ny father
about that. And | says, "You know, Dad, if we could --
if I could get a Cat and clean that out of there and
put a couple bridges in, why we could have those sheep
honme in a couple hours instead of a day goi ng cl ear
around that deal."

And so initially he -- typical dad, he
said, "No, you -- that's not a good idea." But
fortunately next spring he said, "Wien are you getting
that Cat to push that out?"

So | got the Cat and pushed it out. | put
the bridge in there, what was the bridge, it's a
cul vert now because the bridge rotted out, and this had
to be inlate '60s, just not long after Larry noved out
of there, basically.

And we put themin. And we could bring
cattle clear fromour Barrow s [phonetic] ranch and put
themon the dry farmin one day instead of two days.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: Good story.
THE WTNESS: | reckon there are -- there's just
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two streans there. And Stroud Creek stream on both
sides of it alittle, it was kind of springs and seeps.
And so | dug back a little bit with the backhoe each
way to kind of collect that so we could dry that up,

so -- especially the sheep don't like to walk in water
across there. And so --

Q (BY MR HARRIS): So before | get lost rea
qui ck, so where there's two culverts on that property,
t here used to be bridges?

A Two -- they're culverts now. One is in Lee
Creek and one's in Stroud Creek.

Q Ckay. D d you install those culverts?

A | did.

Q Do you know what year you install ed those
cul verts?

A It would have -- | can't tell you the exact

year, but it would have been sonewhere between '65 and

' 70.

Q Ckay. And prior to that they were bridges?

A Vel --

Q O there was [unintelligible] --

A -- prior to that there wasn't anythi ng
until | had the brush pushed out of there and put them
in. | did that.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER: Bridges -- bridges first.
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When did -- you replaced the bridges wth cul verts.
When di d t hat happen?

THE WTNESS: Well, the one culvert's been in
their all the tine, Lee Creek.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER | see.

THE WTNESS: |It's never changed.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.

THE WTNESS: But | put a bridge in the other
because at that tinme it was soft and it just seened to
fit better. Well -- and | couldn't get equipnent there
that we had in those days to put enough gravel in
t here, because that's why | had that little backhoe and
| dug those deals. And it did kind of dry up. But
initially | put a bridge in there.

But | can't tell you, but it's probably
been at | east 15 years ago when | --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: It's been a | ot | onger
t han that.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: [Unintel ligible.]

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  You' re probably talking
nore --

THE WTNESS: Yeah, in fact, it's probably 30

years ago, because | just | ooked at it the other day
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and it's -- it's all rusted out and needs repl aced and
wor ked on agai n goi ng through there.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER  And there are -- there are
three culverts there now?

THE W TNESS: No, there aren't. There's only
two. There's always been just two. There aren't
three. There's just two culverts. One's in Stroud and
one's in Lee Creek.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER.  Okay.

Q (BY MR HARRIS): GCkay. And so Jordan's
testinmony was that -- that -- well, that area's been
referred to a little bit like a jungle.

And you would agree with that?

A Ch, no doubt.

Q Ckay. But to the best of your
recol |l ection, have there been two channels paralleling
each other? And does Stroud Creek cone in bel ow

McConnel | s' di versi on?

A Undoubtedly. And the reason |'m sure of
that is because, like |I said, we have that range right
on the hill right next to that. And every year, why we

put our bulls out, and invariably they get into what's
now Johnson's property, one or two of them And as
they've said, that is full of brush in there. They are

a bear to get out of there.
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And so they're every year, and it's not
really sonething | can send nost nen to do and get
acconplished. | had to go do it nyself with nmy dogs
and crawl through there and get them out of there.

Q So if this transfer's approved, are you
concerned that adm nistratively McConnell would be able
to call for water out of Stroud Creek when he hasn't
been able to up to this point?

A Yeah. As far as we're concerned, that's
devast ati on, because we've depended on that for, |ike I
say, 95, 96 years.

Q Now, I'm-- I'"'msure M. Bromey will ask
you sone questi ons about your Water Ri ght 74-157 and
why this agreenent wasn't clainmed in the adjudication,
so I'll just ask you that question.

Do you -- can you tell us why it wasn't
included? D d you think it didn't have to be? What

was t he reasoni ng?

A Well, I don't know. In nmy mnd | guess
it -- it's been kind of -- and I think Chris alluded to
that before is that -- well, in the 1982 adjudication
it was in there the way it was supposed to be. It was

|i sted as separate.
And according to what Bryce has said there,

when they went in to research those out, they were
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supposed to reflect the way they were -- it -- in the
90 -- 1987 report. And if that would have been done,
we woul dn't be in here today.
Q Ckay. You don't think that reflected at
| east the historic adm nistration at the tine?
A It didn't reflect what was in the 1982
adj udi cati on.
Q Ckay. And didn't reflect what the
agreenent was that the Suprene Court --
A It didn't reflect the agreenent either.
MR HARRIS: Ckay. | have no further questions.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  Okay.
MR. HARRI S: Thank you.
THE HEARI NG OFFI CERE  Go ahead, M. Brom ey.
MR, BROM_EY: Sur e.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR BROWLEY:
Q So hi, Janes. Chris Bronley on behalf of
t he McConnel |l s.

This -- the 1982 or ish, like that tine
franme adjudi cation that you're tal ki ng about, was that
t he Lemhi adj udi cation?

A It was.

Q Just trying to make sure.
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A And I'mreferencing the Green Book. |If
you'll look in the Geen Book, it's not |listed as
tributary. It's listed in springs separate.

Q Ckay. So do you have a copy of that G een
Book that we can --

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER: | have a copy -- | have a
copy on ny phone.

MR HARRIS: Well, you can't testify right now
Sorry.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): And we have a w tness
and exhibit list. And I'mjust wondering where in the
exhi bits that you said you would use at hearing, which
exhibit -- you know, where does it say that?

MR HARRIS: Well, hold on. I'mgoing to
object. Yeah, we didn't include it as an exhibit
because we didn't think it was an issue. But he's
testifying fromhis nmenory, which | think he can do.

MR. BROMLEY: Ckay. So --

MR HARRIS: He's saying his recollection of
what's in the Geen Book is it was in a separate
section.

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): M. Cefalo, so all I'm
trying to find out is, do you have a docunent in front
of you that says that or are you testifying from your

recol | ecti on?
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A Right now l'mtestifying fromny
recollection. But | have that Geen -- well, just a
mnute. | -- | think | do have it. | do have it.

Bring that up, Jordan.

MR, BROMLEY: M. Hearing Oficer, ny question
was sinply, I'mtrying to understand what he was
testifying from

But pl ease, Jordan, don't cone up directed
by Janes. Let's wait to try and figure this out.

In ny opinion, it's a side issue. | was
just trying to find out, did he have a docunent in
front of him or is he testifying based on
recol | ection?

THE HEARI NG OFFICER: That's fine. And you --
and you answered that question.

MR. BROMLEY: Yeah.

THE HEARI NG OFFICER |It's based on
recol | ection.

MR HARRI'S: Correct.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER  There isn't an exhibit, |
don't think, that is that.

THE WTNESS: | do have it right there.

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER G eat .

Q (BY MR BROMLEY): So --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER You can conti nue.
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THE WTNESS: And | brought it.

MR. BROMLEY: That's all I"'mtrying to find
out --

THE HEARI NG OFFI CER You can conti nue.

MR. BROMLEY: -- is what was goi ng on

Again, | --

Q Janes, you understand, though, that the

74-157 as it was decreed in the SRBA says "springs

tributary to Lee Creek"?

A. | understand that.
Q Yeah.
A. But - -

Q Go ahead.

A On that sane token, | see we're even
claimng wells as tributaries, sonething now published
in the paper. And it seens to ne |ike ever since this
| ast adj udi cation everything has to have a tributary on
it. And ny son-in-law just filed a -- for a well the
other day, and in ny mind I'msure that | was asked by
the Departnent to put tributary on there, you know,
because | knew it was different. But they said it's
got to be tributary to sonething.

And |'m sure that whoever | net with said,
"Hey, you need to put 'tributary' on there." And

that's been one of the biggest mstakes of ny life.
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Q Ckay. So thank you for that.

This Exhibit 154, the colorful map, you
said that this was nade during the Kauer dispute by --
was it by your father who had the map conm ssi oned?

A It was. He had an engineer do it.

Q Ckay. And -- and other than the -- just
li ke M. Borstel nan saying, other than this Left Fork
of Lee Creek, it really should be Stroud Creek.

Again, what else is incorrect about this
map?

A | don't know. But I'd like to point out
t hat both of those springs are called the Floyd J.
Whittaker Ditch. And ever since that 1916 -- or 2016
when C ndy had us turn that water down, why when you
have all that water conme down and -- that hasn't been
t hrough there for 95 years or during ny life, why you
can i magi ne what a probl emthat causes.

And at that tinme | was still running the
ranch and was trying to get up there and try and keep
it rational so we was sendi ng Bruce's down but yet was
protecting nmy spring. W didn't have weirs in. W
didn't have anything to neasure with. And we knew what
we was entitled to, but it was virtually guesswork.
And so. ..

Q And on this nmap, Janes, that | see running
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